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] CITY MANAGER

Qctober 28, 2008

The Honorable Mayor,

Members of the City Council and Citizens
City of Fayetteville

Fayetteville, North Carolina

Dear Maycr, Members of the City Council, and Citizens:

It is our pleasure to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. State law
requires that every local government publish a complete set of audited financial
statements within four months of the close of each fiscal year. The financiai statements
must be presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of
certified public accountants. This report complies with these requirements.

The CAFR consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the
City. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of the information contained in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of the City has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to protect City assets and to
compile information for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the
internal controls have been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.

Cherry, Bekaert & Holland, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an
ungualified (“clean”) opinion on the City of Fayetteville’s financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The independent auditors’ report is located at the front
of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent
auditors’ report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic
financial statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in
conjunction with it.

A3IHAY STREET
TAYETTEVILLE, NC 28301-5537
{9107 433-15H
An Fqual Opportunity, Affimmative Astion Emplover

[




PROFILE OF THE CITY

Fayetteville is a thriving community located in the Sandhills region of southeastern North
Carolina and is the seat of Cumberland County. The City is approximately 60 miles
south of the State capital of Raleigh. Fayetteville is located adjacent to Interstate
Highway 95, a major north-south corridor linking the City to New York to the north and
Miami to the south.

Fayetteville has been recognized twice as an!AH-America City by the National Civic
League and is known as a community of “History, Heroes and a Hometown Feeling”. In
1762, the town of Campbellton, located on the Cape Fear River, was chartered by the
colonial assembly. In 1778, the neighboring towns of Cross Creek and Campbellton
were united to become Upper and Lower Campbellton. In 1783, the North Carolina
General Assembly approved the town’s official renaming to Fayetteville in honor of the
Marquis de Lafayette, the French nobleman who served as a Major General in the
Continental Army during the Revolutionary War.

Adjacent to the City are Fort Bragg Army Base and Pope Air Force Base, which form
one of the largest military complexes in the world. The bases add significantly to the
culture of the community and the local economy. Fort Bragg, located ten miles north of
the City's downtown is the home of the Army's only Airborne Corps and the 82nd
Airborne Division as well as the elite "Green Berets". Pope Air Force Base, located
adjacent to Fort Bragyg, provides the fixed-wing aviation assets required to support Fort
Bragg's missions. The Airborne and Special Operations Museum in downtown
Fayetteville is just one indicator of the commuinity pride and gratitude for these local
heroes.

Fayetteville is the sixth largest municipality in the State with a population estimated at
181,453 and encompassing 93.3 square miles as of June 30, 2008. The City's
population has increased by 49.9% or 60,438 fesidents since the last U.S. Census on
April 1, 2000. Much of the population groth has resulted from the City’s statutory
authority to extend its corporate limits through annexation. In September 2005, the City
completed an annexation, referred to as “Phasi V", of 42,000 residents and 27 square
miles. Most recently, the North Carolina General Assembly approved legislation to
annex portions of Fort Bragg into the City effective September 1, 2008. This annexation
will add approximately 28,000 residents and 54 $quare miles to the City.

The City has a council-manager form of governr“nent. Nine members of the City Council
are elected from districts and the Mayor is elected at large. Each of the Council
Members and the Mayor serve two-year concurrent terms. The City Council has policy
making and legislative authority. The Council is responsible for the approval of the
budget and appointment of the City Manager, City Attorney, the Public Works
Commission and members of other City boards,|committees and commissions. The City
Manager is responsible for implementing Council policies and City ordinances,

managing daily operations and appointing department directors.

The City provides its citizens with a full range of services, including police and fire
protection, solid waste services, the construction and maintenance of streets, curbs,
gutters, sidewalks and other infrastructure, recrﬁation and cultural activities, fixed-route
and demand-response transit service, airport se

ice, and electric, water and wastewater
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utilities. This report includes all of the City's activities in delivering and administering
these services.

The Council is required to adopt a budget by July 1 of each year. The City is
empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located within its
boundaries. The City's budget ordinance creates a legal limit on spending
authorizations, and serves as the foundation for Fayetteville's financial planning and
contrel. The annual budget is authorized at the department level in the General Fund, in
operating, capital and transfer expenditure categories for the Electric, Water and
Wastewater Funds and at the fund level for all other funds.

LOCAL ECONOMY

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when
it is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the
City operates.

The economy of Fayetteville is stabilized by the presence of Fort Bragg Army Base and
Pope Air Force Base. Approximately 57,000 military personnel are stationed at Fort
Bragg and Pope, with support from approximately 10,800 additional civilian employees.
The direct impact of payrcll alone adds over $2.9 billion to the regional econocmy.
Substantial employment opportunities are also offered in the government sector through
the local health system, school system, college, university, and county and city
governments.

Other major employers in the area include manufacturers such as the Goodyear Tire &
Rubber Company, which has one of the largest tire preducing facteries in the world, and
Purciator Products and M.J. Soffe which produce auto filters and sports apparel,
respectively. During the past five years, annual unemployment rates have ranged from
a low of 5.3% to a high of 6.3%, according to the United States Department of Labor.

[ Unemployment Rates”

‘ Cumberland North United
Year County Carolina States
2007 | 53 4.7 4.6
2006 5.4 47 46 |
2005 54 5.3 5.1
2004 5.3 55 55
2003 6.3 6.5 6.0

* Percentage of unemployment reponted by the United States Department of
Labor — Bureau of Laher Statistics

During fiscal year 2008, the City approved 821 permits for new residential units valued at
$89.2 million and 60 new commercial building permits valued at $45.9 million were
issued for construction compared to 1,740 permits for new residential units valued at
$175.8 million and 88 new commercial building permits valued at $55.1 million issued in
fiscal year 2007. The decline in the number and construction value of permits for
residential units can primarily be attributed to a decrease of 695 multi-family residential
units from fiscal year 2007 to 2008. Fiscal year 2007 was a record setting year for multi-
family housing unit permits in Fayetteville.
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The City is a major regional trade center in eas}iern North Carolina,.with a gignificant
number and variety of shopping plazas, centers and independent retailers. Ewdenc_;e of
the strong retail sector is reflected by one of the lérgest shopping areas of the Carolinas,
a two-square mile area located within the city. | Cross Creek Mall, the anchor of the
shopping district, has more than one million square feet of floor space and four major
department stores. Taxable sales in Fayetteville for fiscal year 2008 Itotalled
approximately $2.3 billion, which is a modest increase over fiscal year 2007. Historical

sales for Fayetteville and Cumberland County are provided in the table below.

i . Retail/Taxable Sales’ . A
Fiscal City of 1 % Cumberland %
Year Fayetteville Change County Change
2008 $2,300,524,240 2.10 $2,751,850,877 0.19 }
2007 | $2,253,207,756 9.30 $2,746,626,602 9.7
2006 2,061,503,490 N/A 2,504 743,152 N/A
2005 2,986,871,674" 11.44 3,683,503,849" 9.9
2004 2,680,161,606" 10.72 3,351,729,316" 11.07
*Fiscal Year (FY) 2004 and 2005 sales are not comparable to subsequent fiscal years’
sales data. The FY2004 and FY2005 sales data represents gross retail sales. The FY2008,
2007 and 2008 sales data represents taxable sales .

A notable economic development during the fiscal year was the State of North Carolina’s
enactment of legislation in September 2007 authorizing cash grants up to $60 million to
be split between the Fayetteville Goodyear plan‘t and a Bridgestone Firestone plant in
Wilson. The Goodyear plant must maintain at least 2,000 jobs and invest $200 million in
facility upgrades to be eligible for a grant.

Fort Bragg and Pope Air Force Base are transitioning as a result of the 2005 Base
Realignment and Closure Commission (BRAC) decisions. The most significant changes
affecting Fort Bragg include the relocation of the U.S. Army Forces Command
(FORSCOM) and U.S. Army Reserve Command (USARC) headquarters from Fort
McPherson, Georgia. The deactivation of the 43" Airlift Wing, redeployment of the 23"
Fighter Group to other air force bases, relocation of the 440" Air Reserve Component
Wing from Detroit Michigan, and establishment of an air operations group are among the
significant changes at Pope Air Force Base. In total, the changes are projected to have
a positive impact on the local economy. Accordihg,to a study commissioned by the Fort
Bragg and Pope Air Force Base BRAC Regional Task Force, base realignments are
expected to result in a net increase of 2,651 military personnel, 6,207 civilian employees
and contractors, and 16,755 family members to the region by 2013.

Overall, Fayetteville's economy is facing the same challenges that other cities in North
Carolina and across the country face during these uncertain economic times. However,
the proximity of Fort Bragg and the base reallgnments are expected to mitigate the
impact of those economic challenges on the locgl economy. The City Council adopted a
fiscal year 2009 budget based on a minimal rate of growth given the current economic
environment. Fayetteville's strong strategic planning process and conservative fiscal
management continue to allow the City to maintain a high priority on both the delivery of
quality services and financial stability.




LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING and MAJOR INITIATIVES

The City's long-term vision is evident in Fayetteville’s strong' commitment to
neighborhoods, enhancing the local economy, revitalization of its hIlStOI’IC downtown,
increasing leisure opportunities for its citizens, its diverse culture, rich heritage, and
partnership with citizens, while maintaining a strong financial position.

The City Council has committed to key goals and an action agenda consistent \_Nith
Fayetteville's vision. These goals and targets for action are discussed in the City's
strategic plan on the City’s website at www.ci.fayetteville.nc.us.

A key financial goal of the City for many years has been to maintain a minimum 10%
undesignated fund balance level in the general fund. In addition, the City’'s practice has
been to appropriate fund balance for one-time expenditures or significant capital needs.
These goals were met in fiscal year 2008 and were used to develop the fiscal year 2009
operating budget. Undesignated fund balance in the general fund was $17.8 million or
13.8% of total general fund expenditures and transfers out at June 30, 2008, which
exceeds the minimum 10 percent goal established by Council.

Consistent with debt management policy, the City also dedicated an amount equivalent
to 7.28 cents of the 53-cent ad valorem tax rate, as well as specifically earmarked
revenues, for the repayment of principal and interest on installment financing
agreements for facilities and general obligation debt in fiscal year 2008. The City
designates any excess dedicated revenues at year-end and accumulated fund balance
resulting from the debt management plan for future debt service. The City’s commitment
to the debt management plan will generate significant debt capacity in future fiscal years.
In addition, the City maintained its Aa3 and AA- bond ratings on the City’s general
obligation bonds, consistent with Council policy, and received upgraded underlying bond
ratings of Aa3 and AA- for its utility revenue bonds.

Annually, the City adopts a six-year capital improvement program (CIP) for its electric,
water and wastewater utility funds and a five-year CIP for other functions such as public
safety, parks, transportation, storm water system, airport and transit.

The City also followed other practices designed tc avoid using one-time revenues for
recurring expenditures, to ensure an ongoing mix of pay-as-you-go and long-term debt
funding of capital needs, and to periodically menitor revenues and expenditures to
budget.

The City alsc accomplished or continued work on several other financial, organizational
and economic development goals including:

e The Cumberland County Business Council, in a partnership with the City of
Fayetteville and Cumberland County, has reviewed sites, completed a feasibility
study and evaluated design concepts to develop a military business park. A 215-
acre tract, along Sante Fe Drive at the All American Freeway, has been selected
for the park. In the past two years, the City and Cumberland County have been
awarded several grants totaling $750,000 from the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) for the project. The grants will be used during
the first phase of construction for infrastructure improvements such as streets,
and water and sanitary sewer lines.

A-5



In April 2008, the Fayetteville Metropolitap Housing Authority was awarded a $20
million HOPE VI grant from HUD. The grant is the result of a public-private
partnership proposal submitted to HUD to invest approximately $113 million in
the revitalization of the Old Wilmington Road area in downtown Fayetteville. The
grant will support the redevelopment ofltwo public housing developments with
modern housing that will seamlessly blend the residential and natural
environments with the urban center. The City and its Public Works Commission
(PWC) are significant public partners inlthe project with commitments of $9.23
million for infrastructure improvements, land acquisition and park development,
$2.69 million in CDBG and HOME funds for affordable housing, and $2.12 million
in donated land and permit and fee waivers.

The City established a residential curbsipe recycling program for items such as
glass, aluminum and plastic containers, newsprint and corrugated cardboard.
The program became effective in July 2q08 and is funded through an annual fee
of $42 for each single-family household. |An additional benefit of the program will
be the establishment of a materials recovery facility in Cumberland County,
which will provide towns in the region with additional options to participate in
recycling.

During fiscal year 2008, the City initiatedi the first complete overhaul of its zoning
and subdivision regulations in over 40 years. This effort will resuit in the creation
of a Unified Development Ordinance that will make development regulations
more user-friendly, streamline the review"process, modernize zoning districts and
uses, improve development quality, establish a new downtown district, and

incorporate sustainable development prahtices in the City’s regulations.

The City expanded the storm watef management program through the
establishment of a $24 annual fee dedicated to funding drainage system
improvements throughout the City. The new fee generates over $3.3 million
annually and will be used to fund drainage system projects currently estimated to
cost in excess of $43 million.

The City continued redevelopment work on the 300 Block of Hay Street project,
which is a public-private partnership, negotiated through the Cumberland County
Business Council. The City has expended or committed over $1.8 million to pay
permit fees, acquire land, construct |a parking lot and make streetscape
improvements. Developers expect to |nvest approximately $11 million in the
project and have already acquired a portion of the fand from the City and
constructed 10 townhouses on the |property. The developers are also
constructing a 4 1/2 story, 56,100—sunre~foot retail, office and condominium
building which should be complete in egrly 2009. The final phase of the project
will be the construction of 10 additional townhouses, which could begin as early
as the summer of 2009,

The City, with and through its PWC, acdomplished or continued work on several
utility system financial and economic de\)‘elopment policies and goals including:
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o Funding the first Annexation Phase V utility installation project. As a
result, approximately 600 homes in the LaGrange and Brentwood
neighborhoods were provided sanitary sewer service in FY2008. Another
500 homes are scheduled for completion in FY2009.

o Adoption of a funding and construction agreement between the City and
its PWC to extend sanitary sewer service to the remaining 7,000
properties in the Phase V area. The agreement is to extend sanitary
sewer service to approximately 500 properties per year beginning in
2010. The City and its PWC have committed to contribute $80.5 million
each to the 14-year project that is expected to cost $244 million. The
remaining cost will be recovered through property assessments and
investment income resulting from project funds.

o Approval of a 25-year operating transfer policy with the City based on net
assets of the electric system rather than annual electric revenues. The
policy creates a fair and equitable transfer that provides financial stability
for the City’s general fund and the utility system.

o Maintaining its 60-day operating reserve, recovered costs through revised
fees and charges and received upgraded bond ratings from Moody's
Investors Service (from A1 to Aa3) and Standard and Poor’s (from A+ to
AA-).  As a result, the utility system can continue to provide reliable
services, stable rates and invest in capital improvements.

o Extending its economic incentive development plan for an additional year,
which waives facility investment fees in designated zones of the City.

o Evaluation of its fuel adjustment policy, and, in support of our l|ocal
industry, continuing to exempt industrial customers from the charge.

o Addressing the need for safe drinking water where private water welis
have become contaminated. The City and its PWC worked with the State
of North Carolina to extend the water system in the Rim Road area where
private wells are contaminated; and PWC began selling water to Aqua
North Carolina to serve over 1,000 of Aqua’s 14,000 Cumberland County
customers where environmental issues occurred in the Aqua water
system.

During the year, the City continued or completed work on many significant capital
projects including the following:

The North Carolina General Assembly adopted the 2005 Appropriations Act in
August 2005, which included a $2.3 million grant to the City of Fayetteville for the
development of a 15-acre North Carolina Veterans Park in the downtown area.
Most of the funds have been used to acqguire land located near the Airborne and
Special Operations Museum, demolish buildings and develop a preliminary
master plan for the park. The remainder of the grant will be used for additional
site preparation. In addition, the City was awarded a $14.7 million grant from the
State of North Carolina for design and construction of the Veterans Park,
including a formal garden, visitor's center and freedom trail in October 2008.

The $2.3 million EE Miller Recreation Center was completed in October 2007.

The recreation center is approximately 13,500 square feet and includes a
gymnasium, fitness room, activity rooms and kitchen.
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e Progress was made on projects funded by the $8.45 million general obligation
bonds issued in 2005. Those projects include drainage improvements and street
improvements.

« Fire Station 15 was completed in April 2008 at a cost of $2.5 million. The fire
station is approximately 10,000 square féet and is located at the intersection of
Cliffdale Road and Buhmann Drive.

* In September 2007, Fayetteville comp!leted renovations at the Fayetieville
Regional Airport terminal building. The $2.5 million renovation project included
replacement of lighting, flooring and bag lifts, as well as modifications to the
security checkpoint area.

» The second phase of the Cross Creek Linear Park, which extends the park from
Green Street to Meeting Street at Cool |Spring Street, was completed in June
2008. Phases | and 1l of the park, which lincludes a walking trail along the creek,
water fountain and pedestrian bridges, were completed at a total cost of $1.3
million.

e The United States of America contracled with PWC and Harnett County to
provide water services to the Fort Bragg!Army Installation and Pope Air Field for
the next 40 years. Together, PWC andHarnett County will provide the needed
infrastructure including water distribution piping to provide the maximum daily
demand of 16 million gallons a day. PNC expects to begin selling water to Fort
Bragg in FY2010.

» Approved the construction of a new PWC customer service center to be built to
LEED (Leadership in Energy Efficiency| Design) standards after reaching 87%
occupancy at the Robert C. Williams Business Center. The $4.6 million building
will be located on the PWC Operations Complex.

» Continued work on the water main rehabjlitation and replacement program during
FY2008. Due to the age and conditicn of the water mains, some areas of the
distribution system experience reduced) pressure and reduced fire flows. The
purpose of the program is to replace and reline existing water mains to increase
flow and extend the life of the distribution system. One of the utility system
budget goals is to reline cne percent o; the water mains each year, starting in
2013.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of
Fayetteville, North Carolina for its comprehensive annuai financial report for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007. 1n order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable %nd efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.
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A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

This report is the work of the efficient and dedicated staff of the Finance Department.
We wish to express our appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and
contributed to the preparation of this report and to the entire City staff for their
cooperation and assistance. Credit is also due to the Mayor and the members of the
City Council for their unfailing support of the highest standards of professionalism in the
management of Fayetteville's finances.

Respectfully submitted,

/,..-—-'—-*a\' 4
/ . ] = i
{ ~ /g <
\tike & o L
Dale E. Iman—" Lisa Smith
City Manager Chief Financial Officer
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CHERRY
BEKAERT&.

HOLLAND

CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOQUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville
Fayetteville, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, the budgetary comparison of the general fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina (the “City”) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. OQur
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2008, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows where appropriate, and the respective budgetary
comparison of the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 28,
2008 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.




The management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of funding progress and the schedule of
employer contributions for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance, Public Works
Commission Retirement System, Other Post Employmfent Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan, and Public
Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan are not required parts of
the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Govemmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principaily
of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required

supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively compnise the City's basic financial statemeljts. The combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules, as well as the accompanying schedules of expenditures of Federal and
State awards as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, and
schedule of expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges as required by the Passenger Facility Charge
Audit Guide for Public Agencies, for the year ended June 30, 2008, and the combining and individual
fund financial statements and schedules for the year erJllded June 30, 2007, are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2008, and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on such data.

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND, L.L.P.

Chavy, bkos Hollrd #P

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 28, 2008
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Fayetteville (“the City"), we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in the transmittal letter at the front of this report and
the City's financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City of Fayetteville exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by
$1.1 billion (net assets). Of this amount, $192.5 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The government’s total net
assets increased by $45.3 million.

Net assets decreased $3.1 million to $427.7 million in fiscal year 2008 down from $430.8 million
in fiscal year 2007 in the Governmental activities. Key factors in this decrease were the $5.3
million Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) expense recognized in fiscal year 2008 and a
$0.8 million increase in depreciation expense for public safety vehicles and equipment offset by
$3.3 million in additional storm water fees that will be used for future drainage projects.
Additional information regarding the City’s Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) can be
found in Note 12 on pages F-40 — F-43 of this report.

Net assets increased $48.4 million to $630.2 million in fiscal year 2008 up from $581.8 million in
fiscal year 2007 in the Business type activities. By far, the largest portion of these net assets,
$505.9 million or 80.3 percent, reflects the investment in capital assets less any related debt still
outstanding that was issued to acquire those assets in the Electric, Water and Wastewater,
Transit, Airport and Solid Waste Recycling activities. Capital contributions and operating funds
offset by capital asset depreciation contributed to the $46.7 million increase in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt.

Current and Other Assets decreased $5.6 million or 2.9 percent. This decrease is primarily due
to the recognition of purchase power expenses that reduced prepaid assets by $40.6 million and
was offset by a $32.2 million increase in the Electric, Water and Wastewater Funds’ cash and
investments in fiscal year 2008. The prepaid power asset was the result of a prior year payment
to Progress Energy Carolinas Inc. that is further discussed in Note 1 of the financial statements.
As of the close of fiscal year 2008, the City's governmental funds reported an ending fund
balance of $65.7 million, a decrease of $0.8 million in comparison to prior year. Approximately
67.5 percent of total fund balance, or $44.3 million is available for spending at the government’s
discretion (unreserved fund balance).

At the end of fiscal year 2008, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $35.8 million
or 27.6 percent of total general fund expenditures and transfers out for the fiscal year. Of this
amount, $18.0 million has been designated for subsequent year expenditures, special purposes,
and debt service, bringing the undesignated general fund balance to $17.8 million or 13.8
percent of general fund expenditures and transfers out.

The City’s total debt decreased by $43.9 million dunng fiscal year 2008.

The City’'s most recent general obligation bond issue (governmental activities) was rated Aa3
(Moody's Investor Services) and AA- (Standard & Poor's). With the exception of the utility
system revenue bonds issued in 2008, all outstanding utility system revenue bonds carry
bond ratings of Aaa and AAA from Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s, respectively; based
upon municipal bond insurance policies. In fiscal year 2008, both Moody's and
Standard and Poor’s raised the underlying bond ratings of the City’s utility system
to Aa3 and AA- from A1 and A+, respectively.
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Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve asian introduction to the City of Fayetteville's basic
financial statements which consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements as shown below. The basic financial
statements present two different views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and
fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other
supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the
City. This report includes all funds of the City of Fayetteville as well as its component units, which are
described in the following pages. Note 1 in the financial report includes further discussion of the
reporting entity and description of funds.

Required Components of Annual Financial Report
Figure 1

Management's

Basic

Discussion and Financial

Analysis Statements

Notes to the
Financial

Government-wide Fund

Financial Finarjcial

Statements Statements

Statenhents

Summary 1 > Detail
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Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial
Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the City of Fayetteville's
financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the
individual parts of the City of Fayetteville's government. These statements provide more detail than the
government-wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the
governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund
statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements
explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental
information is provided to show details about the City's non-major governmental and proprietary funds
and the internal service funds. The governmental and internal service funds are added together in one
column on the basic financial statements. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also
can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of
the City of Fayetteville’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business.
The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the City's financial
status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the City’s net assets and how they have changed. Net
assets are the difference between the City’s total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is
one way to gauge the City’s financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities and 2)
business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the City’s basic services such as
general administration, public safety, environmental protection, transportation, economic and physical
development, and recreation and community facilities. Property and other taxes and state and federal
grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the City
charges customers to provide. These include the electric, water and wastewater, airport, transit and
solid waste recycling services offered by the City of Fayetteville or its Public Works Commission.

The government-wide financial statements are on pages D-1 and D-2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City of Fayetteville’s most significant
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City,-like all other governmental entities
in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with

finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the City’s budget ordinance. All of
the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds.
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Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City of Fayetteville’s
basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily
be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monhies are left at year-end that will be available for
spending in the next year. Governmental funds a#e reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial resources focus. As a result, the
governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her
determine if there are more or less financial resourc?s available to finance the City’s programs. The
relationship between governmental activities (repomted in the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund
financial statements.

The City of Fayetteville adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General
Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the
City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the City Council about which services to provide
and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance
these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates
how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded in
providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison
statement on page E-5 of this report uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the
same format, language, and classifications as the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the City
Council; 2) the final budget as amended by the City Council; 3) the actual resources, charges to
appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between
the final budget and the actual resources and charges:.

Proprietary Funds — The City of Fayetteville has two kinds of proprietary funds. Enferprise Funds are
used to report the same functions presented as ﬂusiness-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its electric, water and wastewater,
mass transit, airport and solid waste recycling operations. These funds are the same as those
functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities. Infernal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internaliy among the functions of the City. The City uses an internal service fund to account for its fleet
leasing program, fleet maintenance, and risk ménagement activities.  All of these services
predominantly benefit governmental functions except for the fleet maintenance fund, which also
provides service to the business type activities. These services have been included within their
respective predominant activities in the government—wihe financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds - Trust funds are used to account for the activities of funds the City holds in trust
for others. The City has two pension trust funds and two private-purpose trust funds.

Notes fo the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the gover|‘|1ment-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements are on pages F-1 — Fr44 of this report.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report includes certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees. Required
supplementary information can be found beginning on page G-1 of this report.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

Net Assels. The following is a summary of net assets for the City of Fayetteville at June 30, 2008
with comparative data for June 30, 2007. The City's combined net assets increased $45.3 miillion, or
4.5% from fiscal year 2007 to 2008. Net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a
government's financial condition. The information provided below provides a more detailed view of the
City's net assets.

Clty of Fayetteville's Net Assets (dollars in thousands)
Figure 2

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008

Current and other asseis 99,887 % 104,066 3§ 193,845 § 188,328 293,932 § 202,384 |
Capital assets 400,750 395,687 652,235 577,134 1,052,985 1,072,821 |

Total assets 500,737 499,753 846,180 865,462 1,346,917 1,365,215

Long-term liabililies outstanding 56,801 57,542 230,080 192 677 286,861 250,219

Dther liabilities 13,091 14,461 34,279 42,557 47,370 57,018

Total llabillties 69,892 72,003 264,339 235,234 334,231 307,237

Met assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 353,408 354,483 459,238 505,941 812,646 860,424
Restricted 3,525 2,931 1,236 2,087 4,761 5,018
Unrestricted 73,912 70,336 121,367 122,200 195,279 192,536

Total net assets 430,845 § 427,750 _§ 581,841 § £30,2286 $ 1,012,686 % 1,057,878

The assets of the City exceeded liabilities by $1.1 billion as of June 30, 2008. Net assets is reported in
three categories: Invested in capital assets, net of related debt of $860.4 million, Restricted net assets
of $5.0 million and Unrestricted net assets $192.5 million.

The invested in capital assets, net of related debt category is defined as the City's investment in City
owned capital assets (e.g. infrastructure, land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and other
equipment, and electric, water, and wastewater systems), less any related debt still outstanding that
was issued to acquire those items. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its
capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt
must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Another category of net assets is restricted net assets. This represents resources that are subject
to external restrictions on how they may be used.

The final category of net assets is unrestricted net assets. This balance may be used to meet

the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2008, $192.5
million, or 18.2% of the total net assets reported of $1.1 billion, is unrestricted.
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City of Fayetteville's Changes in Net Assets (doliars in thousands)
Figure 3

Governmental Business-type
Activities , Activities

2007 2008 2007 2008

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services 9525 $ 12,142 $ 218,004 $ 227978 227,529 $ 240120
Operating grants and confributions 10,499 11,q53 2,037 2,296 12,538 13,349
Capital grants and contributions 3,895 1.321 21,432 17,782 25,327 19,103
General revenues: ‘
Property taxes 52,929 54,295 52,929 54,295
Other taxes 41,308 43,193 41,308 43,193
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs 788 801 - 788 801
Other 4725 4,588 5,652 10,277 10,072
Total revenues 123,669 127,393 247,025 370,694 380,933

Expenses:
Administration 19,033 18, 0;91 19,033 19,061
Public safety 56,610 63,458 56,610 63,458
Environmental protection 11,001 12, 1?6 11,001 12,126
Transportation 18,702 20,387 18,702 20,387
Econiomic and physical development 1,229 4,559 1,229 4,559
Recreation and community facilities 14,020 12,114 14,020 12,114 ||
Interest and fees 2,622 2,081 - - 2,622 2,061
Electric - 130,839 137,562 130,839 137,562
Water and wastewater - 49623 52,767 49,623 52,767
Transit - 4,865 5,684 4 885 5,584
Airport - 4,091 3,986 4,091 3,986
Solid Waste Recyeling - - 1,946 - 1,946

Total expenses 123,217 1337 189,418 201,845 312,635 |

Increase in net assets before transfers 452 (6,463) 57,607 51,695 58,059
and special items

Transfers 7,150 3,308 (7,150) (3,308)

Increase in net assets 7,602 (3,095) 50,457 48,387 58,059 45,292 |

Met assets, July 1 423,243 430,8%15 531,384 581,841 954,627 1,012,686
T

Net assets, June 30 430,845 $ 427,750 $ 581,841 $ 630228 § 1,012,686 $ 1,057,978

Governmental activities: Revenues for the City's governmental activities were $127.4 million, while
total expenses were $133.8 million in fiscal year 2008. The decrease in net assets for governmental
activities, after transfers in, was $3.1 million. Key elenpents of this decrease are as follows:
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Ad valorem property tax revenues increase of $1.4 million to $54.3 million due to general
economic growth and development within the City. Property taxes represent 42.6% of total

governmental revenues.

Other taxes, which accounted for 33.9% of total governmentai revenues increased $1.9 million

from 2007.

Those who directly benefited
from service-fee based programs
paid $12.1 million in charges for
services and represented a 27.5
percent increase ($2.6 million)
from 2007. This increase can be
primarily attributed to the new
fee in fiscal year 2008 for City
storm water system
improvements ($3.3  million),
offset by a decrease in building,
HVAC, electric and plumbing
permits due to a slow down in
the construction industry in fiscal
year 2008 and the
discontinuance of the Safelight
Program at the end of fiscal year
2007.

Revenues by Source - Governmenta! Activities

W Charges for Services

B Operating grants and

19% 3% 10% contributions

9%
1%

H Capital grants and
contributions

8 Property Taxes

m Other Taxes

®m Unrestricted Grants
and Contributions

42%

® Interest Earned on
Investments

e

Other governments and organizations subsidized certain programs with operating grants and

contributions totaling

Expenses and Program Revenues -Governmental Activities

$11.1 million,

representing a 53

70,000,000 —

60,000,000

percent increase over
fiscal year 2007. These

= Expenses

50,000,000

grants and contributions

# Program Revenues include operating support

from various federal and

40,000,000

state agencies ($8.5
million).

30,000,000

The City received $102.9
million in other revenues

20,000,000 —‘—-

such as taxes, interest
and unrestricted grants.

10,000,000 -

Public
Safety

Admin
Protect

hL )
> =

Environ Transport Econ &

The cost of - all
governmental  activities
this year was $133.8
million  compared to
$123.2 million in fiscal

Rec & Inton Long
Phys Comm Term Debt
Pratect  Facllities

year 2007. The increase resulted primarily from the Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB)
expense of $5.3 million recognized for the first time in fiscal year 2008, $1.3 million increase in

depreciation expense,

of $2.4 million.

$2.4 million increase in public safety operations, $1.5 million in
transportation operations and $2.8 million in economic and physical development
operations, offset by a decrease in recreation and community facilities operations
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» The City’s four largest govemmental programsi— public safety operations (47.4%),
environmental protection (9.1%), administration (14.3%), and transportation operations (15.2%),
represent 86% of the total governmental activities.

Business-type activities: Revenues for the City's business-type activities were $253.5 million, while
total expenses were $201.8 million in fiscal year 2008. The increase in net assets for business-type
activities, after transfers out of $3.3
million, was $48.4 million, resulting in
net assets of $581.8 million. Particularly,
net assets increased in the electric,
water and wastewater activities by $46.2
million, resulting in net assets of $594.2 79 2%
million in fiscal year 2008, compared to 1%
$548.0 million in fiscal year 2007. By
far, the largest portion of these net
assets, $477.7 million or 80.4 percent,
reflects the investment in capital assets
less any related debt still outstanding
that was issued to acquire those assets.
Capital contributions and operating
funds offset by capital asset
depreciation contributed to the $45.2
million increase in Capital Assets, Net of 90%
Related Debt in the electric, water and

wastewater activities.

Current and Other Assets in the electric, water and wastewater activities decreased $8.3 million or 4.5
percent. The recognition of purchase power expenses reduced prepaid assets by $40.6 million and
was offset by a $32.2 million increase in cash and investments in fiscal year 2008. The prepaid power
asset was the result of a prior year payment to Progreis Energy Carolinas Inc. that is further discussed
in Note 1 of the financial statements.

Revenues by Source - Business Activities

m Charges for Services

H Operating grants and
contributions

® Capital grants and
contributions

R interest Earned on
Investments




— CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE ————————————

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, oufflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City’s financial requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of fiscal year 2008, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $35.8 million, while total fund balance reached $53.0 million. As a
measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures and transfers out. Unreserved fund balance represents
27.6 percent of total General Fund expenditures and transfers, while total fund balance represents 40.9
percent of that same amount.

The North Carolina Local Government Commission strongly recommends that local governments
maintain an available fund balance of at least 8 percent of annual general fund expenditures. The
City’s goal is to maintain an undesignated fund balance of at least 10 percent of the succeeding year's
expenditure budget. Undesignated fund balance is the component of unreserved fund balance after
consideration for management’s policy designations. The City’s unreserved fund balance totals $35.8
million. Of this amount, $9.2 million is designated for fiscal year 2008 appropriations and $8.8 million is
designated for specific purposes. The remaining unreserved fund balance of $17.8 million is
undesignated.

The fund balance of the City’s general fund increased by $3.4 million during the current fiscal year. Key
factors in this increase can be attributed to other financing sources and uses as follows:

s A one-time transfer of $3.1 million from the Emergency Telephone System Fund. This amount
represents the remaining Enhanced 911 Wireline fund balance that remained at December 31,
2007 that was transferred to the General Fund pursuant to State legislation adopted in 2007.

e Capital lease proceeds (loan proceeds) of $3.3 million received for the purchase of vehicles
and equipment.

s A one-time transfer of $1.9 million to the Solid Waste Recycling Fund to purchase waste
containers for the new residential recycling program.

e« A $1.0 million increase in the annual transfer to the Transportation Capital Project Fund for the
street resurfacing program.

At June 30, 2008, the governmental funds of the City reported a combined fund balance
of $65.7 million, a 1.3 percent decrease from the previous year.
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— B CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE
General Fund Budgetary Highlights

|

The City Council originally approved a $128.9 million general fund budget for fiscal year 2008, which
represented a $5.4 million or 4.3% increase from the original budget for fiscal year 2007. The tax rate
remained the same at 53 cents per $100 value. Consistent with City Council strategic priorities, the
fiscal year 2008 budget appropniation increases werq primarily attributed to a $3.6 million increase in
employee compensation to maintain market compeT-titive pay levels for public safety and general
employees, a $1.1 million increase in street resurfacing funding and a combined increase of $608,000
for replacement computers and increased information technology staffing. Additionally, the budget

continued enhanced vehicle and equipment replacement funding initiated in fiscal year 2007.

Ad valorem taxes were projected to generate an additional $0.9 million, reflecting an increase of $2.7
million due to natural growth and improved collections offset by a reduction of $1.9 million due to
payment due dates for 2006 annexation taxes. Natural growth in other taxes was expected to generate
an additional $2.7 million compared to the fiscal year 2007 original budget. Other revenue and
financing sources combined were projected to increas}e by $1.7 million, despite the loss of $575,000 of
program revenues due to the termination of the Safellight prograni. The City also expected to receive
$1.8 million in capital lease proceeds by financing the purchase of new solid waste vehicles and
equipment. The $3.6 million fund balance appropriation for one-time expenditures and use of debt
management plan reserves for fiscal year 2008 was lower than the $5.1 million fund balance

appropriation originally budgeted in fiscal year 2007.

During fiscal year 2008, the City Council approved buﬁget increases of $13.3 million or 10.3% bringing
the General Fund budget for fiscal year 2008 to $142.2 million. Generally, budget amendments fall into
one of three categories: 1) amendments made to a&iijust the estimates that are used to prepare the
original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new
funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in
appropriations that become necessary to cover items encumbered or designated for a special purpose

in the previous year’s budget but remain unexpended at the end of the previous year.

Fiscal year 2008 budget appropriation increases included approximately $7.7 million for expenditure
items previously encumbered or designated from the fiscal year 2007 budget, $2.8 million for funding of
future capital improvements through the debt manabement plan, $2.0 million for a transfer to the
Recycling Fund for start-up costs for the curbside recycling program and $743,000 for increased street
light expenditures.

The increased budget appropriations were primarily furi?ded by additional fund balance appropriations of
$7.2 million, primarily related to prior fiscal year encumbrances and designations. Other significant
revenue and other financing source increases budg_etlad during the fiscal year included $4.3 million in
additional interfund transfers, primarily from the Enh@nced 911 Fund for financing of future capital
improvements and from the Electric Fund for the ingreased street light expenditures and increased
revenues from electric sales, and $1.7 million in capital lease proceeds from the financing of additional

vehicles and equipment.

Actual revenues and other financing sources for ithe General Fund were less than the final
amended budget by $9.3 million. This shortage primarily relates to a budgeted fund balance
appropriation of $10.8 million, which is an other financing source that is not reflected as actual current
year revenue. The $10.8 million fund balance a#propriation was offset by interest earned on
investments which exceeded the final budget by $1.0 million, ad valorem taxes which exceeded the
final budget by $612,000, other taxes which exceeded the final budget by $1.1 million, functional
revenues which fell $865,000 short of bldget projections, $750,000 of budgeted loan
proceeds which were not received, and other revenue and financing sources combined
which exceeded the final budget by $348,000.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE

Actual expenditures and other financing uses were less than the final amended budget by $12.6 million.
There were approximately $4.7 million in expenditures budgeted for fiscal year 2008 which were
encumbered, designated or reserved for donations at June 30, 2008 to be re-appropnated in fiscal year
2009. There was $3.4 million more budgeted for current and future debt service for the debt
management plan than was actually expended during the fiscal year. Actual rent expenditures for the
Festival Park Plaza master lease were $636,000 less than the required budget amount, and there were
significant positive budget variances of $915,000 in personnel costs across all departmental budgets.
The balance of the variance results from a variety of departmental operating expenditures being under
budget.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2008, totals $1.1 billion (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets
include infrastructure; buildings; improvements; automotive equipment; office and other equipment; and
electric, water, and wastewater utility systems.

Major capital asset investments and contributions during the fiscal year included the following:

$6.0 million for installation of wastewater utility infrastructure in annexed areas

$5.8 million for water and wastewater infrastructure rehabilitation

$4.2 million for public safety (police and fire) vehicles and equipment

$3.9 million in street infrastructure projects

$2.9 million for solid waste and street maintenance vehicles and equipment

$2.7 million for purchase and installation of water meters

$2.5 million for vehicles and equipment for the electric, water and wastewater funds
$2.1 million for electric distribution system transformers

$2.0 million for transit vehicles and equipment

$1.7 million for Fire Station 15 construction in progress (located at Buhmann Drive)
$1.7 million for installation of underground cable in planned developments

$1.4 million for electric service extensions
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City of Fayetteville's Capital Assets (dollars in thousands)
(net of accumulated depreciation)
Figure 4

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Total

2007 2008

2007 2008

2007 2008

Land
Infrastructure

36,858 %
298,967

36,112
291,034

Electric utility system - -
Wastewater system - -
Water system - -

Equipment and machinery - -

Buildings and improvements 46,164 48,698

Equipment, furniture and
fixtures

Computer programs - -
Vehicles 8,759 13,010
Construction in progress 5,216 3,109

4,786 3,725

14,553 § 15772

169,014
256,511
149,882

9774

44,577

167,014
243,760
137,421

9,997

45,476

530

3,748
3,775
| 25,980

890

3,223
7,150
20,341

51411 $
298,967
167,014
243,760
137,421

9,997

91,640

51,884
291,034
169,014
256,511
149,882

9,774

93,275

5,316

3,748
12,534
31,176

4,615

3,223
20,160
23,450

Total $ 400750 $ 395688

$ 1052984 $ 1072822 |

_§ 652234 § 677,134

Additional information on the City's capital assets gan be found in Note 3 of the Basic Financial

Statements.
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Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2008, The City had total bonded debt outstanding of $210.2 million
(before loss on defeasance, see Note 5 in the financial statements), of which $31.1 million is debt
backed by the full faith and credit of the City. In addition, the City has a number of capital leases and
several installment notes outstanding. A summary of total long-term debt is shown in Figure 5.

Bonded Debt, Capital Leases and Installment Notes Payable (dollars in thousands)
Figure 5

Govemnmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008

Bonded debt 37,444 32812 § 162,554 § 167,885 189,008 200,697

DOhbligations under capital leases 14,991 14,344 -
Installment note payable 5 64,306 20,487 64,401 20,487

- 14,991 14,344

Total long-term debt 52,440 47,156  § 226,950 % 188,372 279,390 235,528

The City’s total long-term debt decreased by $43.9 million, or 15.7%, during the past fiscal year. This
decrease is primarily due to principal payments of $57.1 million in the electric fund, of which $42.7
million is attributed to the purchase power revenue notes, offset by the issuance of $17.0 million in
revenue bonds in fiscal year 2008.

The City's other long-term obligations include a liability for the estimated amount of vacation and sick
leave to ultimately be paid (compensated absences) of $8.0 million and, due to the implementation of
GASB No. 45 in fiscal year 2008, a $6.7 million liability for Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB).

The City's most recent general obligation bond ratings, received in connection with the Series 2005
General Obligation Public improvement Bonds, are shown below:

City (governmental activities):
Moody's Investor Services Aa3
Standard & Poor’s AA-

With the exception of the fiscal year 2008 Revenue Bonds, all other outstanding utility system revenue
bonds carry an Aaa and AAA rating from Moody's and Standard & Poor's, respectively, based on
municipal bond insurance policies. In fiscal year 2008, the City received underlying bond ratings for its
utility system revenue bonds as shown below. These underlying ratings were assigned to the fiscal
year 2008 Revenue Bonds and were one of the determinants that allowed the City to issue these bonds
without insurance. Factors leading to this upgrade as cited by the agencies include, but are not limited
to, the strong debt coverage, healthy liquidity, strengthening financial profile, competitive rates and
proactive strategic planning of the City’s Public Works Commission. The City continues to meet all debt
covenants and continuing disclosure requirements.

Public Works Commission (business-type activities):

Moody's Investor Services Aa3
Standard & Poor's AA-
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The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can
issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government’s
boundaries. The legal debt margin for the City is approximately $740.1 million. The City has no bonds
authorized but unissued at June 30, 2008.

Additional information regarding the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 5 on pages F-20 — F-30
of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates
Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009

Governmental Activities: The City Council originally approved a $134.8 mitlion general fund budget for
fiscal year 2009, which represented a $5.9 million or4.6% increase from the original budget for fiscal
year 2008. The tax rate remained the same at 563 cents per $100 value. Consistent with City Council
strategic priorities, significant fiscal year 2009 budget appropriation increases included a $3.7 million
increase in employee compensation to maintain mal%ket competitive pay levels for public safety and
general employees, $2.25 million for land acquisition and park development for the Hope VI project, a
$1.2 million general fund contribution for water and sewer infrastructure for the Phase V annexation
area, and a $1.4 million increase in vehicle and equipment replacement funding. These increased
appropriations were offset by a $1.6 million reduction %in street light expenditures consistent with a new
agreement between the City Council and the Public Works Commission, a $500,000 reduction in street
resurfacing funding, and a $375,000 reduced transfer o the City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation as

compared to the original fiscal year 2008 budget.

Natural growth is expected to generate an additional $2.0 million in ad valorem taxes compared to the
fiscal year 2008 original budget, offset by a reduction {of $334,000 in prior year tax collections primarily
due to less outstanding 2006 taxes for the Phase V annexation area. Other revenue sources combined
are expected to increase by $513,000. Transfers to the general fund are projected to be $627,000 less
than the original fiscal year 2008 budget primarily dueto a $1.1 million reduction in the transfer from the
Electric fund (due to the $1.6 million reduction for street lights and $521,000 increase in the regular
transfer) and a $504,000 transfer from the Recycling| fund to begin the repayment of start-up funding
provided by the general fund for the new recycling program. The $9.7 million fund balance
appropriation for one-time expenditures and use of debt management plan reserves for fiscal year 2009
exceeds the $3.6 million fund balance appropriation originally budgeted in fiscal year 2008. No capital
lease proceeds were budgeted for fiscal year 2009 as compared to the $1.8 million budgeted in the
original fiscal year 2008 budget.

The City Council has since approved budget increases of $4.9 million or 3.6% bringing the General
Fund budget for fiscal year 2009 to $139.7 million. The budget increase is primarily due to $4.7 million
appropriated by Council for expenditures encumbere!d, designated or reserved for donations at June
30, 2008.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of tpe City’s finances for those with an interest in this

area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional
information should be directed to the Chief Financial Officer, City of Fayetteville, 433 Hay
Street, Fayetteville, NC 28301.

C-14



HJ:a.":LD"el

BELL
¥ To 3
THE CITY OF g

VNITOHNVD

&g qD s‘sﬁﬁﬁ

Basic Financial Stafements

These basic financial statements provide a summary of the financial position of
all governmental and business activities and the majer and nonmaior funds. They

also serve as an infroduction to the more detailed schedules that follow in

subsequent sections,
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2008

Business Total
Governmental Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
Assets )
Cash and investments $ 69843397 § 4799344 $ 117,836,838
Taxes receivable 3,487,086 - 3,487,086
Accounts receivable 5,347,817 35,985,991 41,333,808
Internal balances (1,944,688) 1,944,688 -
Assessment receivable 498,602 - 498,602
Due from other governments 9,129,535 2,258,912 11,388,447
Inventories 115,378 14,112,180 14,227 558
Prepaid expenses 602,615 166,393 769,008
Noncurrent portion of note receivable 7,761,875 - 7,761,875
Restricted asset - cash and investments 8,878,395 79,071,264 87,949,659
Restricted asset - accounts receivable 3,907 425,188 429,095
Restricted asset - collateral pledged - 268,165 268,165
Other assets 341,829 6,101,770 6,443,599
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 39,220,992 36,113,822 75,334,814
Other capital assets,
net of depreciation 356,466,610 641,020,211 097,486,821
Total assets 499,753,350 865,462,025 1,365,215,375
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 12,492,734 27,797,518 40,290,252
Restricted liabilities - accounts payable - 8,257,561 8,257,561
Unearned revenues 1,276,648 29,117 1,305,765
Unearned deposits 84,470 3,184,036 3,268,506
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 11,347,374 17,115,049 28,462,423
Due in more than one year 46,194,812 175,562,107 221,756,919
Other liabilities 607,565 3,288,625 3,896,190
Total liabilities 72,003,603 235,234,013 307,237,616
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 354,482,766 505,941,437 860,424,203
Restricted for;
Capital projects 1,047,622 2,075,219 3,122,841
Debt service - 11,462 . 11,462
Grant compliance 1,883,445 - 1,883,445
Unrestricted 70,335,914 122,199,894 192,535,808
Total net assets $ 427,749,747 $ 630,228,012 $ 1.057,977,759

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2008

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 45689,040 § 8590940 $ 54,279,980
Taxes receivable 3,270,102 70,792 3,340,894
Accounts receivable 13,051,069 8,114,467 21,165,536
Interfund receivable 283,097 - 283,097
Assessments receivable 498,602 - 498,602
Inventories 115,378 - 115,378
Restricted asset - cash and investments 3,305,317 5,573,078 8,878,395
Restricted asset - accounts receivable - 3,907 3,907
Total assets § 66212605 § 22353184 § 88,565,789
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 7683847 & 1811683 $ 9,495530
Uneamed deposits 84,470 - 84,470
Deferred revenues 5,435,547 7,857,658 13,293,205
Total liabilities 13,203,864 9,669,341 22,873,205
Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute 12,334,683 1,739,864 14,074,547
For encumbrances 2,934,985 1,525,895 4,460,880
For inventories 115,378 - 115,378
For downtown 234,296 - 234,296
For county recreation 1,563,891 - 1,563,891
For streets - Powell Bill - 884,606 884,606
For JP Riddle Stadium 17,507 - 17,507
For donations 26,166 - 26,166
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent year's expenditures 9,163,213 - 9,163,213
For special purpose 5,550,563 1,033,562 6,584,125
For debt service 3,238,353 - 3,238,353
Undesignated 17,829,706 - 17,829,706
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Designated for subsequent year's expenditures
Special revenue - 2,047,602 2,047,602
Capital projects - 5,148,775 5,148,775
Undesignated
Special revenue - 303,539 303,539
Total fund balances 53,008,741 12,683,843 65,692,584
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 66212605 § 22353184 § 88,565,780

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pari of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Recenciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2008

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Ending fund balance - governmental funds $ 65692584

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 383,310,745

Land $ 36,111,744
Construction in progress ' 3,109,248
Infrastructure 444,787 892
Buildings and improvements 69,608,867
Furnlture and equipment 21,177,819
Vehicles 33,924,543
Accumulated depreciation | {215,409,368)

B 393,310,745

L
I

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for currentLperiod expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 12,028,557

Costs of bond issuance are current-period expenditures in the funds, but will be
deferred in the statement of net assets and amortized over the life of the outstanding
debt. (265,731)

Prepaid expenses are cumrent-period expenditures in the funds, but are assets not
available to pay current-period expenditures and, thereforzlg, are capitalized. 457 951

Accrued tax penalties receivable are not available to pay fpr cumment-period
expenditures and, therefore, are not recorded in the funds. 216,984

Intemal service funds are used by management to charge|the costs of Warranty fleet

expenses, fleet maintenance expenses and insurance expenses to individual funds.

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in govemmental

activities. 13,940,861

Accrued interest payable on long-term debt is not a cumrent expenditure and therefore
not recorded in the funds. (360,422)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not duejand payable in the current

period and therefore are not reported in the funds. Those I:iabilities consist of: (67,271,782)
General obligation bonds 5 (21,527,155)
Revenue bonds (11,285,000}
Cbligations under capital leases (14,343,916)
Net OPEB obligation (5,304,416)
Compensated absences | (4,811,295)
$ {57,271,782)

|
Net assets of governmental activities $ 427,749,747
E-2

The notes Lo the financial statement are an
integral part of this statement.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues

Ad valorem taxes

Other taxes and fees

Intergovernmental

Other functional

Miscellaneous

Interest earned on investments
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Administration
Public safety
Environmental protection
Transportation
Economic and physical development
Recreation and community facilities
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fees
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses)
Capital leases, bonds and other debt
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund halance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
$ 54,765,677 - § 54765677
42,260,128 6,514,026 48,774,154
10,073,526 2,936,361 13,009,887
4,693,419 - 4,693,419
2,121,648 698,616 2,820,264
2,500,914 529,758 3,030,672
116,415,312 10,678,761 127,094,073
17,889,199 3,915 17,893,114
60,280,439 3,152,031 63,432,470
10,865,339 2,606,973 13,472,312
8,872,388 3,019,828 11,892,216
996,524 3,880,694 4,877,218
10,925,575 1,255,803 12,181,378
6,725,427 1,955,769 8,681,196
1,449,064 632,673 2,081,737
118,003,955 16,507,686 134,511,641
{1,588,643) (5,828,925) (7,417,568)
3,303,940 - 3,303,840
13,215,515 6,784,936 20,000,451
{11,572,367) (5,152,010) {16,724,377)
4,947,088 1,632,926 6,580,014
3,358,445 (4,195,999) (837,554)
49,650,296 16,879,842 66,530,138
$ 53,008,741 12,683,843 § 65692584

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Reconciliation of the Statement of liQevenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of aFliviﬁes are different because:;

Net change in fund balances - total govemmental funds $ (837,554)

Governmental funds report capital ouflays as expenditures. However, in the

statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is thejamount by which

depreciation ($18,880,318) exceeded capita! outlay {$14,848,256) in the current

period. ' {4,032,060)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving lcapital assets (i.e.
sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets (1,113,260)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 230,790

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the cumrent financiat resources of govermmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, government funds report
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar jtems when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences inthe freatment of long-

term debt and related accounts. (585,790)
Principal repayrnents 5 8,713,422
Net OPERB Obligation (5,304,418)
Change in compensated absences (597,857)
Cther miscellaneous {93,199)
New issuance - capital lease (3,303,840)
3 (585,790)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not rgquire the use of

current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as ] xpenditures in 54,893

governmental funds.

The net revenue of certain activities of intemal service funds is reported with

governmental activities. 3,187,579
Change in net assets of governmental activities (3,085,402)

The notes fo the financial statements are an
integral part of this statement. E-4




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
With Final
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 54155249 $ 54,153,835 § 54765677 § 611,742
Other taxes and fees 41,131,371 41,131,371 42,260,128 1,128,757
Intergovemmental 9,630,718 9,635,218 10,073,526 438,308
Other functional 5,423,043 5,558,465 4,693,419 {865,046)
Miscellaneous 1,838,134 1,850,667 2,121,648 270,981
Interest earned on investments 1,489,165 1,491,100 2,500,814 1,009,814
Total revenues 113,667,680 113,820,756 116,415,312 2,594 556
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Administration 20,373,979 19,613,262 17,689,199 1,724,063
Public safety 60,315,800 62,923,868 60,280,439 2,643,429
Envirenmental protection 8,646,618 12,329,702 10,865,339 1,464,363
Transportation B, 275,576 9,778,340 8,872,388 905,952
Economic and physical development 1,715,261 2,085,210 996,524 1,088,686
Recreation and community facilities 11,534,198 12,083,245 10,925,575 1,157,670
Debt service:
Principal 7,169,902 10,075,310 6,725,427 3,345,883
Interest and fees 1,785,600 1,477,508 1,449,064 28,444
Total expenditures 119,816,834 130,366,445 118,003,955 12,362,490
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (6,149,254) (16,545,689) {1,588,643) 14,957,046
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital leases, bonds and other debt 2,515,886 4,188,145 3,303,940 (884,205)
Transfers in 9,130,203 13,442 816 13,215,515 (227,301}
Transfers out (9.094,974) (11,837,366} (11,572,367} 264,999
Appropnated fund balance 3,598,129 10,752,094 - (10,752,004}
Total other financing sources (uses) 6,148,254 16,545,689 4,947,088 (11,598,601}
Net change in fund balances $ - % - 3,358,445 § 3,358,445
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 49,650,296
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 53,008,741

The notes to the financlal statements are an

integra) part of this stalement. E-5




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Net!Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2008

{

Enterprise Funds
Water and Other Internal
Elactric Wastewater Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
Assats
Current assets
Cash and Investments $ 34804196 5§ 7518255 § 5872950 $ 47,993,441 § 15563417
Accounts recaivable 19,045,081 1¢,BOS.SUB 2,596,514 38,244,003 1,002,809
Interfund recelvable 180,618 148,290 - 338,908 -
Inventories 12,444,036 1,485,743 182,401 14,112,180 -
Prepaid expenses 100,372 _ | 66,021 - 166,383 144,864
Total unrestrictad current assets 66,384,303 45,61 8,617 8,851,905 100,855,825 16,710,980
Restricted curment assets
Restricted cash and investments 34,917,380 4?,738,240 415,644 79,071,264 -
Accounts recelvable 3,272 421,916 - 425,168 -
Collateral pledged in lieu of depostts 266,165 ! - - 268,165 -
Total restricted cumant agsats 35,188,817 ﬂ.lso,tss 415 6844 79,764 617 -
Totsl current assets 101,573,120 60,079,773 9,067,548 180.620,442 16,710.960
Noncurrent assets
Other assets 2,019,700 4,060,070 22,000 6,101,770 -
Caplial assets 220,608,517 428,336,053 28191463 - 877,134,033 2,376,854
Total noncurrent assels 222826217 432 306,123 28,213,463 683,235,803 2376654
Tota! assets 324,199,337 502,375,606 37.281,012 863,656,245 18,087 834
Llabllities and nst assats
Current liabllities to be paid from
unrestricted assets I
Accounts payabla and accrued expenses 16,395,462 I6.994,1!59 2,407,687 27,797,518 2,626,762
Curment portion of jong term dabt 8,881,428 8,453,621 - 17,115,049 97,324
Inlerfund payables - - 283,097 283,097 338,908
Accrued vacation - - 151,345 151,345 9,407
Tots! ¢urrent liabliiles 1o be psid .
from unresiricled assets 25 056 890 1!7,447,810 2842309 45,347 008 3,082,421
Current fabiliies to be pald from
restricted assats
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5,000,242 13,257,319 - 8,257 561 -
Total current liabiities to be paid
from restricted essets 5,000,242 13,257,319 - 5,257,561 -
Total current fabililes 30,057,132 2'0.705.129 2.842.309 53,804,570 3,082,421
Noncurrent liabiities
Unsamed deposils 14,851 3,169,085 - 3,184,036 -
Nel OPEB Ogpligation 470,663 524,392 258,867 1,254,162 102,309
Dsfermed revenues - - 29,117 29,117 12,000
Long-term dsbt 23,413,417 150,743,183 - 174,156,800 61,366
Gthar liabilities 41,976 3,246.649 - 3.288 B25 -
Total noncurrent abililes 23 941,227 157,683,309 288,004 161,912 540 175,675
Total liabiltios 53,998,359 1758,388,438 3,130,313 235517110 3,256,086
MNat assets |
Invested In caphal assets, net of related debt 189,423,458 2q8,326.516 28,191,463 505,841,437 2,376,854
Resfricted net essets
Capltal projacts 3,272 11,856,303 415,644 2,075,219 -
Dabt service 11,462 - - 11,482 -
Unrestricted 80,762,786 34,004 639 5,543,592 120,311,017 13,452,884
Total nat assets $ 270200978 § 323087458 $ 34.150,859 628,339,135 _§ 15829738
Soma amounts eporied for business-typa activities in the statement of net lassats are different
hecause certain intemai sarvice fund assets and fizbilities are Included with businass-typa activities. 1,866,877
Net assets of businsss-type activites $ 630,228,012

The notes 1o the financlal slataments are an Integral par of this slatement. =333




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Enterprise Funds

Water and Other Internal
Electric Waetewater Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 166,899,655 § 55317032 § 3,823,778 § 226,040,465 $ -
Other revenus from operations - - 174,737 174,737 487,878
Interfund charges and employee contributions - - - - 20,785,798
Propristary operating revenue - 1,763.025 - 1,763,025 -
Total operating revenues 166.899,855 57,080,057 3,998,515 227,978,227 21,273,676
Operating expenses
General and administrative 10,254,699 11,002,002 - 21,256,701 -
Power supply and generation 110,156,696 - - 110,156,696 -
Water purification and distribution - 11,494,150 - 11,494,150 -
Sewer collection and treatmeant - 9,535,221 - 9,535,221 -
Parsonnal - - 3,977,084 3,977,094 398,788
Maintenance and operalions - - 5,358,740 5,358,740 17,997,801
Depreciation 13,993,321 14,069,673 1,864,998 29 927,992 302912
Total operating expenses 134,404,716 46,101,046 11,200,832 191,706.594 18,699,501
Operating income (loss) 32,494,939 10,979,011 {7.202317) 36,271,633 2,574,175
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Interest earned (expensed) on investments 3,129,719 2,023,538 238,940 5,392,197 624,563
Federal and State grants - - 2,329,168 2,329,168 -
Miscellanecus revenue - - a0,271 90,271 -
Gain {loss) on disposal of capital assels (117,680} 22,802 1,643 {93,235) 26,362
Interest expense {1,821,280) (5,430,068) {18,022) (7.269,380) -
Amortization {1,139,871) (925,398) {22,000) (2,087,269) -
Miscellaneous expense - - (275,143) ° (275,143) -
Issue costs (112,843) [368,053) - (480,896) -
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) {61,865) (4677.179) 2,344,857 {2,394 287) 650,925
Income {loss} before transfers 32,432,974 6,301,832 {4,857,460) 33,877,346 3,225,100
Transfers in - 2,577,141 4,120,310 6,697,451 200,000
Transfers out {9,991,013) (14,292) - {10,005,305) (168,220)
Capital contributions 405,586 14,452,981 2,890,339 17,748 806 -
Change In net assets 22,847,547 23,317,662 2,153,189 48,318,398 3,256,880
Total net assets - beginning 247,353,431 300,669,796 31,897,510 12,572,858
Total net assets - ending § 270,200878 § 323987458 % 34,150,699 $ 15829,738

Some amounts reported for business-type activiies in the stalement of activities are different

because the net revenue {expense) of certain internal service funds is reporied with business-type activities. 69,301
Change in net assels of business-type activilies $ 48,387,699

The notes to the financial etalements are an integrai part of this slalement. | E-7




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Enterprise Funds

Water and Other Internal
Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service
Fund . Fund Funds Total Funds
Operating actlvities
Cash received from customers $ 166861620 §[57,734,093 2,211,700 % 226,807,413 $ 20,456,878
Othar operaling revanue - 173,741 173,741 487,878
Cash received as deferred revanuas - - - - 3,104
Cash paid 1o or on behall of employees for services (13,158,048) (13,870,476) {3,717.278) (30,746,802) (2,052,448)
Cesh peid for goods end services (2,066,497) (16,912,965} (3,762,173) (22,761,635) {15,629,040)
Cash paid for power supply end ganeration (58,853,720) | - - [58,853,720) -
Net cash provided by (used in) [
operating activities 92,782,355 26,950,652 {5.114,010) 114,618,997 3,296,372
I
Noncapital financing activities .
Transfers in - 2,577,141 4,120,310 6,697,451 200,000
Federal end Siate grants - - 2,329,168 2,329,168 -
Miscellaneous - - 90,271 90,271 -
Transfers out 19,891.013) | {14,292) - 110,005,305) (168,220}
Net cash provided {used) by noncapital
financing activities {9.891,013) | 2,562,849 6,539,749 {885,415) 31,780
Capftal and related financing actlvitles
Proceeds from sale ot assets - 22,802 1,643 24,445 26,362
Proceeds from debt issuance - 17,225,332 - 17,225,332 -
Payment of issue cost for dabt issuance - (364,959} - {364,959) -
Contributed capltal received 405,588 1,688,921 2,890,339 4,984,846 -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (16,086,156) i(24,264,459) {3,414,787) (43,775,402) (385.679)
Principal paid on debt maturities (51,113,083) (6,030,921) {31,605) (57,175,609) -
Interest paid on debt maturities [1.934,133) (5,798,121} [18,022) {7.750,278) -
Net cash provided {used) by capltal and f
related financing activities (68,737,786) |(17,621,405) (572,432) (86.831,623) (359.317)
T
Investing activities
Interest and dividends 3,129,719 2,023,538 238,840 5,392,197 624,563
MNat chenge In invasiments 14,069.432 1,119,342 - 15,178,774 -
Net cash provided (used) by investing actlvities 17,188,151 | 3,142,880 238,840 20,570,971 624,563
Net Increase {decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents/investrents 31,242,707 i 15,134,876 1,092,247 47,469,930 3,593,398
Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year 26,254,589 115,681,965 5,196,387 47,132,941 11,970,019
End of year $ 57,497,296  § 30,816,941 3 6,288,634 § 54,602,871 3 15,563,417
Cash and cash equivalanis $ 57.497,296 $ 30,816,941 3 6,288,834 3  P4,602.871 5 15,563,417
Invesiments 12.024.2B0 | 20,437,554 - 32,461,834 -
Total cash and cash equivalents/investments $ B8521,576 $ 151,254,495 § 6,288,634 § 127,064,705 ] 15,583,417
I
Unrestricted cash and equivalentsfinvestments $ 34604196 $ 7516255 % 5872900 §  47,893.441 $ 15,563,417
Resfricled cash and equivalents/investments 34.917,360 1 43,738,240 415,644 79,071,264 -
Total cash and cash equivalentsfinvestments $ 99521576 $ 51,254,485 5 6,288,634 § 127,064,705 § 15,563,417

The notes ta the financial statements are an integraf parl of this statament. E38




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Enterprise Funds

Water and Other Internal
Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds

Reconcillation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by
{used In) operating activities
Operafing income {loss}) $ 32494933 3§ 10979011 $  (7.202317) $ 36271633 & 2,574175
Adjustments to reconclle operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating

actvilles:
Depreciation 13,993,321 14,089,673 1,664,998 29,927,992 302,912
Nenoparating payments for goods and services - - (275,143) (275,143) -
Allowance far uncaollsctible accounts (24,233) {13,351) - (37,584 -
Recognition of prepald purchase cosl, nat of related
discount 40,572,791 - - 40,572,791 -
Change in assats and liabllities
{Increase} decreasea in accounts recelvable 57,816 562,716 (1,443,077 (B22,543) (455,764)
{Increase) decrease in Inventory 3,167 (492,192) {169,923) (650,948) 156,844
(Increase) decraase in prepaid items - - - - 104,311
(tncrease) decrease in Intemal balances (122,290) {112,607) - (234,897) 159,984
{Increase) decrease in othar current essets (60,640) (44,668) - (105,308) -
{Increase) decrease in other assets {383,319) (849,917) - (1,033,236) -
{Increase) decrease in uneamed deposits 14,951 {74 514) - {58.563) -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued liabiiities 5,768,979 2,242,769 1,868,079 9,879,327 295,724
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated
absences (4.010) {40,162} (14.518) {58.,69Q) 52,773
Increass (decrease) in defermed revenues - - (086} (996) 3,104
Increase (decrease) in net OFEB Obligation 470,883 524,392 258,887 1,254,182 102,309
Total adjustments 60,287,416 15,971,641 2,088,307 78,347,364 722,197

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities § 92782355 § 26,950.652 § {5,114.010) § 114,618997 § 3,286,372

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Conirbuted capital assets
FIF Credits Awanded
FiF Credits Appliad

45
i

$ 120965089 § -

§_12.995.599

$ (653,227} ¢ - $ {653,227 _§ -
$ 275.688 - % 275688 3

eallesle

¥
f

The notes to the financial statemants ere an integral part of this statement E-8




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2008
|
Pension Private-purpose
Trust Fund Trusts
Assets
Cash and investments
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,168,080 % 1,335,598
Mutual funds—bonds 2,051,324 -
Mutual funds—US equities 1,646,996 -
Mutual funds—intemational equities 467,587 -
Total cash and investments 6,333,997 1,335,598
Interfund receivable - 33
Accounts receivable 6,289 14,633
Total assets ! 6,340,286 1,350,264
Liabilities
Accounts payable 45,023 -
Interfund payable - 33
Total liabilities 45,023 33
Net assets
Held in Trust for pension benefits and ather
purposes 6,295,263 1,350,231
Total net assets $ 6295263 $§ 1,350,231

The notes to the financlal siatements are an integral part of Ihis statement. E-10




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Asseis
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Pension Private-purpose
Trust Fund Trusts
Additions

Other revenue from operations $ - % 36,952
Contributions 379,323 118,534
Investment eamings (185,484) 58,361
Total additions 193,839 213,847

Deductions
Benefit payments and premiums ) 555,826 200,208
Total deductions 555,826 200,208
Change in net assets (361,887} 13,639
Total net assets - beginning 6,657,250 1,336,592
Total net assets - ending $ 6,295,263 § 1,350,231

The notes to the financial statements are an
integral part of this staterment. E-11
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Notes to Financial Statements

These rotes are intended to communicate information necessary for a fair
presentation of financial position and results of operations that are not readily
apparent from, or cannot be included in, the financial statements themselves. The
notes suoplement the financial statements, are an integral part thereof, and are

intended to be read together with the financial statements.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

(This page left intentionally blank)




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Fayetteville, North Carolina (the “City”) was established in 1783. The City operates under a
council-manager form of government and provides the following services: administration, public safety,
environmental protection, transportation, economic and physical development, recreation and
community facilities, electric, water and wastewater utility, transit, airport services, and solid waste
recycling. The City receives substantial revenues from Federal and State sources. Ad valorem taxes
on the City of Fayetteville's citizens represent a significant portion of the general government revenues.

The financial statements of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant accounting policies of the City are described below.

A - Reporting Entity

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements present the City and its component units. GASB Statements number 14 and 39 define
compenent units as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it
appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and a) it is able to impose its will on that
organization or b} there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens upon, the primary government.

These statements provide two methods for reporting component units in the financial statements of the
primary government: discrete presentation and blending. Discrete presentation means that data will be
presented in one or more separate columns to the right of the primary government data columns.
Blending means that the component unit's financial data is reported as though the unit is part of the
primary govemment. If the units provide services or benefits exclusively, or almost exclusively, to the
primary government, or if the component units and the primary government have "substantively
identical boards,” the legally separate component units should be incorporated by blending. If the units
do not meet these criteria, their data should be incorporated by discrete presentation.

Based on evaluating these characteristics, the following is a brief review of the component units in the
City's reporting entity:

City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation

The City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation is a non-profit corporation formed for the purpose of
issuing bonds to build City facilities and park improvements, as well as for the defeasance and
refunding of 1989 certificates of participation. The City ieases the City Hall, police administration
buiiding, Festival Park and Westover Recreation Center from the Corporation with rental revenues
being used by the Corporation to retire the bonds. The Corporation is shown in a blended presentation
as the Corporation provides services exclusively to the City. The operating fund of the Corporation is
presented in the accompanying financial statements as a nonmajor special revenue fund.

F-1




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

City of Fayetteville,}orth Carolina
A
June 30, 2008

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc.

The City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc. is a non- proflt corporation formed for the purpose of assisting
in the development of the Linear Park downtown. Llnear Park, Inc. is shown in a blended presentation
as it provides services exclusively to the City. Its operating fund is presented in the accompanying
financial statements as a nonmajor capital project fund.

B - Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These statements include
the financial activities of the overall govermment. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double
counting of intemal activities. These statements distir‘guish between the governmental and business-
type activities of the City. Governmental activities " generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchahge transactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison bet}Neen direct expenses and program revenues for
the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been
made in the funds have been reversed for the stateri-nent of activities. Program revenues include (a)
fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b} grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as

general revenues.

The Government-wide Statements are presented on the full accrual basis in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Unltbd States of America. Fiduciary funds are not
included in these statements.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds,
including its fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category
— governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements
is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as chargel‘s for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. %noperating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from non-exchange transagtions or ancillary activities.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
The City reports the following major governmental fund:

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government except those that are required to be accounted for in another
fund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, state grants, and various other taxes and
licenses. The primary expenditures are for public safety, parks and recreation, street maintenance, and
solid waste.

The City reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds. Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The Emergency Telephone System Fund
accounts for the fees charged to telephone customers to fund the 911 system. The Federal and State
Financial Assistance Fund accounts for federal and state grants. The Storm Water Management Fund
accounts for specified fees and maintenance of the storm water system. The City of Fayetteville
Finance Corporation Fund accounts for debt service on certain municipal buildings and park
improvements.

Capital Project Funds. Capital Project Funds account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of governmental capital assets. The General Government Fund accounts for
information technology and other projects supporting the entire government. The Public Safety Fund
accounts for projects supporting the public safety services provided by the City. The Recreational and
Cultural Fund accounts for parks and similar projects. The Transportation Fund accounts for projects to
improve transportation and related services throughout the City. The Water and Sewer Fund accounts
for Lumbee River Electric Membership Corporation Territory Agreement revenues and associated
activities. The Bond Improvement Fund accounts for bond proceeds and their use. The Economic and
Physical Development Fund accounts for construction and improvement of various public facilities. The
Linear Park Fund accounts for projects associated with development of the Linear Park Downtown.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Electric Fund. This fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the Butler-Warner Generation
Plant and the transmission and distribution of electricity to the City of Fayetteville and surrounding
areas.

Water and Wastewater Fund. This fund accounts for the operations of the water and wastewater
facilities for the customers within the City of Fayetteville and surrounding areas.

The Electric Fund and the Water and Wastewater Fund are operated under the Public Works
Commission (PWC) of the City of Fayetteville.

The City reports the following nonmajor enterprise funds: The Transit Fund accounts for operation of
the municipal transit system. The Airport Fund accounts for the operation and capital asset
acquisition/construction of the Fayetteville Regional Airport. Established in fiscal year 2007-2008, the
Solid Waste Recycling Fund accounts for specified fees and residential recycling services.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
The City reports the following fund types:

Iinternal Service Fund. Internal Service Funds account for the financing of services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencres of the City, on a cost reimbursement basis.
The Warranty Fleet Fund is used to account for the accumulatlon and allocation of costs associated
with internally leasing vehicles. The Fleet Malntenancq Fund was used to account for the accumulation
and allocation of costs associated with maintenance of the City's vehicles. The City closed this fund in
fiscal year ending June 30, 2008 since this function has been transferred to the PWC Fleet
Maintenance Fund. The Insurance Fund is used to account for the accumulation and aliocation of costs
associated with health, workers compensation, and I:abmty claims. The PWC Fleet Maintenance Fund
accounts for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with the City’'s and PWC's fleet
maintenance activities.

Pension Trust Fund. These funds accumulate confributions in order to pay retirement benefits to
eligible participants. The Special Separation Allowance Pension Trust Fund accounts for the Law
Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowan¢e, a singie-empioyer, and public employee
retirement system. The PWC Supplemental Pension %rust Fund accounts for the PWC Supplemental
Employees' Retirement Plan, a single-employer defined benefit pension plan.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund. These funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for -
use by others. The Police Benefit and Fireman's Benefit Trust Funds account for resources held in
trust for these two groups of individuals. All resourceslof the funds, including any earnings on invested
resources, may be used to support the orgamzatlons activities. There is no requirement that any
portion of these resources be preserved as capital.

C - Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the year
using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardl| sS of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange fransactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or
giving) equal value in exchange, inciude property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the ﬁscEl year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue
from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) [charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and confributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internglly dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The City's proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with the funds’ principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the City’s utility funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating
expenses for the City’s utility funds include the costs of sales and services, general and administrative
services and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred, except for principa! and interest on general long-term debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have
matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not
susceptible to accrual at June 30, since taxes receivable are materially past due and are not
considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year.

Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of
property taxes on all registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law,
Cumberland County is responsible for biling and collecting the property taxes on registered motor
vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County, including the City of
Fayettevilie. For motor vehicles registered under the staggered system, property taxes are due the first
day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal
year in which they become due. Therefore, the City's vehicle taxes for vehicles registered in
Cumberland County from March 2007 through February 2008 apply to the fiscat year ended June 30,
2008. Uncollected taxes, which were billed during this period, are shown as a receivable in these
financial statements and are offset by deferred revenues.

All GASB Statements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”) Statements issued on or
before November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with the GASB are applied in both the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the City are recognized as
revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because
generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues, which are unearned at year-
end, are recorded as unearned revenues.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes where the amounts are
reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the
government’s electric, water and wastewater functions and various other functions of the government.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

VI

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various functions concerned.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

D — Budgetary Data

Budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted
for the general, selected special revenue, and enterprise funds. All annual appropriations lapse at
fiscal year end. Project and grant ordinances are adopted for the Federal and State Financial
Assistance special revenue fund and capital projeci:t funds. Enterprise capital project funds are
consolidated with the operating funds for reporting purposes. The City's internal service funds are
intra-governmental service funds, which operate un:der financial plans that were adopted by the
governing board at the time the City's budget ordinance was approved, as is required by the General
Statutes. All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may
not legally exceed appropnations at the departmental level for the general, selected special revenue,
and proprietary funds and at the project level for selfacted special revenue and capital project funds.
Any revisions that alter total appropriations at the department or project level, as appropriate, of any
fund must be approved by the City Council. During the year, several amendments to the original
budget were necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the
govemning board must adopt an interim budget that cd:overs that time until the annual ordinance can be
adopted.

E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity
Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the City are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required
by State taw (G.S. 159-31). The City may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings
association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the City may establish time
deposit accounts such as NOW and Super NOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of
deposit.

State law {G.S. 159-30(c)) authorizes the City to inveé,t in obligations of the United States or obligations
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North
Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina IoLaI government or public authority (including the
North Carolina Educational Assistance Authority); obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal
agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial |paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North
Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The City's investments with maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-money market
investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the
NCCMT Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value,
which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value.
Money market investments that have a remaining matunty at the time of purchase of one year or less
and non-participating interest earnings and investment contract are reported at amortized cost.
Nonparticipating interest eaming investment contracts are reported at cost. ‘

tin accordance with State law, the City has invested in securities which are callable and which provide
for periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until maturity. These investments are reported
at fair value as determined by quoted market prices.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents. The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds consider
demand deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash and cash equivalents.

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-136(a)], the City levies ad valorem taxes on
property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on
September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6. The taxes are
based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2007.

Receivables

The receivables in the utility funds consist primarily of customer receivables for utility services. The
City provides allowances for uncollectible receivables equal to the estimated collection losses to be
incurred. The estimated losses are computed using the experience method. The City grants credit to
residential, business and industrial customers, substantially all of whom are local to the City of
Fayetieville area.

Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables

The City recorded a receivable in the special revenue fund for $2,381,233 related to grants or other
financial assistance that has been awarded. Many of these awarded grants are not expected to be
collected and are scheduled to be forgiven based upon note compliance; therefore, they are included in
the allowance for uncollectible receivables.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

The City operates enterprise funds that provide credit in the normal course of business to customers
primarily located in Fayetteville, North Carolina. The’ City performs on-going credit evaluations of its
customers and maintains alilowances for doubtful accounts by using the experience method to estimate
collection iosses to be incurred. Credit losses, when realized, have been within the range of the City’s
estimations and historically have not been significant. Other receivables that historically experience
uncollectible accounts are also shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is
estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years.

The receivables shown on the Statement of Net Assets are presented net of the following allowances
for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2008:

Fund
General Fund:

Taxes recejvable $ 801,455

Accounts receivable 27,445

Assessments receivable 117.811
Special Revenue Fund:

Taxes receivable 11,722

Accounts receivable 2,381,233
Transit Operating:

Accounts receivable 4,335
Airport Operating:

Accounts receivable 8,082
Electric Fund:

Accounts receivable 200,206
Water and Wastewater Fund:

Accounts receivable 64,869

Total $ 3,617,158

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “interfund receivable”
or “Interfund payable” on the balance sheet in the fund financial statements and as “internal balances”
on the statement of net assets in the government-wide financial statements.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost ¢r market. The costs of governmental fund-type
inventories, which consist of materials and supplies, are recorded as expenditures when they are
consumed rather than when they are purchased. The costs of enterprise fund-type inventories, which
consist of generation fuel, materials and spare pal:fs, are expensed when used rather than when
purchased.



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2008, are recorded as
- prepaid items.

On November 30, 2005, the City entered into a Prepayment Agreement with Progress Energy
Carolinas, Inc. (PEC) to make a prepayment for an estimated 24 months' capacity and energy for its
electric system. The Prepayment Agreement provided for a prepayment of $141,111,075 by the City
for the capacity and energy to be delivered by PEC beginning January 2006 under the existing Master
Power Purchase and Sale Agreement between PEC and the City (see Note 9), having a value under
such agreement of $157,550,000, resulting in a discount of $16,438,925 or 10.4341%, on the purchase
price of such capacity and energy that would otherwise be due. The prepayment is recorded as a
prepaid asset and is amortized monthly based on the actual capacity and energy billed by PEC,
whereas, the discount is recorded as a liability and is amortized monthly at 10.4341% of the actual
capacity and energy billed. The City's purchase power expenses include the capacity and energy
charges net of the recognized discount. During the year ended 2008, the City recognized $40,572,791
of capacity and energy charges under the prepayment agreement which reduced the prepayment to its
June 30, 2008 balance of $0.00. As a result, the discount was amortized by $4,233,406, leaving an
unrecognized discount balance of $0.00. The City issued $142,140,000 in Revenue Notes to provide
funds for the prepayment (see Note 5).

A Summary of the current year activity is as follows:

Original Payment Discount
Balance at June 30, 2007 $ 40,572,791 5 (4,233,406)
Recognized during the year
ended June 30, 2008 (40,572,791) 4,233,406
Balance at June 30, 2008 $ - 5 -

Restricted Assets and Liabilities

In the capital project and enterprise funds the City has classified as restricted the assets representing
deposits, reserves, capital project appropriations and unexpended bond proceeds because their use is
completely restricted to the purpose for which the bonds were issued or the purpose for which the funds
were set aside. Liabilities due to be repaid from restricted assets are classified as restricted liabilities.

Interest Rate Swaps

The City enters into interest rate swap agreements to modify interest rates on outstanding debt. Other
than the net interest expenditures resulting from these agreements, no amounts are recorded in the
financial statements.




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policigs (continued)
Capital Assets

The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 ($2,500 in
the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds) and lan estimated useful life in excess of one year.
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reporte:ci at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
capital assets are recorded at their. estimated fair value at the date of donation. General infrastructure
assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001 and storm water network assets acquired prior to July 1, 2004 are
reported at estimated historical cost using deflated curtent cost. Utility (electric, water, and wastewater)
capital assets purchased or constructed since 1958 arg recorded at cost. Contributed utility assets are
recorded at estimated value at the date of acquisition. Utility assets acquired prior to 1958 are carried
on an estimated cost basis. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of
the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not ‘capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the rglated capital assets, as applicable. Gains and
losses on dispositions of capital assets are credited or icharged to operations.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-fine method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Useful Lives
Asset Class 1l (Years)
Infrastructure ' 15 - 50
Buildings . 40
Utility plant systems 20 -45
Improvements 5-15
Vehicles 5-20
Furniture and equipment 5-10
Computer equipment 3

Interest expense that relates to the cost of acquinng or constructing capital assets in enterprise funds is
capitalized. Interest expense incurred in connection with construction of capital assets is reduced by
interest earned on the investment of funds borroweE for construction in accordance with FASB 62
"Capitalization of Interest Cost in Situations Involving Certain Tax Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts
and Grants."

Unearned Deposits

Facility investment fees credit is given on a dollar per dollar basis for off-site water and wastewater
approach mains necessary to serve City approved pfojects. The facility investment fees credit, if not
utilized in the initial development, will be available 40 the developer for use in other City approved
projects for a period not to exceed 5 years from the original contract date, unless otherwise stated in
contract or through extension approved by the City.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Nofe 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the City provides for the accumulation of up to seven (7) weeks earned vacation
leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the City's government-wide and proprietary
funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences, including compensatory time and holiday
pay, and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.

The City's sick leave policy provides for unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does
not vest but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the City has no obligation for
the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for that sick leave has been made.
However, the City's sick leave policy for Electric and Water and Wastewater Fund employees allows
25% of accumulated sick leave to be paid at the time of retirement. A liability for the estimated amount
of this sick leave to ultimately be paid is included in the financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with an
original maturity date of three months or less to be cash equivalent.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
govermmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premiums or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute.

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are

not appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.
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NOTES TO FlNANClAIl. STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

State law {G.S. 159-13(b) {16)) restricts appropriation of fund balance for the subsequent year's budget
to an amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities,
encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as those amounts stand at the close
of the fiscal year preceding the budget year.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Reserved

Reserved by State statute - portion of fund balance, in addition to reserves for encumbrances and
reserves for inventories, which is not available for appropriation under State law [G.S. 159-8(a)]. This
amount is usually comprised of accounts receivable and interfund receivables, which have not been

offset by deferred revenues.

Reserved for encumbrances - portion of fund balanFe available to pay for commitments related to
purchase orders or contracts which remain unperformed at year-end.

Reserved for inventories - portion of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because it
represents the year-end fund balance of ending inventories, which are not expendable, available
resources.

Reserved for downtown - portion of fund balance available for appropriation for projects in the Central
Business District. :

Reserved for county recreation — portion of fund balance available to pay for the recreational activities
of Cumberland County.

Reserved for Streets - Powell Bill — portion of fund balance available for appropriation but legally
segregated for street expenditures. It represents the balance of the total unexpended Powell Bill funds
which is an annual grant received by the City from the N.C. Department of Transportation.

Reserved for J.P. Riddle Stadium — portion of fund balance available to pay for the operation of the J.P.
Riddle Stadium.

Reserved for Donations - portion of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because it
represents donor-imposed restrictions.

Unreserved

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures - Eortion of the total fund balance available for
appropriation that has been designated for the adopted 2008 - 2009 budget ordinance.

Designated for special purpose - portion of fund balance identified for specific uses in the general fund
and special revenue funds.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(continued)

Designated for debt service - portion of fund balance designated to meet future principal and interest
payments on outstanding debt.

Undesignated - portion of total fund balance available for appropriation that is uncommitted at year-end.
F - Reclassification

For comparability, certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to
conform to the current year presentation.

G - Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

H — Pronouncements Implemented in the Current Year

During Fiscal Year {FY) 2008, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 45 “Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions”. It is
effective in three phases based on a government’s total annual revenues in the first fiscal year ending
after June 15, 1999. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2006, for
phase 1 governments (those with total annual revenues of $100 million or more); after December
15, 2007, for phase 2 governments ({those with total annual revenues of $10 million or more but less
than $100 million); and after December 15, 2008, for phase 3 governments (those with total annual
revenues of less than $10 million). Earlier implementation is encouraged. In addition to pensions, many
state and local governmental employers provide other post-employment benefits (OPEB) as part of the
total compensation offered to attract and retain the services of qualified employees. OPEB includes
post-employment healthcare, as well as other forms of post-employment benefits (for example, life
insurance) when provided separately from a pension plan. This Statement establishes standards for the
measurement, recognition, and display of OPEB expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets),
note disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplementary information (RSI) in the financial reports of
state and local governmental employers. See Note 12 for more details.

During Fiscal Year (FY) 2008, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 50 “Pension
Disclosures”. This statement requires defined contribution plans to disclose in the notes to financial
statements and required supplemental information, additional information to improve the transparency
and decision usefulness of financial reporting. See note 11 for more details.

| - Upcoming Pronouncements
GASB Statement No. 49, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation
Obligations.” This statement provides guidance on how to calculate and report the costs and

obligations associated with pollution cleanup efforts. The requirements of the new statement become
effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2007.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

GASB Statement No. 51, “Accounting and Fina¢cial Reporting for Intangible Assets.” This
statement establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets including
easements, water rights, timber rights, patents, trademarks, and computer software. The requirements
of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2009.

GASB Statement No. 53, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments.”
Statement 53 is intended to improve how state and local governments report information about
derivative instruments—financial arrangements used by governments to manage specific risks or make
investments—in their financial statements. The Sf@tement specifically requires governments to
measure most derivative instruments at fair value in their financial statements that are prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The guidance in this
Statement also addresses hedge accounting reqUirerﬁents and is effective for financial statements for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2009, with earlier application encouraged.

The City is currently in the process of evaluating these' statements and the impact that they will have on
the City.

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
A - Deposits

All of the City's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the
Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the Federal Depository insurance coverage level are
collateralized with securities held by the City's agents in the City's name. Under the Pooling Method,
which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with secunties held by the State
Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary
capacity for the City, these deposits are considered to/be held by the City's agents in their names. The
amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing
deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling
Method report to the State Treasurer the adequaq'y of their pooled collateral covering uninsured
deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the City or the escrow agent.
Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the City under the
Pooling Method, the potential exists for undercollatezl*ization, and this risk may increase in periods of
high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of Narth Carolina enforces strict standards of financial
stability for each depository that collateralizes public dEposits under the Pooling Method.

The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial
institutions. The City relies on the State Treasurer|to monitor those financial institutions. The City
analyzes the financial soundness of any other financijal institution used by the City. The City complies
with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are
properly secured.
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Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

At June 30, 2008, the City's deposits had a carrying amount of $32,750,346 less a sweep of
$27,232,000 and a bank balance of $9,387,191. Of the bank balance, Federal Deposit Insurance
covered $500,000, and $8,887,191 was covered by collateral under the Pooling Method. The City had
$13,171 in the petty cash and change funds.

B - Investments

The funds of the City of Fayetteville are invested in compliance with the provisions of North Carolina
General Statutes 159-30 and 1539-31. The City’s Investment Policy is a board-approved policy.

At June 30, 2008, the City investment balances were as follows:

Less than €
Fair Value Months 6-12 Months 1-5 Years
.8, Government Securities $ 736 § - % - 8% 736
LS. Treasuries 30,099 30,099
U.5. Govermment Agencies 50,261,948 2,988,750 47,273,198
Commercial Paper 35,086,557 35,086,557
N.C. Education Assistance Authority 45,350,000 45,350,000
N.C. Capital Management Trust - Cash portfolio 72,801,425 72,801,425
N.C. Capital Management Trust - Term portfclic 206,375 206,375
Total Primary Govemment 203,737,140 153,474,456 2,888,750 47,273,934
Equity Mutual Funds - Fiduciary Funds 4,187,435 4,187,435 - -
Reporting Entity Total $ 207924575 § 157,661,891 $ 2,888,750 $ 47,273,934

Third-party custodians who take delivery of the investment securities on behalf of the City held
investments of $4,187,435 for the Supplemental PWC Pension Trust Fund.

The North Carolina State Education Assistance Authority (NCSEAA) instruments in the portfolio have
final stated maturities ranging from 2015 to 2036. Historically they could be redeemed at par and the
interest rate reset every 28 days making the effective maturity date the next reset date, until February
2008 when the auctions began failing. At that time the instruments became illiquid and there was no
secondary market. As discussed in Note 15, these instruments have subsequently been redeemed.

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair vaiue losses arising from rising interest
rates, the City's investment policy provides for structuring the investment portfolio so that securities
mature to meet cash requirements for the ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell
securities on the open market prior to maturity. Also the City’'s investment policy requires purchases of
securities to be laddered with staggered maturity dates and limits all securities other than Treasuries,
Agencies, and North Carclina state and local bonds to a final maturity of no more than three years.
Treasuries, Agencies, and North Carolina state and local bonds are limited tc matunties not exceeding
ten years.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

Credit Risk. The City has no formal policy regarding credit risk; however, the State law limits
investments in commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations (NRSROs). The City minimizes credit rigk by limiting investments to the types allowed by
North Carolina General Statutes 159-30. The City di\flersiﬁes the investment portfolio to minimize the
impact of potential losses from any one security or from any one individual issuer. Also, the City pre-
qualifies the financial institutions brokers/dealers and requires them to meet specific financial and
registration conditions. As of June 30, 2008, the Cit))“s commercial paper was rated A1 by Moody’s
Investors Service and P1 by Standard & Poor’s. The QiW’s investments in the NC Capital Management
Trust Cash Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor's as of June 30, 2008. The
City's investments in the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio are not rated. The Term
Portfolio is authorized to invest in obligations of the UIS. government and agencies, and in high grade
money market instruments as permitted under North!Carolina general statutes 159-30 as amended.
The City's investments in US Agencies (Federal Home Loan Bank, Fannie Mae, and Federal Farm
Credit Banks) are rated AAA by Standard & Poor’'s and Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the nisk that in the event of failure of
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. The C| ty requires that investment securities are in the
name of the City of Fayetteville and are held by a centralized independent third-party custodian. The
City reqguires that the independent third-party custodian issue a safekeeping receipt to the Chief
Financial Officer listing the specific instrument, rate, maturity, and other pertinent information as
evidence. All investment security purchases and sales are on a delivery verses payment basis and are

made through the independent third-party custodian by written instruction.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City places no limit on the amount that the City may invest in any
one issuer. More than 5% of the City's investments are in NC Cash Management Trust securities, NC
Education Assistance Authority securities, Federal Home Loan Bank securities and Federal Farm
Credit Bank securities. These investments are 35.8%, 22.3%, 11.4% and 7.1%, respectively, of the
City's total investments.

Reconciliation to cash and investments:

Totals per footnote:

Total investments (including escrow) $ 207,924,575
Cash (demand deposits) 31,414,715
Less Sweep (27,232,000)
Fireman's Relief Fund 1,335,631
Petty cash 13,171
Total cash and investments $ 213,456,092
Totals per Statement of Net Assets:
Cash and investments - unrestricted $ 117,836,838
Cash and investments - restricted 87,948,659
Pension trust cash and investments 6,333,997
Private-purpose trust cash and investments 1,335,598
Total cash and investments $ 213,456,092
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City of Fayetteville, North Carclina

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 3 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Vehicles
Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment, fumiture and fixtures
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Governmental activity capital assets, net

$ 400,750,152

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Increases Decreases Transfers June 30, 2008
$ 36,857,645 346,327 § (1,092,228) $ - % 36,111,744
5,216,444 480,003 - {2,587,189) 3,108,248
42,074,089 826,330 (1,092,228) {2,587,1988) 39,220,992
440,694,369 4093,523 - - 444 787,892
67,446,081 2,221,053 - 2,587,199 72,254,333
21,175,722 905,861 {137,943) - 21,943,640
31,379,965 7,187,172 (3,004,318) - 35,562,819
560,696,137 14,407,609 (3,142,261) 2,587,199 574,548,684
(141,727,107) (12,026,993) - - {153,754,100)
(21,282,400) (2.273,595) - - (23,555,995)
(16,389,506) (1,913,113) 83,613 - (18,219,006)
(22,621,061) (2,969,527) 3,037,615 - (22,552,973)
(202,020,074) (19,183,228) $ 3.121,228 § - (218,082,074)
358,676,063 356,466,610
$ 395,687,602

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities of the primary

government as follows:

Administration

Public safety
Environmental protection
Transportation

Economic and physical development

Recreation and cormmunity facilities

Capital assets held by certain iniernal
service funds are charges fo the various
governmental functions based on the

usage of ihe funds

Total depreciation expense

225,948
3,236,116
1,459,943

12,494,013

632,693

831,603

302,912

$ 19,183,228
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Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued)

* Disposals in construction in progress are shown as additions to capital assets being depreciated.

Business-type activiies:
Electric Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction In progress

Total capltal assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreclated:
Electric utility system
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and machinery
Computer programs
Vehicles
Office equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for;
Ele¢tric utility system
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and machinery
Computer programs
Vehicles
Office equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capltal assets being depreciated, net

Electric fund capital assets, net

Water and Wastewater Fund

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Wastewater system
Water system
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and machinery
Computer programs
Vehicles
Office equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Wastewater system
Water system
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and machinery
Computer programs
Vehicles
Office equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Water and Wastewater fund capital assets, net

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 ‘ Increases Decreases * Transfers June 30, 2008
3 4,546,467 $ 688,799 $ - $ - 3 5,235,266
9,541,476 11,322,752 (11,340,544} * - B,523,684
14,087,943 12,011,551 (11,340,544) - 14,758,950
|
329,141,218 13,285,686 {1,736,113) - 340,680,791
37,513,291 101,222 (8,486) - 37,606,027
14,308,625 516,397 {114,309) 141,852 14,852,565
10,769,597 560,837 (205,151} - 11,125,283
5,061,660 1,012,197 {256,263) (59,107) 5,758,487
1,670,654 - {106,880) 16 1,563,790
398,465,045 l 15,476,339 (2,427,202) 82,761 411,596,943
|
{162,126,905) {11,001,210) 1,451,080 - (171,677,035)
{10,846,023) (1,253,632) 7,637 - (12,192,018)
(6.892,135) (648,703) 105,649 (15,925) {7.451,114)
(8,869,997) (805,752) 205,153 - (9,470,586}
(3,677,595) (209,776) 256,261 58,951 (3,572,159)
(1,418,971} | (74,248) 106,781 {16) {1,386,454)
(193,931,626) ‘ $ (13,993,321) § 2,132,561 3 43,010 (205,749,376)
204,533,419 205,847,567
_$ 218,621,362 _$ 220,606,517
3 7,686,100 $ 530,660 $ (291} $ - $ 8,216,469
10,001,356 33,079,821 {38,085,721) * - 4,995,556
17,687,456 : 33,610,581 {38,086,012) - 13,212,025
348,748,061 20,523,354 - - 369,271,415
216,959,010 17,274,662 (8,359) (125,927) 234,090,386
4,222 796 70,611 {(8,486) - 4,284,921
8,223,720 578,396 (338,831) (15,925) 8,447,360
10,044,434 528,776 (230,271) - 10,342,939
4,985,174 1,110,596 (403.526) 59,107 5,751,351
832,586 | - {71,149) {16) 761,421
584,015,781 | 40,086,395 (1,060,622) (82,761) 632,958,793
(104,987 ,520) (7,772,1B3) -~ - (112,759,703}
(79,537,427) (4,684,303) 4,322 - (84,217 ,408)
(2,027,496) {137,431} 7,637 - (2,157,290}
(5,967 ,549) {423 ,305) 299,621 15,925 (6,075,308}
(8,195,732) (809,378) 230,270 - (8,774,840)
(3.255,835) (232,143) 396,880 {58,051} (3,150,049)
(760,401) | {10,930} 71,148 16 {700,167)
(204,731,960)  § (14,069,673) $ 1,009,878 §  (43,010) (217,834,765)

388,283,821

$ 406,971,277
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City of Fayetteville, North Carglina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Increases Decreases Transfers June 30, 2008
Business-type activities (continued):
Nonmajor funds
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 3 2,320,593 $ - 3 - $ 2,320,593
Canstruction in progress 6,417,040 1,036,347 (1,631,133) 5,822,254
Total capital assets not being depreciated 8,737,633 1,036,347 {1,631,133) 8,142,847
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 42,430,740 1,631,133 - 44,061,873
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2,678,396 284,108 - 2,962,504
Vehicles 6,734,784 2,094,331 - 8,829,115
Total capital assets being depreciated 51,843,920 4,009,572 - 55,853,492
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements {25,717,630) (1,309,380} - (27,027,010)
Furniture, fixtures and eguipment (2,148,696) (162,453) - (2,311,149}
Vehicles {6.073,552) (393,165) - (6,466,717)
Total accumulated depreciation (33,939,878) § (1.864,998) 3% - {35,804,876)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 17,904,042 20,048,616
Nonmaijor fund capital assets, net $ 26,641,675 $ 28,191,463
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 677,134,033

§ 652,234,314

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities of the primary government as follows:

Electric $ 13,993,321
Water and Wastewater 14,069,673
Transit 555,788
Airport 1,309,200
Total depreciation expense $ 29,927,992
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 4 — Accounts Payable

Unrestricted and restricted accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following as of June

30, 2008:
Nonmajor Internat Water and Nonmajor
Ganaral Governmantal Service . Subtotal Electric Wastewater Enterprise Fiduciary

Accounts payable $ 5459937 $ 190,765 $ 990,396 $' 6641008 § 19,731,712 $ B127.075 $ 2,083,804 % -
Incurred but not reported - - 1,543,568 1,543,568 497,605 497,604 - -
Contracts payable 12,927 1,341,610 - 1,354,537 - - 247,717 -
Interest payable - - - - 370,021 1,847,205 . - -
Retainage payable - 251,357 - 251,357 - - - -
Salaries and '

benefits payable 2,210,983 27,951 102,818 2,341,752 796,366 778,624 76,346 45,023

Total $ 7683847 § 1811683 § 2636,782 ''12,132,312 § 21,395,704 § 12251508 § 2407867 $ 45023
Adjustment for interest payable 360,422

$ 12,492,734
—————————

Reconcliiation to accounts payable on the financial statements:
Unrestricted $ 7683847 31811683 § 2636782 § 12132312 $ 16395462 § 8994189 § 2407867 $ 45023
Restricted - 5,000,242 3,257,319 - -

$ 7683847 § 1811,683 § 2636782 § 12932312 § 21395704 § 12251508 § 2,407,867 $ 45023

Adjustmant for interest payable 360,422
§ 12,492,734

i

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations
A - General Obligation indebtedness

The City has issued general obligation bonds (to include general obligation bonds for the benefit of the
Electric and Water and Wastewater funds) to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities. General obligation bonds are directrobligations and pledge the full faith, credit, and
taxing power of the City. They are serviced by the general fund and the water and wastewater fund.
Principal and interest payments are appropriated when due. General obligation bonds outstanding for
the year ended June 30, 2008, are as follows:

Govemmental activities
$4,300,000 1987 Public Improvement Bonds
due in various annual instaliments through April 1, 2009;
interest at various rates between 5.8% and 6.0%. $ 100,000

$13,800,000 1996 Public Improvement Bonds due in|various
annual instaliments, through December 1, 2016;
interest at various rates between 4.9% and 5%. 6,050,000




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)

$4,900,000 1999 Street Improvement Bonds due in various

installments beginning March 1, 2001 through March 1, 2017;
interest at 4.32%.

$275,000 2000 Public Improvement Bonds due in
various annual installments beginning April 1, 2002

through April 1, 2021; interest at various rates between
4.9% and 5.1%.

$2,400,000 2000 Street Improvement Bonds due in
various installments beginning April 1, 2002 through
April 1, 2018; interest at various rates between 4.9%
and 5%.

$5,535,000 2002 Refunding Bonds due in various
annual installments through June 1, 2016;
interest at various rates between 2% and 4%.

$3,805,000 2003 Refunding Bonds due in various
annual installments through June 1, 2010;
interest at various rates between 2% and 3%.

$8,450,000 2005 Public Improvement Bonds due in
various semiannual installments through December 1, 2025;
interest at various rates between 3.40% and 5.25%.

Less: Loss on Defeasance

Total governmental general obligation bonds

Business-type activities

$2,770,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 1996

due in various annual instaliments through December 1, 2014:
interest at various rates between 4.9% and 5%.

$2,750,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 1999

due in various annual instaliments through March 1, 2017;
interest at 4.30%.

$3,335,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2000
due in various annual instaliments through April 1, 2021;
interest at various rates between
5.0% and 5.1%.

F-21

$ 2,425,000

198,061

1,900,000

3,295,000

955,000

7,175,000

22,098,061

(670,906)

_21,527,1565

1,670,000

1,400,000

2,401,939
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued}

$3,625,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2002
due in various instaliments through June 1, 2021,
interest at various rates between 3.5%

and 4.5%. $ 2,625,000

$5,195,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2003 due in various annual
instaliments through May 1, 2009; interest at various

rates between 2.25% and 2.5%. 945,000
9,041,939

Less: Loss on Defeasance (72,707)
Total business type general obligation bonds 8,969,232
Total general obligations bonds $ 30,496,387

********iﬁ‘*
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)
B - Revenue Bonds

The City has issued revenue bonds, which have been used to finance the defeasance of certificates of
participation and the construction of facilities used in the City’'s operations. Resources generated by
the facilities’ operations are retiring the bonds. Revenue bonds outstanding for the year ended June
30, 2008, are as follows:

Governmental activities:
$16,390,000 1996 Municipal Building Projects Bonds due in
various annual instaliments through February 1, 2018; interest
at various rates between 5.40% and 5.70%. $ 2,520,000

$5,835,000 2006 Municipal Building Projects Refunding Bonds
due in various annual installments through February 1, 2018;
interest at various rates between 3.00% and 5.25%. 4,425,000

$3,920,000 2006 Municipal Building Projects Bonds for the construction of
Festival Park due in various annual instaliments through
February 1, 2012; interest at various rates between 3.00% and 5.25% 2,240,000

$2,685,000 2006 Municipal Building Projects Bonds for the construction of
Westover Recreation Center due in various annual installments
through February 1, 2019; interest at various rates between

3.00% and 5.25%. 2,100,000
Total governmental revenue bonds 11,285,000

Business-type activities

$40,755,000 Series 1997 Revenue Bonds due in various
annual installments through March 1, 2010; interest at
various rates between 4.70% and 4.90%. 2,055,000

$19,325,000 Series1999 Revenue Bonds due in various
installments through March 1, 2010;
inferest at various rates between 4.90% and 5.00%. 1,675,000

$19,175,000 Series 2001 Revenue Refunding Bonds

due in various semiannual installments

through March 1, 2016; interest at various rates between

4.10% and 5.50%. 11,495,000

$78,280,000 Series 2003 Revenue Refunding Bonds

due in various annual installments through March 1, 2024;
fixed rate swap at 3.42%. 74,755,000
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations {continued)

$55,150,000 Series A 2003 Variable Rate Revenue and Revenue
Refunding Bonds due in various annual instaliments|through
March 1, 2020; fixed rate swap at 3.74%. $ 53,750,000

$30,065,000 Series B 2003 Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds
due in various annual installments through March 1| 2009; interest
resets weekly. 6,880,000

$17,025,000 Series 2008 Revenue Bonds due in annual installments
through March 1, 2023; interest at various rates beh&een

3.5% and 4.5%. 17,025,000
Total business-type revenue bonds 167,735,000
Less: Loss on Defeasance (8,819,330)
Total revenue bonds $ 170.200,670

Total interest expense related to the revenue and geheral obligation bonds totaled $8,112,873 for the
year ended June 30, 2008 and of that amount, $175,6B6 was capitalized during the year.

C - Notes Payable

Notes payable financed by the governmental funds is serviced by the federal and state financial
assistance fund. Notes payable financed by the Electric/Water and Wastewater Funds are accounted
far in the respective funds.

The City has incurred debt to finance certain community development and capital project activities. The
City has also entered into revolving loan agreements for $7,595,127 and $16,969,848 with the State of
North Carolina. The loans were used for a Wastewater Project. The City has also entered into a loan
agreement with South River Electric Membership Co}poration (SREMC) utilizing funds made available
to SREMC by USDA-Rural Development for a water capital project. These notes payable are junior,
inferior and subordinate in all respects to the Revenue Bonds and General Obligation Bonds of the City
of Fayetteville as to lien on and source and security for payment from the revenues and in all other
respects. During 2006, the City issued $142,140,000 in Revenue Notes to provide funds to make a
prepayment under a Prepayment Agreement with PEC (see Prepaid expenses in Note 1). At June 30,
2008, the revenue note was paid in full,

Notes payable in the accompanying financial statemepts are comprised of the following:
Business-type activities
$7,595,127 State revolving loan due in various annuai

installments through May 1, 2021; interest at 2.6% paid
semiannually on May 1 and November 1. $ 4,936,833
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Note 5 - Long-term debt (continued)

$16,969,848 State revolving loan due in annual
instaliments through May 1, 2026; interest at 2.66%

paid semiannually on May 1 and November 1. $ 15,272,863

$396,000 SREMC Loan due in 10 annual installments beginning

April 5, 2006; no interest 277,200
Total business-type notes payable 20,486,896
Total notes payable $ 20.486.896

Total interest expense related to the notes payable obligations totaled $977,702 for the year ended
June 30, 2008.

D - Lease Agreements

The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing certain equipment, vehicles and
fixtures, which have been pledged as security for these leases. These lease agreements qualify as
capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the
minimum lease payments as of the date of their inception.

Capital lease obligations are comprised of the following:

Governmental activities
Capital lease obligations payable in various semi-annual
installments of approximately $339,000 in 2009
including interest at rates ranging from 4.19% to 4.55% $ 8,352,078

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly
installments of approximately $105,526 in 2009
including interest at 2.91% 1,160,795

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthty
instaliments of approximately $86,057 in 2009
including interest at 3.81%. 2,065,367

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly
installments of approximately $56,724 in 2009
including interest at 3.05% 1,304,672

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly
installments of approximately $60,852 beginning in 2009

including interest at 3.375% 3,580,274
16,473,186

Less: amount representing interest (2,129,270}
Present value of the minimum lease payments $ 14,343,916
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)

The following is an analysis of leased property under capital leases as of June 30, 2008:

Classes of Property Cost ‘ Depreciation Value
Equipment $ 8,093,600 $ 5,423,057 % 2,670,543
Vehicles 4,630,032 1,662,698 2,967,337
Buildings and improvement 16,789,51 2,297,200 14,492,318

Total $ 29,513,153 3§ 9,382,955 § 20,130,198

Total interest expense related to the capital lease obligations totaled $418,198 for the year ended June
30, 2008.

E - Changes in Long-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of changes in the City's long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June

30, 2008:
Balance Balance

July 1, 2007 Incdeases Decreases June 30, 2008 Current Portion
Governmental activities: I
General obligation debt § 24,973,296 § - §  287523% % 22,008,061 § 2,890,235
Revenue bonds 13,135,000 - 1,850,000 11,285,000 1,555,000
Capitalized leases 14,990,843 3(303,840 3,950,967 14,343,916 4,076,348
Notes payable 5,000 - 5,000 - -
Arbitrage payable 32,220 - 32,220 - -
Compensated absences 4,328,981 5,983,544 5,333,115 4,979,390 2,825 791
Net OPEB Obligation - 5406,725 - 5,406,725 -

57,465,420 $ 14/694209 $ 14,046,537 58,113,092 11,347,374
Less: loss on defeasance
(net of amortization) (664,104) (570,9086)
Total governmental activities $ 56,801,316 $ 57,542,186 § 11,347,374
Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Incréases Decreases June 30, 2008 Current Portion
Business-type activities: ‘
General obligation debt $ 10,626,704 $ - 8 1,684,765 § 9041939 & 1,629,765
Revenue bonds 162,360,000 17b25,000 11,650,000 167,735,000 12,690,000
Notes payable 64,396,136 - 43,909,240 20,486,896 1,267,849
Compensated absences 3,109,884 3]131,907 3,190,595 3,051,198 1,527,435
Net OPEB Obligation - 1j254,162 - 1,254,162 -
240,492,724 $ 201156,807 § 60,334,600 201,569,193 17,115,049
Less: loss on defeasance
{net of amortization) (10,432,576) (8,892,037) -
Total business-type activities $ 230,060,148 $ 192,677,156 $ 17,115,048

Governmental compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the general fund.
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)
F - Maturities of Long-Term Obligations

The following table summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all general long-term debt
outstanding (excluding compensated absences and arbitrage payable).

Governmental activities:

Construction and

Year Bonds Payable Revenue Bonds Improvement Leases
Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest Priricipal Interest
2009 $ 2,890,235 $ 922,002 $ 1,555,000 $ 548,358 § 678,968 $ 278,445
2010 2,850,235 809,278 1,310,000 491,250 678,968 248 687
2011 2,060,235 694,716 1,330,000 441,000 678,968 218,929
2012 2,050,235 605,023 1,360,000 373,187 678,968 189,170
2013 2,040,235 514,886 835,000 303,813 678,968 159,412
2014-2018 6,695,942 1,187,339 3,680,000 761,140 1,586,368 404,304
2019-2023 1,420,706 375,535 1,215,000 92,063 907,401 161,002
2024-2025 2,080,238 260,027 - - 756,167 47,353
22,098,061 5,368,806 11,285,000 3,010,811 6,644,776 1,707,302

Less: loss on defeasance
{net of amortization} {570,908)

$ 21,527,155 $ 5,368,806 $ 11,285,000 $ 3010811 § 6,644,776 $ 1,707,302

Year Capitalized Leases Total Debt Due

Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest
2009 $ 3,397,380 $ 207020 & 8521583 $ 1955825
2010 2,276,115 110,768 7,115,318 1,659,983
2011 672,185 58,031 4,741,398 1,412,676
2012 695,236 34,990 4,784,439 1,202,370
2013 658,214 11,159 4,212,417 989,270
2014-2018 - - 11,962,310 2,352,783
2019-2023 - - 3,543,107 628,600
2024-2025 - - 2,846,405 307,380
7,699,140 421,968 47,726,977 10,508,887

Less: loss on defeasance
{net of amortization) - - (670,908) -
$ 7,699,140 $ 421,968 § 47,158,071 $ 10,508,887

The following schedule includes the City’s expected estimated scheduie of maturity for the State
Revolving Loans, noted above as weli as the annual requirements to amoriize all long-term debt
outstanding {excluding compensated absences and arbitrage payable).
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Business-type activities:

Year General Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds Notes Payable Total Debt Due
Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest Princtpal Interest Principal Interest

2008 $ 1628765 $ 3884M $ 12600000 $ 6,307,302 § 1,267,849 § 534616 § 15587614 § 7,230,409
2010 734,765 333,503 10,675,000 1,751,130 1,267,848 502,172 12,677,614 6,586,805
2011 834,764 288,315 11,100,000 5‘,325,065 1,267,848 469,729 13,202,613 6,093,108
2042 834,765 260,627 11,520,000 4i.904,445 1,267,849 437,285 13,622,614 5,602,357
2013 834,765 222 438 11,945,000 4,480,210 1,267,849 404,842 14,047,814 5,107,491
2014-2018 2,883,823 630,820 86,925,000 15!,269,958 6,220,444 1,537,554 76,139,267 17,438,332
2019-2023 1,178,292 113,228 33,060,000 4,753,555 5,381,731 736,339 39,621,023 5,603,122
2024-2026 - - 9,820,000 | 335,844 2,545,476 135,419 12,365,476 471,263
9,041,939 2,247,423 167,735,000 47,127,509 20,486,896 4,757,856 197,263,835 54,132,688

Less: Loss on

defeasance (net

of amortization) (72,707) - (8,819,330} | - - - (8,882,037} -
$ 80969232 § 2247423 § 158015670 $ 47127509 § 20486896 § 4,757,956 $ 188,371,798 § 54,132,888

G - Legal Debt Margin

The legal debt margin of the City at June 30, 2008, approximated $740,113,523.

H - Authorized But Un-issued Debt

At June 30, 2008, the City had no bonds authorized but un-issued.

| - Restrictive Covenants

The revenue bond indentures contain significant Iimiltations and restrictions on annual debt service
requirements, use of the utility system, minimum revenue bond coverage’s and require that a reserve
fund be established and maintained. The reserve ﬂund requirements have been met by the City
through the purchase of surety bonds in the full amount of the bond requirement. The City is in

compliance with all such significant financial limitations and restrictions at June 30, 2008.

J - Interest Rate Swap

Contracts. The City has two interest rate swap agreements in effect at June 30, 2008 for the
$78,280,000 Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2003 (“Series 2003”) and the
$55,150,000 Variable Rate Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds Senes 2003A (“Series 2003A”").
The swap discussions below will be referenced to the Series 2003 and Series 2003A bonds,
respectively.
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued}

Objectives. As a means to lower its borrowing costs and increase its savings, when compared against
fixed-rate refunding bonds at the time of issuance in January 2003 and September 2003, the City
entered into an interest rate swap in connection with its Series 2003 and Series 2003A bonds. The
intention of the swap agreement was to effectively change the City’s variable interest rate on the bonds
to a synthetic fixed rate of 3.42% and 3.74%.

Terms, fair values, and credit risk. The terms, fair values, and credit ratings of the outstanding
swaps and cap as of June 30, 2008 are as foliows. The notiona! amounts of the swaps match the
principal amount of the associated debt and decline with the principal amortization on the bonds.

Associated Notional Effective Fixed Variable Rate Fair Termination Counterparty
Bond Issue Amount Date Rate Paid Received !’  Values Date  Credit Rating®?
Swaps
59% of LIBOR
Series 2003 $ 74,755,000 1/22/03 3.42% +34.5bps ($1,979,857)March 2024 Aa3/AA-/AA-
62.8 % of

LIBOR + 31

Series 2003A 53,750,000 9/11/03 3.74% bps (2,019,421)March 2020 Aa3/AA-/AA-
$128,505,000 ($3,999,278)

M LIBOR - London Interbank Offered Rate
@ Counterparty's guarantor

As of June 30, 2008 the negative fair values of the agreements may be countered by reductions in the
total interest payments required under the variable-rate bonds, creating lower synthetic rates. The
counterparty carries a guarantee by an entity (“counterparty guarantor”) rated Aa3 by Moody's
Investors Service (Moody’s), AA- by Standard and Poor’s (S&P), and AA- by Fitch Ratings (Fitch). To
mitigate the potential for credit risk, the fair value of the swap must be collateraiized based on a
schedule of the counterparty guarantor credit ratings classifications and exposure thresholds as
provided in the agreements. Such collateral would be government securities posted with a third party
custodian.

Basis risk. The swaps expose the City to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR and Bond
Market Association (BMA) converge, changing the synthetic rate on the bonds. The effect of this
difference in basis is indicated by the difference between the intended synthetic rates of 3.42% and
3.74% and the synthetic rates as of June 30, 2008 of 3.12% and 3.41%. As of June 30, 2008, the rate
on the City's Series 2003 and 2003A bonds were 1.50% and 1.52%, respectively, whereas the variable
rates from the counterparty were 1.80% and 1.85%, respectively.  For fiscal year 2008, the City
experienced an actual synthetic rate of 3.42% and 3.61%, respectively.
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Termination Risk. The City or the counterparty may terminate the swap if the other party fails to
perform under the terms of the contract. An additior"pal termination event occurs if the counterparty
ratings fall below the A category by Moody’s, S&P, Fitch, and any other Rating Agency. The swap may
be terminated by the City with 30 days notice and the counterparty can terminate the swap if the City
falls below Baa3 by Moody's, BBB- by S&P, and an equivalent investment grade from any other Rating
Agency, provided however that any termination must have insurer consent. Also, if at the time of
termination the swap has a negative fair value, the|City would be liable to the counterparty for a
payment equal to the swap’s fair value.

Swap payments and associated debt. Using rates as of June 30, 2008, debt service requirements of
the variable-rate debt and net swap payments of the Series 2003 and Series 2003A bonds, assuming
current interest rates remain the same for the term !of the bonds, were as follows. As rates vary,
variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary.

Fiscal year Variable-Rate Bond Interest Rate
Ending June 30 Principal interest . Swap, Net Total

2009 $ 2715000 $ 1,938,325 § 2,227457 § 6,880,782
2010 6,250,000 1,897,580 2,183,105 10,330,685
2011 9,175,000 1,803,124 2,072,374 13,050,498
2012 9,525,000 1,664,689 1,912,783 13,102,472
2013 9,885,000 1,620,895 1,746,082 13,151,977

2014-2018 §9,100,000 5,217,379 5,939,179 70,256,558

2019-2023 22,035,000 1,496,759 1,637,357 25,169,116
2024 9,820,000 147,300 159,474 10,126,774

$ 128,505,000 $ 15,686,061 317,877,811 § 162,068,862

Note 6 - Defeasance of Debt

In prior years, the City has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable trust funds.
New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities
that were placed in the trust funds. The investments and related fixed earnings are sufficient to fully
service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial reporting purposes, the debt
has been considered defeased and therefore removeﬁ from the City's liabilities. As of June 30, 2008,
the amount of prior year defeased debt outstanding ahd removed from the City's liabilities amounted to
$13,075,000.
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Note 6 - Defeasance of Debt (continued)

Gains and losses from debt refunding must be deferred and amortized over the lesser of the original
remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt. In addition, gains or losses related to debt
refunding are to be used in determining the carrying value of the new debt issued to finance debt
refunding. The carrying values of the 2001 Revenue Refunding Electric/Water and Sewer Bonds, the
2003 Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Electric Water and Sewer Bonds, the Variable Rate Revenue
and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A, the Variable Rate and Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2003B and the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003, have been adjusted for the
loss from defeasance (net of amortization) of $8,892,037.

Note 7 — Deferred/Unearned Revenués

The balance in deferred revenue on the fund statements and unearned revenues on the government-
wide statements at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Deferred Unearmned

Revenue Revenue
Prepaid licenses and fees not yet eamed (General) $ 667380 $ 667,360
Prepaid retiree insurance premiums (Intemal Service) 12,000 12,000
Uneamed rent (Proprietary) 29117 29117
Uneamed grant receipts (Special Revenue) 483 483
Unearned receipts (Capital Projects) 35,000 35,000
Uneamed grant receipts (Capital Projects) 561,805 561,805
Taxes receivable, net (General) 3,270,103 -
Taxes receivable, net {Spedial Revenue) 70,792 -
Acoounts and notes receivable (General) 837,719 -
Acoounts and notes receivable {Special Revenue) 7,043,214 -
Acoounts and notes receivable (Capital Project) 146,364 -
Special assessments receivable, net (General) 660,365 -
Total $ 13,334,322  $ 1,305,765

Note 8 - Risk Management

The City (excluding the electric and water and wastewater funds) is self-insured (self-funded) with
respect to insurance claims as follows: health insurance (up to $150,000 per individual and
approximately $11,849,508 for all employees for the policy ending June 30, 2008), general liability (up
to $350,000 per occurrence), workers' compensation ($600,000 per occurrence for police and fire
employees, $500,000 per occurrence for all other employees), public officials liability (up to $350,000
per occurrence), law enforcement liability ($350,000 per occurrence), and automobile liability (up to
$350,000 per occurrence). Property insurance on city buildings is insured to replacement value (less
$100,000 self-funded retention). The health insurance plan's excess coverage allows expenditures by
the City up to 125% of expected claims adjusted for industry standard trend adjustments, and for
expenditures by the City of up to $150,000 per individual. Losses from asserted claims and from
unasserted claims identified under the City’s incident reporting system are accrued based on estimates
that incorporate the City’s past experience, as well as other considerations including the nature of each
claim and relevant trend factors.
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The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. Claims have not exceeded coverage in
any of the last three fiscal years

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds are self-insured with respect to workers’ compensation
(up to approximately $1,000,000) and self-insured with respect to health insurance claims (up to
approximately $2,000,000). In addition, these funds are self-insured with respect to certain policy
deductible amounts as follows: up to $100,000 per occurrence on public officials’ liability, up to
$1,000,000 per occurrence on liability claims, and up to $250,000 per occurrence on property claims. In
addition, the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds maintain excess liability insurance
($10,000,000) to cover catastrophic losses and “first-dollar” auto liability coverage. These funds
maintain an investment account amounting to $3,500,000 to cover possible workers’ compensation and
other claims. This investment is classified under refstricted assets in the financial statements. No
accrual for possible losses attributable to incidents that may have occurred but that have not been
identified under the incident reporting system has been made, because the amount is not reasonably
estimated. Further, a liability for outstanding claims at June 30, 2008 is not accrued as the amount of
outstanding claims is not material to the financial statements.

There have been no significant reductions in insurgnce coverage since the prior year, and settled

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds car% commercial coverage for all other risks of loss.
claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the last three fiscal years.

At June 30, 2008, a liability for incurred but not repoTed claims of $3,242,380 is included in accounts
payable and accrued expenses on the accompanylng financial statements. An analysis of claims
activity for the City and the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds is presented below.

2008 2007
Liability at June 30, $ 2,912,656 $ 4,521,606
Current year claims and changes :
in estimates 14,553,308 12,026,063
Actual claim payments (14,223,584) (13.635,013)
Liability at June 30, $ 3,242380 $ 2912656

The City does not camry flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP). The City's
insurance carriers performed an analysis of the flood [naps and made a determination that the City was
not designated an “A” area (an area close to a river, lake or stream) by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency.

in accordance with G.S. 159-29, City employees (excluding the utility fund) that have access to $100 or
more at any given time of the City’s funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond.
The City's Chief Financial Officer is individually bonged for $100,000. The remaining employees that
have access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $100,000.

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Fund empﬂoyees that have access to $100 or more at any
given time of the Utility funds are insured under the Crime Policy. The policy covers Public Employee
Dishonesty (up to $1,000,000 for the Chief Executive|Officer, Chief Financial Officer (PWC), Director of
Planning and Capital Projects, and the Director of Acéounting Systems). Other employees are covered
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for money and securities losses (up to $1,000,000), and forgery, alterations and computer fraud (up to
$1,000,000). This crime policy has a $10,000 deductible.

Note 9 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial
statements for the refund of grant money.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these proceedings is not presently
determinable, it is the opinion of management that the resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

The City is subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment, While it is not
possible to quantify with certainty the potential impact of actions regarding environmental matters,
particularly any future remediation and other compliance efforts, in the opinion of management,
compliance with the present environmental protection laws will not have a material adverse effect on
the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the City.

The City's bond issues are subject to Federal arbitrage requlations, and the City has elected to review
its potential arbitrage liability annually on the bond issue dates. The arbitrage rebate payments are
payable on the fifth anniversary of the bond issue date and every fifth year subsequent to that date.
Although the actual amount to be paid is not presently determinable, the City believes that an adequate
provision for arbitrage payables has been provided for in the accompanying financial statements.

The City has authorized expenditures totaling approximately $86.6 million for capital additions and
construction of various administration, public safety, recreation, transportation, economic development,
bond improvement, Linear Park, electric, water and wastewater projects. At June 30, 2008, cumulative
expenditures to date totaled approximately $71.4 million leaving an unexpended balance of $15.2
million for projects that are expected to be completed at various dates through the year ended 2009.

tn March 2002, the City entered into a new nine-year purchased power arrangement with Progress
Energy Carolinas, Inc. (PEC) effective July 1, 2003. Beginning in July 2003, the City was committed to
purchasing a minimum load from PEC at a fixed capacity price and an annually determined energy
price. The minimum load requirements range from approximately 275 MW to 300 MW during the term
of the contract which ends in June 2012. The remaining capacity and energy will either be produced at
the Butler-Warner Generation Plant or purchased on the open market. The lowest available price will
be used to meet the City's needs. When the market price goes above the price at the Butler-Warner
Generation Plant, the City may permit the marketing of its capacity and energy for sale to the open
market.

During the year ended June 30, 2008, the purchased power cost to PEC was $90,810,146. This cost
was without consideration of savings from the Purchased Power Prepayment Agreement. The City sold
power in the amount of $176,423 on the open market in fiscal year 2008.
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Note 9 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (dontinued)

Festival Park Plaza Master Lease. On August 22, 2005, City Council adopted a resolution authorizing
the City to enter into a 20-year master lease agreemlant, subject to LGC approval, with Festival Park
Plaza Office LLC. On September 6, 2005, the LGC approved the City’s master lease application. The
master lease was executed on November 17, 2005. Under the terms of the master lease, the City is
obligated to make certain lease payments if the building is not sufficiently leased to subtenants to cover
debt service on the building throughout the term of the agreement. The building is 75.1% leased and
the City has not been required to make any payments under the master lease at this date.

The City leases a portion of the office space located in the Robert C. Williams Business Center at
Lafayetie Plaza and the Administration Building on |Old Wiimington Road to others. These lease
agreements provide for minimum rental and have terms of 3 to 10 years and are due to expire at
various dates from 2010 to 2013. Minimum lease pro |isions now in force will result in rental income for
future years as follows:

Year ending June 30 Rent

2009 3 513,380
2010 426,993
2011 176,339
2012 101,411
2013 67,040
Tofal $ 1,285,163

Note 10 - On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the City has recognized on-behalf payments for pension
contributions made by the State as revenue and an expenditure of $36,952 for the 144 employed
firemen who perform firefighting duties for the City's.fire department. These employees elected to be
members of the Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund, a cost sharing, multiple-
employer public employee retirement system established and administered by the State of North
Carolina. The plan is funded by a monthly contribution paid by each member, investment income, and
a State appropriation.

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems

The City maintains a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan (the Law Enforcement Officers’
Special Separation Allowance System), which covers the law enforcement officers of the City. In
addition, the City continues to participate in the sta*ewide local governmental retirement system, a
multiple-employer, cost-sharing public employee pension plan that covers substantially all employees.
A - Local Governmental Employees' Retirement Syg.tem

Plan Description

The City contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a

cost sharing, and multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North
Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability be%nefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article
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3 of G. S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North
Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller; 1410 Mail Service Center; Raleigh, North
Carolina 27699-1410 or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The City is
required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the City, exclusive of the Electric and
Water and Wastewater funds, the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for
law enforcement officers is 4.90% and 4.86%, respectively, of annual covered payroll. The rate for the
Electric and Water and Wastewater funds is 10.03%. The contribution requirements of members and of
the City are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The City’s
contributions to LGERS for all employees, including law enforcement officers and Electric and Water
and Wastewater funds, for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, were $5,558,873,
$5,330,791 and $5,011,993, respectively. The contributions made by the City equaled the required
contributions for each year.

B — Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commiission of the City of
Fayetteville, North Carolina

The Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of
Fayetteville, North Carolina (“SERP plan™) is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the Public Works Commission Employees’ Retirement Plan Board of Trustees. This
plan was established on April 1, 2003 to equalize benefits received under the LGERS plan to those
formerly participating in the Employees’ Retirement Plan (ERP).

The only employees eligible to participate in the SERP plan are those who met the requirements of the
ERP plan. Effective, April 1, 2003 no additional employees will enter this plan. Benefits vest after five
years of credited service. Electric and Water and Wastewater fund employees reaching the defined
retirement age are entitied to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal
to 1.8% of their final average compensation times years of credited service. The SERP plan provides
retirement benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments are provided to
members and beneficianes at the discretion of the Public Works Commission. All benefit payments by
the SERP plan will be offset by the benefits payable from the LGERS plan. The City of Fayetteville City
Council has the authority to establish and amend the retirement plan provisions. The SERP plan does
not issue a separate report. Rather, the financial report of the SERP plan is included as a pension trust
fund.

The contribution requirements of the plan members and the Public Works Commission are established
and may be amended by the City of Fayetteville City Council. There will be no employee contributions
after April 1, 2003, The Public Works Commission is required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate. The rate for the year ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was 0% of annual covered
payroll.
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The annual required contribution calculation for June |30, 2008 was determined as part of the July 1,
2008, actuarial valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary
increases of 4% per year to retirement age. Both (a)'and (b) included an inflation component of 3%.
The assumptions did not include postretirement benefit increases, which are funded by the
Commission’s appropriations when granted.

The actuarial value of assets was determined by using the market value at June 30, 2008. There was
no annual required contribution for the current year under this plan; the trend information has been
omitted from these statements. This benefit plan is a contributory, defined benefit retirement plan,
which covers all employees who participated in the ERP plan at April 1, 2003.

C - Law Enforcement Officers’' Special Separation Allowance
Plan Description

The City administers a public employee retirement |system (the “Separation Allowance™), a single-
employer; defined benefit pension plan that provides|retirement benefits to the City's qualified sworn
law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance ifs equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of
the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service.
The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be
authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D }of G. S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the Nortril Carolina General Assembly. The Separation
Allowance is reported in the City's report as a pension trust fund and does not issue separate financial
statements. The Separation Allowance covers all full-time City law enforcement officers.

At December 31, 2007, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits 29
Active plan members 360
Total 389

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting: Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the City
has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. -

Method Used fo Value Investments: Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term debt, deposits,
and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust Inyestments are reported at cost or amortized cost,
which approximates fair value. Certain longer terrx United States Government and United States

Agency securities are valued at the last reported saleg price.
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Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)
Contributions

The City is required by Article 12D of G. 8. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has
chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making contributions based on
actuarial valuations. For the current year, the City contributed $379,324, or 2.30% of annual covered
payroll. There were no contributions made by employees. The City's obligation to contribute to this
plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly.

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2006
actuariat valuation using the projected unit cost credit method. The actuarial assumptions inciuded (a}
7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of
4.5% - 12.3% per year. Both (a} and (b} included an inflation component of 3.75%. The assumptions
did not include postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was market value. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of pay on a closed basis.
The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2006 was 24 years.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The City’s annual pension cost and net prepaid pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the
current year were as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 388,882
Interest on net pension obligation (33,524)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 28,414
Annual pension cost 383,772
Contributicns made 379,324
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation 4,448
Net prepaid pension obligation beginning of year {462,399)
Net prepaid pension obligation end of year $ (457.951)

Three-Year Trend Information

Annual Percentage Net Prepaid
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending  Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2006 $ 356,650 117.42% $ (400,553)
2007 324,110 119.08 (462,399)
2008 383,772 08.84 (457,951)
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Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continue#)

The fiscal year 2007-2008 combining financial statements for the City’s pension trust funds are as

follows:

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for:

Held in trust for benefits and other purposes

Total net assets

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

ADDITIONS
Contributions
investment earnings
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments and premiums
Total deductions

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Total net assets - beginning
Total net assets - ending

Special
|Separation PWC
|Allowance Supplemental
Pension Pension Total
[Trust Fund Trust Fund June 30, 2008
$ 2,146,562 $ 4,187,435 3 6,333,997
. 6,289 - 6,289
2,152,851 4,187 435 6,340,286
19,721 25,302 45,023
i 19,721 25,302 45,023
[ 2,133,130 4.162,133 6,295,263
§ 2,133,130 $ 4,162,133 $ 6,295,263
Special
Separation PWC
| Allowance Supplemental
Pension Pension Total
Trust Fund Trust Fund June 30, 2008
5 379,323 $ - 3 379,323
98,622 (284,106) {185,484)
| 477,945 (284,106) 193,839
. 465,370 90,456 555,826
! 465,370 90,456 555,826
12,575 (374,562) (361,987)
! 2,120,555 4,536,695 6,657,250
'§ 2133130 $ 4,162,133 § 6,205,263

=3
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Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)
D - Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers
Plan Description

The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement income Plan (the “Plan”), a defined contribution
pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan
provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the City and also those non-law
employees who choose to make their own contributions. Article 5 of G. S. Chapter 135 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions for the law enforcement officers to the North
Carolina General Assembly.

Funding Policy

Article 12E of G. S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month an amount equal to five
percent of each law enforcement officer’s salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately.
The City does not make any contributions for non-law employees. All employees may make voluntary
contributions to the Plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2008, were $1,769,041, which
consisted of $846,996 from the City and $922,045 from employees.

E - Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund
Plan Description

As discussed in Note 10, the State of North Carolina contributes, on behalf of the City of Fayetteville, to
the Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund (Fund), a cost—sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation administered by the State of North
Carolina. The Fund provides pension benefits for eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have
elected to become members of the Fund. Article 86 of G.S. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Firemen's and
Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’'s CAFR includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the
State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919)
981-5454.

Funding Policy
Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the Fund. The State, a nonemployer
contributor, funds the plan through appropriations. The City does not conftribute to the Fund.

Contribution requirements of plan members and the State of North Carolina are established and may be
amended by the North Carolina Generai Assembly.
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Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, the City (excluding the Electric and Water and
Wastewater funds) administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan. For employees hired
on or after February 1, 2008, this plan provides postemployment heaithcare benefits to retirees of the
City, up to the age of 65 or until they are eligible to receive medicare benefits, provided they participate
in the North Carolina Local Governmental EmployeesJ‘ Retirement System (System) and have at least
twenty years of creditable service with the City. For employees hired prior to February 1, 2008,
employees qualified for similar level benefits after at least five years of creditable service with the City.
The City and retirees contribute to the cost of coverage for these benefits through a self-insured plan.
Also, the City’s retirees can purchase coverage for their eligible dependents at the City’s group rates.
The City also provides life insurance through the plan based on the number of years of service at
retirement. The City may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report was not issued for the plan.

Membership in the healthcare and life insurance bengfit plan consisted of the following at December
31, 2007, the date of the latest actuarial evaluation:

Retirees receiving health and/or life insurance benefits 436
Active plan members 1,475
Total 1,911

Funding Policy. The City and the qualified retirees sh‘pre in the cost of healthcare coverage. Also, the
City's retirees can purchase healthcare coverage for their dependents at the City’s group rates. The
City pays the cost of life insurance coverage.

The current Annual Required Contribution (ARC) rate is 12.41 percent of annual covered payroll. For
the current year, the City contributed $995,265 or 1.88% of annual covered payroll. The City is self-
insured with respect to healthcare coverage up to $150,000 per individual and approximately
$11,849,508 for all employees and retirees for the policy ending June 30, 2008. Retiree members
contributed $189,580 or 0.36% of annual covered payroll for retiree and dependent coverage. The City
offers $100 of life insurance for each year of service up to a maximum of $3,000. The City's and retiree
members’ obligation to contribute to the healthcare plan, including the life insurance benefit, is
established and may be amended by the City Manager consistent with the annual budget approved by
City Council. The City has chosen to fund healthcare and life insurance benefits on a pay as you go
basis.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Post-eq‘nployment expenditures are made from the Risk
Management Internal Service Fund (RM Fund), which is maintained on the fuli accrual basis of
accounting. The RM Fund charges a monthly rate per retiree to the General Fund, special revenue
funds and enterprise funds (other than the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds) based on the
number of retirees attributed to each fund to pay for post-employment expenditures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB} (continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance within the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that,
if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The City has
prospectively implemented GASB Statement 45 at June 30, 2008. The following table shows the
components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan,
and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation for the healthcare and life insurance benefits:

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $6,585,964
Interest on net OPEB obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution -
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 6,585,964
Contributions Made 995,265
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 5,590,699
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of the year -
Net OPEB obligation, end of the year $5,590,699

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for 2008 were as follows:

For the Year Annual OPEB Percentage of Annual Net OPEB
Ended June 30 Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2008 $ 6,585,964 15.11% $ 5,690,699

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2008 the plan was not funded. The most recent
actuarial valuation was December 31, 2007. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $27,972,680. The covered payroll (annual payroll of
active employees covered by the plan) was $53,061,647 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered
payroll was 52.72 percent. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for the benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical patiern of shanng of
benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
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Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits {OPEB) (continued)

actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective
of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2007 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used.
The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of retun which is the expected long-
term investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the
plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 9.00 to 5.00 percent annually.
Both rates included a 3.75 percent inflation assumptjon The actuarial value of assets, if any, was
determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open
basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2007, was 30 years.

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, the City’s Public Works Commission
administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan for the Electric and Water and
Wastewater funds. This plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees and their
dependents up to the age of 65. The Commission may amend the benefit provisions.

Membership in the healthcare benefit plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2008:

Retirees ‘ 47
Employees on disability 22
Active members 549
Total 618

Funding Policy. The Commission and the qualified retirees share in the cost of coverage. Also, the
Commission’s retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the Commission’s group rates.
The Commission has chosen to fund the health care beneflts on a pay as you go basis.

The current Annual Required Contribution (ARC) rate is 3.8 percent of annual covered payrolt The
Commission is self insured with respect to healthcare coverage

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The Commission's annual OPEB cost (expense) is
calculated based on the annual required contnbutnon of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The Commission has
prospectively implemented GASB Statement 45 at June 30, 2008. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over & period not to exceed thirty years. The following
table shows the components of the Commission's annual OPEB cost for the year.

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $1,070,188
Interest on net OPEB obligatio -
Adjustment to annuai required gontribution -
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 1,070,188
Contributions Made

Increase (decrease) in net OPHEB obligation 1,070, 188
Net OPEB obligation, begmmng of the year

Net OPEB obligation, end of the year $1,070, 188
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Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) (continued)

As of June 30, 2008 the plan was not funded. The most recent actuarial valuation was February 22,
2007. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) was $11,080,476.

The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $27,983,314 and the -
ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 40.0 percent. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan
involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence
of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and
healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress
is presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective
of the calculations.

In the February 22, 2007 actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method was used.
The actuarial assumptions included a 5.25 percent investment rate of return which is the expected long-
term investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the
plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 10.00 to 5.00 percent annually.
Both rates included a 3.00 percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if any, was
determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open
basis. The remaining amortization period was 30 years.

Note 13 - Interfund Balances and Activity
Balances Due to/from Other Funds

Balances due toffrom other funds at June 30, 2008, consist of the following:

Duse To:
Waste and
Due From: General Electric Wastewater Total
Airport $ 283,097 $ - 5 - § 283,097
PWC Flest Maintenance Fund - 190,618 148,290 338,908

$ 283,097 $ 190,618 § 148280 $ 622,005

The interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1)} interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2} transactions are recorded in the
accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.
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Transfers toffrom Other Funds

Transfers due to/from other funds at June 30, 2008, consist of the following:

Transfer in:
Nonmajor " internal Water and Nonmajor
Transfer out: General Governmental Service Wastewater Enterprise Total
General $ - % 6,743581 $ 200,000 § 658,362 § 3,970,414 % 11,572,367
Nonmajor Governmental 3,191,886 41,345 - 1,918,779 - 5,152,010
Electric 9,991,013 - - - - 9,991,013
Water and Wastewater 14,292 - - - - 14,292
Internal Service 18,324 - ] - - 149,896 168,220
Totals $ 13215515 $ 6,784,936 1L$ 200,000 3% 2577141 § 4120310 § 26,897,902

Transfers are used to move unrestricted revenues to finance various programs that the government
must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts
provided matching funds for various grant programs.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, a total of $1 0,005,305 was transferred from the electric and
water and wastewater funds to the general fund. This transfer consisted of three componenis: (1) 5%
of electric sales revenues totaling $7,390,040, (2) reimbursement of general fund street light utility
expenditures of $2,646,330, and (3) a ($31,065) reduction for reimbursement of lost electric sales
revenues related to an annexation action.

Note 14 — Net Asset Deficits

The Police Benefit Trust Fund reported a deficit net asset balance of ($29) as of June 30, 2008. This
deficit will be eliminated with future donations.

Note 15 — Subsequent Events

The North Carolina State Education Assistance Ager#cy instruments in the portfolio having final stated
maturities ranging from 2015 to 2036 have been called, effective July 31, 2008 resolving the matier of
iliquid investments for the City of Fayetteville.

On August 28, 2008 the PWC Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan Board of Trustees voted to

liquidate the Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan. It has yet to go before the Public Works
Commissioners and the City Council of the City of Faf/etteville.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a

Actuarial Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered

Valuation Assets Credit {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date {a) (b) (b-a} {a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
12/31/1998 $878,608 $1,337,500 $458,892 65.69% $9,011,331 5.09%
12/31/1939 958,824 1,435,311 476,487 66.80% 9,968,890 4.78%
12/31/2000 1,228,812 2,728,524 1,499,712 45.04% 10,581,205 14.17%
12/31/2001 1,382 479 3,074,210 1,691,731 44.97% 11,197,858 15.11%
12/31/2002 1,491,666 3,356,167 1,864,501 44 .45% 11,941,930 15.61%
12/31/2003 1,628,946 3,516,635 1,887,689 46.32% 12,062,456 15.65%
12/31/2004 1,657,940 3,902,435 2,244 495 42.48% 13,501,537 16.62%
12/31/2005 1,762,344 3,882,639 2,120,295 45.39% 14,117,825 15.02%
12/31/2006 2,023,488 4,632,567 2,609,078 43.68% 16,750,277 15.58%
12/31/2007 2,092,180 5,062,285 2,970,105 41.33% 16,792,423 17.69%

The annual required contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 was determined as part of the December 31,
2006 actuanal valuation using the project unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a)
7.25% investment rate of retum and (b) projected salary increases ranging from 4.5% to 12.3% per year. The inflation
compeonent was 3.75%. The assumptions do not include postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of
assets was market value. The unfunded actuanal accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of pay on a
closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2006 was 24 years.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Law Enforcement Officers’ Spegial Separation Allowance
Reguired Suplementary Information

Schedule of Employef Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution | Contributed
|

1999 $ 111,500 128.32%
2000 127,606 119.29%
2001 145,228 114.21%
2002 259,788 104.76%
2003 286,336 108.65%
2004 311,445 102.16%
2005 318,276 99.97%
2006 361,749 115.76%
2007 329,564 117.10%
2008 388,882 97.54%

Notes to the Requlred Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the
actuarial valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information aslof the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date December 31, 2007
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level percent of pay closéd
Remaining amortization penod 23 years
Asset valuation method Market value

Actuarnal assumptions:

Investment rate retum™ 7.25%
Projected salary increases” 4.5-12.3%
* Includes inflation at 3.75%

Cost-of-living adjustments N/A

Actual
Contributions

143,075
152,217
165,864
272141
311,091
318,169
318,169
418,762
385,957
379,324



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Supplementai Public Works Commission Retirement System
Required Suppiementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) _(b) __(b-a) {a/b) (c) {(b-a)lc)
7/01/03 $ 3,990,343 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
7101/04 3,952,504 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
7101/05 4,105,589 N/A NAA N/A N/A N/A
7/01/086 4,149,640 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
7101007 4,560,792 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
7/01/08 4,187,435 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Note that this schedule is provided for informational purposes only. The Commission uses the aggregate

actuarial cost method under which such a schedule is not required.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Empioyer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage

June 30 Contribution Contributed

There was no pension obligation as of July 1, 2003. Since then, the cost and contributions have been

zero so there is still no net pension obligation.

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial

valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date July 1, 2008
Actuartal cost method Aggregate
Amortization method N/A
Amortization period N/A

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:

Market value

Investment rate of return* 5%
Projected salary increases™ 4.0%
* Includes inflation at 3.0%
Cost-of-living adjustments None
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued
Actuarial Liability {AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit {UAAL) Ratio Payroil Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) ((b-a)lc)
12/31/2005 $ - § 54,434,583 §54,434,583 0.00% $ 44,476,975 122.40%
1213112007 - 27,972,680 27,972,680 0.00% 53,061,647 52.72%
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" CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Other Post Emplioyment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan
Required Supplemen;ary Information

Schedule of Employér Contributions

Year Ended Annual Percentage of Annual
June 30 OPEB cpst OPEB Cost Contributed
2008 $ 6,585,964 0.00%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary s%hedule was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date December 31, 2007
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis
Amortization period 29

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return* 4.00%
Annual medical cost trend rates* 9% - 5%
* Includes inflation at 3.75%
Cost-of-living adjustments None
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Public Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit {UAAL} Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b} {b-a) __ {aib} {c) {{b-a)/c
2122/07 $ - 5 11,080,476  $11,080,476 0.00% $27,983,314 39.60%
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Public Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan
Required Supplementlhry information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Percentage of Annual Net OPEB
June 30 OPEB cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obiigation
2008 $ 1,070,188 0.00% $ 1,070,188

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date February 22, 2007
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method L?vel percentage of projected payroll on an open basis
Amortization period 29

Actuanal assumptions:

investment rate of return* 5.25%
Annual medical cost trend rates* 10% - 5%
* includes inflation at 3.0%

Cost-of-living adjustments None
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Supplemental Financial Information

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules

These statements/schedules provide a more detailed view of the “Basic Financia

Statements” as presented in the preceding subsection.

Combining Statements are presented where there is more than one fund of a

given type. Individudl fund statements are presented if only one fund exists in a

given fund type.







Governmental Funds

- General Fund

- Nonmajor Governmental Funds
- Special Reverue Funds

- Capital Project Funds

The focus of Goverrmental Fund measurement is upon determination of financial
position and changes in financial position {sources, uses, and balances of financial

resources| rather than upon net income determination.
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(General Funa

The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to account for the
receipt and expenditure of resources that are traditionally associated with focal

governments and that are not required to be accounted for in another fund.

Resources are provided primarily through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and
transfers, and are expended for services deemed not susceptiole to a user charge

financing method.

The Fund is accounted for on the medified accrual basis of accounting.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Comparative Balance Sheets

General Fund

June 30, 2008 and 2007

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Taxes receivable

Accounts receivable

Interfund receivable
Assessments receivable
Inventories

Restricted cash and investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payabie and accrued expenses
Unearned deposits
Deferred reveriues

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute
For encumbrances
For streets - Powell Bill
For inventories
For downtown
For JP Riddle - Stadium
For county recreation
For donations
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent year's expenditures
For special purpose
For debt service
Undesignated
Total fund balances

Total liahilities and fund balances

2008 2007
$ 45,689,040 46,163,255
3,270,102 3,717,738
13,051,069 12,083,219
283,097 314,702
498,602 551,639
115,378 174,993
3,305,317 156,401
$ 66,212,605 63,161,947
$ 7,683,847 7,585,610
84,470 100,645
5,435,547 5,825,396
13,203,864 13,511,651
12,334,683 11,492,910
2,934,985 6,554,473
- 156,401
115,378 174,993
234,296 197,061
17,507 14,685
1,563,891 1,097,826
26,166 -
9,163,213 3,598,129
5,550,563 1,710,539
3,238,353 3,450,644
17,829,706 21,202,735
53,008,741 49,650,296
$ 66,212,605 63,161,947
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, thRTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures apd Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Qeneral Fund

Year Ended Junei!l‘.l, 2008
With Comparatlve Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Variance
Po"fsltlve 2008 2007
Budget __[Negatlve) Actual Actual
Revenues
Ad valcrem taxes
Currant year $ 52,142,463 $ 678,267 $ 52,820,730 § 57,080,702
Prior year 1,685,897 {71,387} 1,624,600 1,162,004
Penalties 315,475 4,872 320,347 321,964
Total ad valorem taxes 54,153,935 611,742 54,765,677 58,574,670
Other taxaes
Locai option sales tax 31,180,350 478,912 31,659,262 30,488,647
Utility franchise tax 3,174,732 220,738 3,395,470 3,280,209
Telecommunicafions sales fax 1,779,844 123,752 1,903,536 1,687,989
Piped natural gas tax 593,977 41,299 635,276 650,889
Videa franchise tax 1,998,754 138,972 2,137,726 935,196
Vehicla license tax 636,430 (437) 835,983 623,019
Privilege license 916,824 67,903 984 727 920,196
Cablevision franchise tax 456,460 35,442 491,802 1,243,013
Vehicla gross recelpt 364,000 | 22178 416,176 381,124
Total other taxes 41,131,3M 11,128,757 42,260,128 40,220,282
HI|
Intergovernmental
Federal 30,096 20,192 50,288 36,531
State 8,333,704 256,921 6,590,625 6,004,789
Local 3,271,418 161,195 3,432,613 3,422,830
I
Total Intergovernmental 9,635,218 438,308 10,073,526 9,464,150
=
Other functlonal
Permils and fees 2,307,945 (493,066) 1,814,879 2,418,213
Properly leases 888,818 (481,660) 407,158 354,211
Engineering/planning services 325,083 20,736 345,822 821,167
Pubtic safety services 643,247 143,236 786,483 697,681
Environmental services 64,195 9,187 73,382 63,254
Recreation and cultural services 975,508 17,333 992,842 908,190
Parking revenues 157,658 23713 181,371 110,064
Other fees and services 196,010 (104,528} 91,482 102,401
oy
Total other functional 5,558,465 . (B65,046) 4,683,418 5,475,181
Miscellaneous
Refunds and sundry 664,969 33,460 698,429 914,573
Indirect cost allocation B96,598 46,923 843,521 904,704
Special use assessment 130,700 73,616 204,318 180,072
Sale of assefts 158,400 | 116,982 275,382 201,112
Total miscellaneous 1,850,667 | 270,981 2,121,648 2,200,461
Interest earned on Investments 1,491,100 1,009,814 2,500,914 2,901,379
Total revenues 113,820,756 2,594,556 116,415,312 118,836,123
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2008
With Comparaflve Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Variance
Posltive 2008 2007
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Expenditures
Current
Adminlistration
Leglslative
Personnel 3 266,083 $ 4,393 $ 261,690 $ 302,445
Operaling 418,163 B4,151 334,012 293,413
684,246 B8 544 595,702 595,858
Clty attorney
Personnel 497 847 12,312 485,535 468,900
Operating 385,212 62,247 322,965 387,635
883,059 74,559 808,500 866,535
Executive
Perscnnel 1,064,211 10,657 1,063,554 1,030,675
Operaling 235,240 128,570 106,670 148,663
1,299,451 139,227 1,160,224 1,179,338
Human resources development
Personnel 858,863 20,598 838,265 650,059
Operaling 260,686 25,954 234,732 280,685
1,119,549 46,552 1,072,997 939,644
Management services
Personnel 572,829 B.117 564,712 551,531
Operating 322,858 87,284 235,574 240,818
Assets 7,150 - 7,150 -
Inventory 142,000 13,441 128,559 142,754
Cost radistribution {175,489) 2,836 {178,325) (186,502)
869,348 111,678 757,670 757,601
Information technology
Personnel 492 707 23,969 468,738 440,103
Operaling 1,425,690 320,639 1,106,051 718,947
Assels 355,185 277,822 77.373 96,945
Cost redistribution (6,068) 1 (6,069} (6,066)
2,267,524 622,431 1,645,093 1,249,920
Human relations
Parsonnel 202,476 6,266 196,210 189,706
Operating 42,742 17,061 25,651 34,155
Paymenls to agencies 3,249 - 3,249 60
248,437 23,327 225,110 223,921
Finance
Personnel 1,197,752 13,876 1,183,876 1,023,408
Operating 1,269,829 127,141 1,142,688 1,165,363
Assets 96,000 96,000 - -
2,563,681 237,017 2,326,564 2,188,771
General govemment
Personnel 101,163 1895 100,968 118,124
Operating 7,187,170 203,346 6,983,824 7,911,623
Assets 45,768 34,048 11,720 143,240
Inventory 1,889,477 26 1,889,451 1,485,691
Cost redistribution (1,899,029) - (1,899,029) (1,661,187)
Payments to agencies 264,000 - 264,000 352,142
7,588,549 237,615 7,350,934 8,359,533
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - #‘,eneral Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2008
With Comparative Actual Statements f?r the Year Ended June 30, 2007

—
Vai-lance
Pgsitive 2008 2007
Budget {Negatlve) Actual Actual
Expenditures (continued)
Current (continued)
Administration {continued)
Public bulldings
Personnel 729,508 7,507 722,001 3 660,972
Operating 1,092,088 96,824 995,264 1,227,123
Assels 22,105 22,105 - 33,875
1,843,701 126,436 1,717,285 1,921,970
Project management
Personnel 225,259 6,324 218,935 222,964
Operating 20,558 10,353 10,205 12,040
245817 | 16,677 229,140 235,004
Total administration 19,613,262 11,724,063 17,889,199 18,518,104
Public safety
Police
Personnel 30,943,292 532,936 30,410,356 30,098,926
Operating 5,645,340 854,484 4,790,856 4,874,349
Assets 4,301,980 905,035 3,396,945 1,103,879
Payments to agencies 3,000 | - 3,000 3,000
40,893,612 {2,292 455 38,601,157 36,080,154
Fire
Persannel 16,236,957 893 16,236,064 15,461,348
Operating 2,483,676 233,384 2,250,282 2,268,501
Assets 624,012 1 624,011 1,453,873
Cosl redistribution (75,000) - (75,000} (75,000)
19,269,645 234,278 19,035,367 19,108,722
Ingpections
Personnel 2,285,300 18,105 2,267,195 2.169,562 -
Operating 475,311 . 98,591 376,720 355,560
2,760,611 116,696 2,643,915 2,526,122
Total public safety 62,923,868 2,643,429 £0,280,439 57,713,998
I
Environmental protection
Solid waste
Personnel 3,779,092 164,385 3,614,707 3,208,877
Operating 3,928,623 331,673 3,597,950 4,328,606
Assets 3,505,564 | 731,269 2,774,285 997,825
11,214,179 9,986,952 8,535,308

| 1,227,227
.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2008
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Varlance
Posltive 2008 2007
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Expenditures {continued)
Current (continued)
Envircnmental protection
(continued)
Cemeterles
Personnel § 123,418 $ 515 $ 122,903 $ 148,085
Operating 46,173 24,352 21,821 18,397
’ 169,591 24,867 144,724 166,482
Urban forestry
Personnel 134,389 2,297 132,092 126,485
Operating 22,455 13,428 9,027 18,804
156,844 15,726 141,119 145,289
Street Sweeping
Personnel 373,387 5,500 367,887 329,080
Operating 235,701 11,044 224 857 182,920
Assels 180,000 180,000 - 154,682
Cost redistribution - - - {314)
789,088 196,544 592,544 666,377
Total environmental
protection 12,329,702 1,464,363 10,865,339 9,513,456
Transportation
Streets
Personnel 2,609,812 44,906 2,564,906 2,425,879
Operating 5,133,741 646,309 4,487,432 3,833,688
Assets 204,204 8,000 196,204 266,809
Cost redistribution - - - {66,508)
7,947,757 699,215 7,248,542 6,450,868
Engineering
Personnel 1,286,623 12,539 1,274,084 1,213,846
Operating 177,597 41,972 135,625 128,336
Assets 16,127 73 16,054 34,797
1,480,347 54,584 1,425,763 1,376,979
Parking
Operating 210,236 12,153 188,083 190,545
Assels 140,000 140,000 - -
350,236 152,153 198,083 190,545
Total transpertation 9,778,340 905,952 8,872,388 8,027,392
Economic and physical development
Central business district
Qperating 116,193 49,997 66,196 64,455
Communlty development
Personnel 99,085 176 95,909 93,733
Operating 1,033,037 886,395 136,642 906,945
1,132,122 896,571 235,551 1,000,678
Planning and development
Personnel 443,694 2,953 440,741 318,954
Qperating 378,201 125,466 252,735 147,026
Payments to agancies 15,000 13,699 1,301 6,494
836,895 142,118 684,777 472 474




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, N‘ORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures apd Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2008
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Expenditures {continued}
Current {continued)
Economic and physical
development {continued)
Total economic and physical
development

Recreation and community facllities
Parks & Recreation
Persorinel
Operating
Assels

Total recreation and
community facllities

Debt service
Total expenditures

Ravenues over {under)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Appropriated fund balance
Transfers In
Transfers (out)
Capital leases, bonds and other debl

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing

sources (uses) over (under)
expenditures

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

|
Varjance
Positive 2008 2007
Budget {Negdative) Actual Actual
2085210 % 1,088,686 096,524 1,537,607
6,959,305 90,725 6,868,580 6,615,741
4,469,938 699,092 3,770,648 3,625,356
654,002 _ 367,853 286,149 361,073
12,083,245 4,157 670 10,925,575 10,602,170
12,083,245 1,157,670 10,925,575 10,602,170
11,562,818 3,378,327 8,174,491 9,205,145
130,366,445 12,362,490 118,003,955 115,117,872
(16,545,669) 14,957,046 (1,588,643) 3,718,251
10,752,094 (1p,752,094) - -
13,442,816 | (227,301) 13,215,515 9,727,693
(11,837.,366) 264,999 {11,572,367) (7,292,408)
4,188,145 . (884,205) 3,303,840 -
T

16,545 689 (11.598,601) 4,947,088 2,435,285
- 5 13,358,445 3,358,445 6,153 536
49,650,206 43,496,760

53,008,741 49,650,298
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2008

Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 4437159 § 4,153,781 $ 8,590,940
Taxes receivable 70,792 - 70,792
Accounts receivable 7,844,389 270,078 8,114,467
Restricted asset - cash and investments 454 821 5,118,257 5,573,078
Restricted asset - accounts receivable - 3,907 3,907
Total assets $ 12,807,161 $ 9,546,023 § 22,353,184
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 253,916 $& 1,557,767 1,811,683
Deferred revenues 7,114,489 743,169 7,857,658
Total liabilities 7,368,405 2,300,936 9,669,341
Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute 1,347,033 392,831 1,739,864
For encumbrances 707,020 818,875 1,625,895
For streets - Powell Bill - 884,606 884,606
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent year's expenditures 2,047,602 5,148,775 7,196,377
For special purpose 1,033,562 - 1,033,562
Undesignated 303,539 - 303,539
Total fund balances 5,438,756 7,245,087 12,683,843
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 12,807,161 $ 9,546,023 $ 22,353,184




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE,INORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenqitures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
Other taxes and fees
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Interest earned on investments
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current;
Administration
Public safety
Environmental protection
Transportation
Economic and physical development
Recreation and community facilities
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fees
Total expenditures
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources {uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
$ ‘[6,514,026 $ - % 6,514,026
12,803,753 132,608 2,936,361
596,290 102,326 698,616
255,406 274,352 529,758
10,169,475 509,286 10,678,761
- 3,915 3,915
1,288,746 1,863,285 3,152,031
12,606,973 - 2,606,973
- 3,019,828 3,019,828
2,559,950 1,320,744 3,880,694
- 1,255,803 1,255,803
1,955,769 - 1,955,769
632,673 - 632,673
19,044 111 7,463,575 16,507,686
1,125,364 (6,954,289) (5,828,925)
|
2,597,139 4,187,797 6,784,936
(3,122,577) (2,029,433) (5,152,010)
" (525,438) 2,158,364 1,632,926
599,826 {4,795,925) (4,195,999)
. 4,838,830 12,041,012 16,879,842
§ 5438756 % 7,245.087 % 12,683,843
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Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources or to finance specific activities as required by low or administrative

regulation.

The following comprise the City's Special Revenue Funds:
- Emergency Telephone System Fund
- Federdl and State Financial Assistance Fund
- Storm Water Management Fund
- City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation Fund

All Special Revenue Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis o

accounting,
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2008

Federal
Emergency and State Fayetteville
Telephone Financial Storm Water Finance Total Nonmajor
System - Asslistance Management Corp Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and investments 5 276,903 § - $ 4,160,256 5 4,437,159
Taxes receivable - - 70,782 70,792
Accounts receivable 932,877 7,739,230 11,273 7,844,389
Interfund receivable - - 545,858 545,858
Restricted asset - cash and investments - 454 821 - 454,821
Total assets % 370,780 $ B,184080 $ 4,788,179 $ 13,353,019
Liabillties and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses § 50170 § 95592 § 99,154 3 253,916
Interfund payables - 545,858 - 545,858
Deferred revenues - 7,043,687 70,792 7,114,488
Total liabilities 58,170 7,685,147 160,946 7,914,263
Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute 93,877 696,025 557,131 1,347,033
For encumbrances - 269,877 437,143 707,020
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent year's expenditures - - 2,047,602 2,047,602
For special purpose - - 1,033,562 1,033,562
Undesignated 217,733 {456,989) 542,795 303,539
Total fund balances 311,610 508,913 4,618,233 5,438,756
Total! liabllitles and fund balances $ 370,780 $ 8,194,060 § 4,788,179 3 13,353,019
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

ederal
Emergency End State Storm Fayetteville
Telephone inancial Watsr Finance Total Nonmajor
* System sistance Management Corp Speclal Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
|
Revenues
Other taxes and fees $ 922,024 § | - $ 5592002 § - % 6,514,026
Intergovernmental - 2,803,753 - - 2,803,753
Miscellanecus - 586,290 - - 586,290
Inlerest samed on investments 66,342 | - 188,067 g7 255,408
Total revenues 988,366 | 3.400,043 5,780,069 997 10,169,475
Expenditures
Current:
Public safety 584,663 704,083 - - 1,288,746
Environmental protection - f - 2,606,973 - 2,606,873
Economic and physical development - 2,653,370 - 6,580 2,558,950
Deb! service:
Principal 74,204 7,654 23,911 1,850,000 1,955,768
Interest and fees 3,214 281 1,035 628,143 832,673
Total expenditures 662,081 | 3,265,388 2,631,918 2,484,723 9,044,111
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expendltures 326,285 134,685 3,148,150 (2,483,726) 1,125,364
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in - 113,413 - 2,483,726 2,597,139
Transfers out (3.122,577) - - - (3,122,577)
Total other financing sources (uses) {3,122,577) | 113413 - 2,483,728 (525,438)
Net change in fund balances (2,796,292} 248,068 3,148,150 - 599,926
Fund balance - beginning 3,107,802 | 260,845 1,470,083 - 4,838,830

Fund bhafance - ending $ 311610 &, 508913 $ 4618233 § - & 5,438,758




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Emergency Telephone System Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2008
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2007)

Variance
Positive 2008 2007
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Other taxes
Wireline 911 tax $ 361,922 % - % 361,922 § 794,933
Wirsless/consolidated 911 funds . 703,759 {143,657) 560,102 269,666
Total other taxes 1,065,681 {143,657) 922 024 1,064,599
Interest earned on investments
Wireless/consoiidated 911 - - - 4,580
Wireline 911 134,210 (67,868) 66,342 136,013
Total interest earned on investments 134,210 (67,868) 66,342 140,593
Total revenues 1,199,891 (211,525) 988,366 1,205,192
Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Wireless/consolidated 911
Parsonnel 27,632 1,887 25,745 -
Operating 414,984 57,068 357,916 216,914
Assets 95,827 92,170 3,657 -
538,443 151,125 387,318 216,914
Wireline 911
Personnel 22,882 - 22,882 -
Operating 171,471 - 171,471 336,981
Assets 2,992 - 2,992 -
Caost redistribution - - - 50,873
197,345 - 197,345 387,854
Total public safety 735,788 151,125 584,663 604,768
Debt service
Wireless/consolidated 911 38,881 172 38,709 -
Wireline 911 38,746 37 38,709 77,775
Total debt service 77,627 209 77,418 77,775
Total expenditures 813,415 151,334 662,081 682,643
Revenues over (under) expenditures 386,476 (60,191) - 326,285 522,649
Other financing sources (uses)
Appropriated fund balance 2,830,760 (2,830,760) - -
Transfers out (3,217,236) 94,659 (3,122,577} -
Total other financing sources (uses) (386,476) (2,736,101) (3,122,577} -
Revenues and other financing sources
(uses) over {under) expenditures $ - § (2,796,292) (2,796,292) 522,649
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 3,107,902 2,585,253
End of year - June 30 - 3 311,610 § 3,107,902

J-3




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, hliORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures g':nd Changes In Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Federal and Slaqe Financial Assistance Fund

From Inception And For Year|Ended June 30, 2008

ol
Project Prior Closed Current
Authaorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Intergovernmental |
Federal grants $ 7205434 3% 4,24|0,432 $ 2142249 § 2,313,286 % 4,411,469
State grants 1,478,788 954,686 172,052 478,390 1,261,024
County 25,6538 25,729 12,607 12,077 25,199
Total intergovernmental 8,709,760 5,220,847 2,326,908 2,803,753 5,697,602
Miscelianeous
Other 1,367,911 1,281,310 57,179 596,200 1,820,421
Total revenues 10,077,671 8,502,157 2,384,087 3,400,043 7,518,113
Expenditures
Current !
Public safety 2,293,056 1,686,972 730,580 704,083 1,660,475
Economic and physical development 7,841,121 4,613,126 1,584,409 2,553,370 5,672,087
Total current 10,234,177 6,300,098 2,324,989 3,257,453 7,232,562
Debt service 116,060 1354,144 69,387 7,935 72,892
Total expenditures 10,350,237 6,434,242 2,394,376 3,265,388 7,305,254
Revenues over {under) |
expenditures (272,566) 67,915 (10,289) 134,855 212 859
Other financing sources (uses) )
Transfers in 272,566 192,930 10,289 . 113413 296,054
Total other financing sources
{uses) 272,566 192,930 10,288 113,413 296,054
Revenues and other financing
sources (uses) over (under)
expenditures $ - 3 280,845 § - 248,068 % 508,913
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 260,845

End of year - June 30 3 508,913




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Expenditures by Project
Budget and Actual - Federal and State Flnancial Assistance Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2008

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Expenditures by project:
Public safety
Federal and State Forfeiture $ 983278 § 559,433 § P 115476 § 674,909
PSN Anti-Gang; Operation Ceasefire 143,538 30,307 . - 93,495 123,802
PSN Mediag Blitz 23,000 19,889 - - 19,889
PSN Gun Tracer 13,412 13,412 - - 13,412
JCPC Gang Violence Prevention - 20,236 19,213 - 1,023
Gangs across the Carolinas 87,744 31,255 31,255 83,792 83,792
Juvenile Restitution 235,937 227,851 112,178 111,768 227441
Gang Prevention 11,000 10,120 - - 10,120
Local Law Enforcemsnt Grant - 62,536 62.536 - -
Justice Assistance Grant 350,719 142,551 - 176,458 319,009
QOperation Ceasefire - 249,359 249,359 - -
COPS Homeland Security - 256,039 256,039 - -
FY 07 Hazmat Equipment 251,671 - - - -
FEMA Firefighter Grant 192,857 63,984 - 123,094 187,078
Total public safety 2,293,056 1,686,972 730,580 704,083 1,660,475
Economic and physical development
Community Development Block Grant 4,266,507 3,057,590 916,484 1,156,837 3,297,943
Arsenal Park Archaeological - 43,362 43,362 - -
Military Business Park 519,750 - - - -
NC Rural Economic Development 47,335 - - - -
Wayside Signage 300,586 - - - -
Assessment Payment - 39,865 39,865 - -
HOME 2,806,943 1,472,309 594,698 1,396,533 2,274,144
Total economlc and '
physical development 7,941,121 4613,126 1,594,409 2,553,370 5,572,087
Total expenditures by project $ 10,234,177 $ 6300008 $ 2324989 $ 3257453 § 7,232,562

J-5




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Storm Water Management Fund

Year Ended Juné‘ 30, 2008
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 20, 2007}

=it
Variance
‘Positive 2008 2007
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Other fees
Storm water fee $ 55798601 & (5,811) % 5573,790 $ 2,246,098
Penalfies 12,000 6,212 18,212 13,241
Total other fees 5,591,601 401 5,602,002 2,259,339
Interest earned on investments 10,000 178,067 188,067 97.081
Total revenues 5,601,601 178,468 5,780,069 2,356,400
Expenditures
Current
Environmental protection
Personnel 1,248,905 10,417 1,238,488 981,132
Operating 3,979,293 2,827,388 1,151,905 845,752
Assets ’ 889,399 747 819 141,580 336,724
Cost redistribution 75,600 - 75,000 74 745
Total environmental protection 6,192,597 3,585,624 2,606,973 2,238,353

Debt service 24 847 1 24,946 25,051
Total expenditures 6,217 544 3,585,625 2,631,919 2,263,404

Revenues over {under) expenditures {615,943) 3.764,093 3,148,150 92,996

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out fi! - -
Appropriated fund balance 615,943 {615,943) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 615,943 (615,943) {5,000)

(5.000)

Revenues and other financing sources
(uses) over (under) expenditures 3,148,150 3,148,150 87.996

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 1,470,083 1,382,087

End of year - June 30 4,618,233 $ 1,470,083




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2008
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2007)

Variance
Pasitive 2008 2007
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Interest earned on investments $ 337 $ 660 $ 997 % 2,001
Expenditures
Current
Eccnomlic and physical development
Operating 8,000 1,420 6,580 6,757

Debt service 2,478,143 - 2,478,143 2,510,452
Total expenditures 2,486,143 1,420 2,484,723 2,517,209
Revenues over (under) expenditures (2,485,808) 2,080 {2,483,726) (2,515,208)

Other financing sources {uses)

Transfers in 2,485,806 (2,080) 2,483,726 2,515,208
Total financing sources (uses) 2,485,806 {2,080) 2,483,726 2,515,208
Revenues and other financing sources

(uses) over {under} expenditures $ - $ - - -

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 - -
End of year - June 30 $ - 3 -
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Coapital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds account for all resources used for the acquisition and

construction of major capital focilities other than those financed by Proprietary

Funds.

The following comprise the City's Capital Project Funds:
- General Government Fund
- Public Safety Fund
- Recredtional and Cultural Fund
- Transportation Fund
- Water and Sewer Fund

- Bond Improvement Fund

- Economic and Physical Development fund

- Lirear Park Fund

All Capital Project Funds are accounted for on

the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Government Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2008

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues $ - % - § - 8 - % -
Expenditures
Current
Administration
Information lechnology 687,402 683,442 - 3,915 687,357
Total expenditures 687,402 683,442 - 3,915 687,357
Revenues over {under) expenditures (687,402) (683,442) - {3,915) {687,357}
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in 756,711 756,711 - 189,798 946,509
Transfers out {69,309) - - (69,309) (69,309}
Total other financing sources {uses) 687,402 756,711 - 120,489 B77,200
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures $ - 5 73,260 §% - 116,574 § 189,843
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 73,269

End of year - June 30 $ 169,843




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, h;lORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures )and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - PuPIic Safety Fund

From Inceptlon And For Year} Ended June 30, 2008

L
——

Project | Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
I
Revenues
Interest eamed on investments $ - & 824 &% - % 71,142 % 72,068
Total revenues - 924 - 71,142 72,068
Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Fire Station #15 2,622,750 668,883 - 1,844,366 2,513,249
Total expenditures 2,622,750 ' 668,883 - 1,844,366 2,513,248
Revenues over {under) expenditures {2,622,750) __ (867,959) - {1,773,224) (2,441,183)
Other financing sources (uses}
Proceeds from capltal leases 2,415,000 2,415,000 - - 2,415,000
Transfers in 207,750 | 207,750 - - 207,750
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,622,750 L 2,622,750 - - 2,622,750
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over {under) expenditures $ - § 1854791 § - (1,773,224) § 181,567
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 1,954,791
End of year - June 30 3 181,567




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Recreational and Cultural Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2008

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Intargovernmental
Federai grants/comributions 3 250,000 $ - 3 - $ - $ -
Stale grants/contributions 3,924,045 2,478,507 - 132,128 2,610,635
Total Intergovernmental 4,174,045 2,478,507 - 132,128 2.610.835
Miscelianeous
Olher . 78,691 - 16,376 95,067
Denations 250805 259,705 - 17,800 277,505
Total miscellaneous 259,605 338,396 - 34,176 372,572
Interest earned on Investiments - 71.516 - 46,838 118,354
Total revenuas 4,433,650 2,888,419 - 213,142 3.101.561
Expenditures
Current
Recreatlonal and community facllities
Cape Fear River Park 350,000 26,746 - 252,417 279,163
Open Space Project 25,000 25,000 - - 25,000
Freedom Park 434,805 403,628 - 18,425 422,053
Amitrak Station 693,500 671,144 - 1,200 672,344
Martin Luther King Park 50,000 50,000 - - 50,000
Woestover Recreatlon Center - 173,734 173,734 - -
Bonnie Doone Park 554,805 544,862 - 1,605 546,557
EE Miller Recreation Cerer 2,297,050 1,034,209 - 359,110 2,293,319
NC State Veterans Park 2,300,000 1,679,544 - 161,327 1,840,871
Woestern Area Neighborhood Park 800,000 - - - -
Cape Fear River Trai Phase 2 1,250,000 - - - -
Total expendituras 8,755,050 5,508,867 173,734 794,174 8,129,307
Revenues over {(under) expendltures (4,321,400) (2,620,448) (173.734) (581,032) (3.027,746)
Other financing sources {uses)
Trarsfers in 2,199,350 2,201,174 173,734 240,207 2,287,647
Capital lagses, bonds, and other debt 2,122,050 2,124,356 - - 2,124,356
Total other financing sources {uses) 4,321,400 4,325,530 173,734 240,207 4,392,003
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expendltures 3 - $ 1,705,082 3 - (340,825) $ 1,364,257

Fund talance

Beginning of year - July 1 1,705,082

End of year - June 30 $ 1,364,257




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Transportation Fund

From Inception And For Year/Ended June 30, 2008

Project iPrlor Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Intargovernmental
State grants 258,000 § | 198867 § 89.364 § - % 107,503
Miscellanecus
Ownar contribution 48,775 74,166 - 8,600 82,786
Other 10,204 | 88,550 58,142 - 30,408
Total miscellanous 58,979 | 162.716 58,142 8,800 113,174
T
Interest eamed on Investments - 3,248 - 1,244 4,492
Total revenues 316,879 | sz283 147,506 9,844 225,169
Expenditures
Current
Transportation
Traffic control system 1,629,069 1,251,288 . - 1,251,268
Sldewalks 254,232 170,326 147,506 - 22,820
Parking improvemanis 271,275 119,450 - 146,018 265,468
Transportation improvements 7,937,229 | 5,155,668 1,620,628 2,873,810 6,408,852
Gateway beautlfications 100,000 58,091 - - 58,891
Miscellaneous strest improvemants - 25,879 25,870 - -
Total expenditures 10,181,805 6,781,582 1,794,011 3,019,828 8,007,399
Revanues over [under} expenditures {9,874,628) (8,41 B,751} (1,646,505) {3.009,984) {7.782,230}
Other financipg sources (uses}
Transfers in 10,419,884 10,047,692 2,853,249 3,607,868 10,802,331
Transfers (out) (545,058} (1.710,457) (1,208,744} (41,345} (545.058)
Total other flnancing sources (uses) 9,874,826 8,337,235 1,646,505 3,566,543 10,257,273
Ravenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures - 3 1,918,484 % - 558,559 $ 2475043
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 1,918,484
End of year -June 30 3 2,475,043




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Water and Sewer Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2008

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Misceilangous
Lumbee River Electric Membership
Corporation - Service Teritory $ 3,449,709 3 3,449,709 $ - $ - $ 3,448,709
Total miscellsnous . 3,448,709 3,449,709 - - 3,448,709
Interest earnad on Investments 125,000 222 051 45,252 271,303
Total revenues 3,574,708 3,671,760 - 49,252 3,721,012
Revenues over (under) expenditures 3,574,709 3,671,760 - 49,252 3,721,012
Transfers {out) (3,674,709) (754,611) - (1,918,779) {2,673,380)
Total other financing sovrces [uses) (3,574,709) (754,611) - (1,918,779) {2,673,390)
Revenues and other flnancing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures 5 - $ 2,917,149 $ - (1,869,527) _$ 1,047,622
Fund balance
Beglnning of year - July 1 2,917,149
End of year - Jungs 30 $ 1,047,622
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Bond Improvement Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
Miscellaneous
Owner contribution
Total miscellaneous

Interest earned on Investments
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Economic and physical development

Bond administration
Debt service
Streets
Water and sewer
Sldewalks
Drainage

Public Safety
FSU Fire Statlon

Recreatlonal and community faciiitles
Debt service
Westover Recreatlonal Center
Festival Park
Cape Fear River Park

Total expenditures
Revenues over {under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Capital leases, bonds, and other debt

Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing sources
(uses) over (under) expenditures

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

2,723,925

$ 1,616,752

Project #rlor Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
10000 § | 10,000 -8 - 8 10,000
10,000 | 10,000 - - 10,000
1,031,477 |2,877,1 35 1,786,640 97,263 1,187,758
T
I
1,041,477 2,887,135 1,786,640 97,263 1,197,756
1,119,704 11,495 069 375,370 - 1,119,699
91,275 750,435 659,424 - 81,011
9,768,170 ‘15.818,817 B, 144,063 958,452 8,633,206
- 710,161 710,161 - -
806,066 13,208,149 2411178 - 796,971
637,633 7,332,062 6.897,125 118,889 551,626
12,422,848 29,314,993 19,197,321 1,075,141 11,192,513
3,576,070 13,475,264 - 18,918 3,494,183
|
167,743 167,743 - - 167,743
2,771,016 2,767,918 - - 2,767,918
4,364,832 ‘ 4,249,578 - 108,408 4,355,984
1,019,852 879,579 - 3,970 853,549
8,323,443 18,064,618 - 110,376 8,175,194
24,322,361 40,854,775 19,197,321 1,204,436 22,861,690
(23,2B0,864) (57.967,6401 {(17,410,881) (1,407,173) (21.664,132)
1,810,000 ! 1,810,000 - - 1,810,000
21,470,884 38,881,565 17.410.681 - 21,470,884
23,280,684 40,691,565 17,410,681 - 23,280,884
T
- 3 2,723,925 - (1,107,173 § 1,616,752




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Economic and Physical Development Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
Intergovarnmental
Federal grants
State grants
Total Intergovernmental

Miscellaneous
Private donatlons
Sale of assets
Total miscellaneous

Interest earned on investments
Totsl revenues

Expenditures
Current
Economic and physlcal development

Browrfields Pilot Project
USO/Amphitheater Demo/Festival Park
Cape Fear & Yadkin Valley Dapot

300 Block of Hay Street

Total expenditures

Revenues over {under} expsanditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Total other flinancing sources {uses)
Revenuas and other financing
sources {uses} over (under)

expenditures

Fund balance
Beginning of yeer - July 1

Erdf of yesr - June 30

K-9

Project Prlor Closed Current
Authorization Yoears Projects Yoar Total
- 3 338,204 338,204 % - 3 -
2,625,702 2,483,738 - 480 2,484,218
2,625,702 2,821,942 338,204 480 2,484,218
3,058,821 2,761,545 - - 2,761,545
334,000 245435 - - 245,435
3,382,621 3,006,980 - - 3,008,960
24,283 19,084 - - 19,084
6,042,576 5,848,008 338.204 480 5,510,282
- 338,203 336,204 1 -
3,991,891 3,803,156 - 127,736 3,930,892
3,282,128 3,104,743 597 3,105,340
1.857.475 1.806,728 - 117,269 1,723,997
9,131,494 8,852,830 338,204 245,603 8,760,220
{3,088,918) {3.004.824) - {245,123} (3,249.947)
3.088.918 3,378.820 - 149,904 3,526,524
3,068,918 3,378,620 - 149,904 3,528,524
- [ 373,796 - (95,219)  § 278,577
373,796
$ 278577




|
CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures dlnd Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Linear Park

From inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2008

I |
Project Prlt;ti Closed Current
Authorization Yea Projects Year Total
Revenues
intargovernmental

County grants/contributions $ 130,000 5 112,565 $ - $ - $ 112,565

Total Intergovernmental 130.000 {12585 - - 112,565
Miscellaneous

Other (Denatlons} 1,219,285 1,137,288 ~ 58,550 1,196,838
Total miscelianeous 1,218,285 1,137,289 ~ 58,550 1,196,838

Interest earnaed on investments 715 | 30,554 - 8,813 39,167
Total revenues 1,350,000 1,280,408 . 68,163 1,348,571

Expanditures
Current
Recreatlonal and communlty facllities |

Linear Park 1,400,000 955,892 - 35t.253 1.307,245
Tolal expenditures 1,400,000 $55,092 - 351,253 1,307,245
Revenues over (under) expenditures {50,000} 324,416 - (283,090) 41,326

Other financing sources {uses)

Transfers In 50,000 50,100 - - 50,100
Total other financing sources (uses) 50,000 150,100 - - 50,100
Ravenues and other financlng sources

(uses) over (under) expenditures $ - $ B74.516 3 - (283,090} $ 91,428
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 374,516
End of year - June 30 £ 51426
K-10



Proprietary Funds

- Enterprise Funds

- Internal Service Funds

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income,
financial position and cash flows. The accounting principles used here are generdlly
accepted in the United States of America and are applicable to similar businesses

in the private sector.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
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Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are either financed or operated in a
manner similor to private businesses or for operations that the City has decided
that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,

management contral, accountability, public palicy, or other purposes.

The following comprise the City's Enterprise Funds
- Hlectric Fund
- Water and Wastewater Fund
- Nonmaior Enterprise Funds
- Trarsit Fund
- Airport Fund
- Solid Waste Recydling Fund

All Enterprise Funds are accounted for using the

accrual basis of accounting.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Electric Fund
June 30, 2008

Uptown Rata
Electric Revitallzation Stablllzation
Fund Speclal Fund Special Fund Total
Assets
Current unrestricted assats
Cash and cash equivalents % 27,677,242 % - § - 3 27677242
Invastments 6,626,954 - - 6,626,954
Recehables 19,245,287 - - 19,245 267
Internal belences 190,652 (34) - 190,618
Lags allowance for doubtful accoumts (200,208} - - (200,208)
Invantories 12,444,036 - - 12,444,038
Othar cumrent agsets 100,372 - - 100372
Total current unrestricted assets 66,384,337 {34) - &6,384,303
Cument restricted asseta
Cash and cash equlvalents 13,171,050 15490 16,333,514 29,520,054
investments 5,397,326 - - 5,397,326
Collateral pledged in lieu of deposks 268,185 - - 288,165
Recelvables 3,272 - - 3272
Total current restricted assets 18.830,813 15480 16,333.514 35,188,617
Total current 2ssets 85224 ,150 15,456 16,333,514 101,573,120
Noncurrent assets
Other aeseis 2,019,700 - - 2,015,700
Capitat assats:
Land 5235266 - - 5,235,286
Construciion in process 9,523,684 - - 9,523,684
Electric ufility systams 169,013,756 - - 169,013,758
Bulldings 25,414,009 - - 25,414,009
Equipment and machinery 7,401,451 - - 7,401,451
Cormnpuiar programs 1,654,687 - - 1,654,667
Vehicks 2,186,328 - - 2,188,328
Office equipmant 177,336 - - 177,336
Capltal assets, nat 220,608,517 - - 220,606,517
Total noncurrent gssats 222,626,217 - - 222826217
Total assets $ 307,650,387 3 15466 3 16,333,514 § 324,199,337
Uablities and net assets
Currant lisbilties to be pald from unrestrictad
current assata
Current portion of long-term liabilities 3 8,661,528 % - 3 - § 8,661,428
Accounts payahle and accruad expanses 16,395,482 - - 16,395,462
Total current tabllites to be pald from unrestricted current assaets 25,056,890 - - 25,056,830
Current llabiltthes to be pald from
restricted current assets
Ascounts payable and accruad expenses 5,000,242 - - 5,000,242
Total current [iabllities to be paid from
restricied current assets 5,000,242 - - 5,000,242
Total current Ilabilities 30,057,132 - - 30,057,132
Noncurrent llabllities
Long-term jiabllttias 23,413,417 - - 23,413,417
COther habiftias 512,859 - - 512,859
Uneamad deposlts 14,851 - - 14,951
Total noncumrent iablities 23,941,227 - - 23,841,227
Total [labllitas 53,996,350 - - 53,998,359
Net asseis
Capital assets nel of elalad dabl 188,423,456 - B 169,423,458
Restrictad for -
Capltal Projects ‘ 3,272 - - 3272
Debt service 11,462 - - 11,462
Unresiricled nat assets 64,413,816 15,458 16,333,514 80,782,788
Total net assets 253,852,008 15,456 16,333,514 270,200.978
Total (labdiities and net agsets 3 307,650,367 $ 15,456 3 16,333,514 $ 324,199,337

L-1




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, PORTH CAROLINA

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Fund Net Assets
Electric Fund
Year ended June 30, 2008

Uptown Rate
Electric Revltallzation Stabiflzatlon
3 Fund Fund Fund Total
Operating revenues
Charges for services % 166,699,655 $ - E - % 166,899,655
Total operating revenues 166,899,655 - - 166,690,655
Operating expenses
Power supply and generafion 99,428,511 - - 98,426,511
Electrlc operation 10,730,185 - - 10,730,185
General and administrative 10,254,699 - - . 10,254 680
Depraciation 13,893,321 - - 13,883,321
Total operating expenses 134,404,716 - - 134,404,718
Operating income {loss) 32,494,938 - - 32,494,939
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Interest earned on invesiments 2,547.068 - 582,851 3,128,719
Gain (Joss) on disposal of assets {117 680) - - (117,680)
Interest expense (1,821,290) - - (1,821,200)
Armortization (1,139,871} - - (1,139,871}
Finance costs {112,843) - - (112,843)
Total nonoperating revenue {expense) (844,618) - 582,651 {61,065)
Income (loss) before transfers
and contdbutions . 31,650,323 - 582,651 32,432,974
Transfers in 14 282 - 3,000,000 3,014,202
Transfers out (3,000,000) - - {3,000,000)
Transfers out - City of Fayettavilie {10,005,305) - - (10,005,305)
Contributions 405,588 - - 405,588
Change In net assets 18,264,626 - 3,582,651 22 847 547
Total net assets - beaginning 234,587,112 75,458 12,750,863 247353 431

Total net assets - ending $ 253,852,008 3 15,456 $ 18,333,514 $ 270,200,878




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP} -
Elactric Fund

Year ended June 30, 2008 .
(with comparative actual amounts for the yaar ended June 30, 2007}

2008
Variance
Posltive 2007
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Crperating revenues
Electric operations
Sale of electricity 3 157,848,900 3 {332,178) % 157,516,722 $ 151,700,168
City Services 6,884,600 (3,751,058) 3,133,542 2,196,872
Non-utility charges 1,420,100 186,102 1,608.202 1,241,380
Service charges 1,520,000 484,840 1,984,840 1,470,913
Miscellaneous 2,621,600 (163,251) 2,656,349 3,037,968
Total operating revenues 170,495,200 {3.505,545) 166,899,655 158,847,302
Non-operating revenues
Gain {loss) on asset digsposal - (117,880) (117,660) (295,047}
Interest eamed on investments 2,000,000 547,068 2,547 068 2,520,807
Total non-operating revenues 2,000,000 429,358 2.429,3688 2,225,580
Contributions
Contributions - 405,588 405,566 977,841
Total contributions - 405,568 405,568 977 841
Transfers in
Transfer frorn 20034 Water/Wastewater Fund - 14,292 14,292 -
Total transfers in . 14,292 14,292 -
Budgetary appropriations .
Department of Transportation financing - 125,928 125,928 (7,749)
Appropriated net assets 4,301,085 (4,301,085) - -
Total budgetary appropriations 4,301,085 (4,175,157) 125,926 (7,749)
Total revenues § 176,786,285 3 {6,821,4386) % 169,874,849 $ 162,842,754
Expenditures
Operating expenditures
Electric operations
Power supply and generation 3 88,624,540 5 188,028 3 99,426,511 $ 91,583,495
Administration 482,540 18,818 443,724 347,670
Apparatus rapair shop 355,300 34,317 320,983 315,849
Electric meter shop 820,340 103,577 718,763 B8z,880
Construction and mainienance B,067 410 775 8,068,825 5,834,791
Substation construction 1,047,800 28,280 1,019,840 938,672
Engineering 2,211,490 48,050 2,162,440 2,000,913
Total electric operations 110,589,520 432,624 110,156,696 101,813,270




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NPRTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - budgat and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Electric Furd

Yesr ended June gu. 2008
(with comperative actuel amounts for the year ended June 30, 2007}

2008
Variance
Posltive 2007
Budget |__{Nagative) Actugl Actual
Expenditures (continued) |
General and administrative

Execulive $ 686,715 1 15,337 1 651.378 § 541,847
IMemal audit 110,820 596 110,324 103,038
Publlc nfarmation 529,650 509 528,951 522,542
Finencial edministration 180,370 35,202 145,078 137,439
Admintstrative - adminlstration 155.870 55,716 100,154 102,595
Humen resources 445,425 17232 426,193 429,962
Agcounting 450.290 25,040 425241 451,055
Agcounts receivable 704,545 26,913 &77,682 811,540
Payroll 51,880 2577 58,303 58,851
Customer service administration 1,913,070 227,089 1,866,871 1,637,036
Uiy field services 1,197,885 206 1,197.679 1,474,674
Business plenning 269,800 11,012 258,788 234,890
Business development 423.050 89,568 333,454 357,027
Risk manegerent 541 920 46,410 493,510 452 862
Cepital prajects 200,010 B.,530 191.480 184,748
Rates 145,485 50,624 4,661 84,776
Budget 104,060 | 3,164 100,878 04,199
Purchasing 244,215 129 244 086 222,543
Warehousa 378,485 a0 375,881 381,081
Business planning, development & loglstes 168,795 3,447 185348 : 78177
Flest melntenanca 1,108,050 148672 857,378 909,570
Fecililes malntenance 184,025 196 183,629 165,233
Telecommunications systems 449,545 166 448 377 436,441
Infarmation systems 1,042,225 706 1041539 912 884
Penslon expense 1,000 (16,420) 17.420 712
Medical insurance 2,171,000 {148 ,4786) 2319476 2,008,247
Other 2,357.500 928 647 1,428,853 1.498,076
Allocated rent and fiber clearing (2.095.600) (3,944) {2,081,656) (2,152,606)
Overhead ciearing (2,738.900) ] 82,506 {2.821,498) {2,705,414)

Total ganeral and administrative 11,388,215 | 1,614,369 9,763,816 9,142,743

Total operating expsnditures 121,887,735 i 2,047,223 118,840,512 110,956,013

Non-cperating expendiures

Interest expense 1,918,000 87,710 1,821,200 4515105
Finance costs 116.000 e | 8,157 112,843 138,709

Total non-operating expendiures 2,038,000 103,867 1,934,132 4,853,614




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Electric Fund

Year ended June 30, 2008
[with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2007)

2008
Variance
Posltive 2007
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Translors out
Fransfers to Clty of Fayetievile $ 10,085,500 s 90,195 $ 10,005,305 % 8,891,089
Transfers to Eleciric Raie Stabilization Fund 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 2,000,000
Total ransfers out 13,085,500 50,195 13,005,305 10,691,089
Budgetary appropriations
inventory mcrease (decrease) 300,000 395,286 (95,288) 524,902
Vehicle and equipmen - {385,634) 365,634 260,724
Debl principal paymants 51,113,100 15 51,113,085 78,368,370
NCDOT Praject payments - (66,373) 68,373 28,398
Capltal outlay 22.570,650 5,886,533 16,660,717 18,128,199
Prepaid powar credit adjustmanl (34,308,700) 2,030,685 {36.339,385) (70.472,80B)
Total budgetary appropriations 38,875,050 7,881,912 31,763,138 28,156,705
Total expendltures 13 176,706,285 $ 10,123,187 % 166,673,086 3 154,857,631
Reconcllietion of chenge In net assets
Total revanues ] (6,921,438 $ 169,874,849 13 162,842,754
Tolal expanditures 10,123,197 166,873,086 154,857,631
Subtotal ' 13 3,201,761 3,201,761 8,185,123
Reconclling ltems:
Budpetary sppropnallons 31,867.210 24,164,454
Oapraciation (13.993,321) (13,578,303)
Amortizetion 1,139,674) (1,373,230)
OPEB expensa (470,883) -
Transier of asseis (toyfrom 1ha 2003A Electric Reverwe Bond Fund - 4,535,627
Total reconclling tams 16,063,136 17,747 748
Change in net assets 13 18,264 866 % 25,932,871

L-5




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Uptown Revitalization Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

—
|
Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues 3 - 3 - 3 3 -
Tota! Revenues - - -
Expenditures
Museum land acquisltion . 2,346,547 2,346,547
Botanical gardens - 55,705 55,705
Consulting fees - 132,304 132,304
Museum construction - 7,153,453 7,153,453
Transporiation system - 293,206 293,206
Land donafion - 175,000 175,000
Riverfront development - 79,776 79,776
Hydrology sfudy - 8,705 8,705
Electric system improvements - 3,320,201 3,328,201
Water and Wastewater improvements - 842,647 912,647
Total expenditures 14,500,000 | 14,484,544 14,454,544
Revenues under expenditures (14,500,000) (14,484,544) {14,484,544)
|
Other financlhg sources
Transfer frem Electric Fund 14,500,000 14,500,000 14,500,000
Total other financing sources 14,500,000 | 14,500,000 14,500,000
Revenues and other financing sources
over expendltures 3 - 3 15,4540 $ 15,456

Reconcliing tems:

Change in net assets $




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes In the Status of Electric Rate Stabilization Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Ysar Total
Revenues
Interest eamed on Investmants ) 2,225,000 % 1,581,138 $ 582,651 $ 2,163,789
Rate stabllizatlon transfer 4,188,725 4,168,725 - 4,168,725
Total revenues 8,394,725 5,750,663 582,651 6,333,514
Expenditures - - - -
Total expenditures - - - -
Revenues under expenditures 5,394,725 5,750,863 562,851 6,333,514
Other financing sources
Transfer from Electric Fund 15,000,000 12,000,000 3,000,000 15,000,000
Transfer 1o Electric Fund (5,000,000) {5,000,000) - (5,000,000)
Appropriated net assets (16.304,725) - - -
Total other financing sources (6,304,725) 7,000,000 3,000,000 10,000,000
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures $ - % 12750863 3562651 § 16,333,514

Change in net assets 5 3,582,651
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenuss and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year ended June 30, 2008
(with comparatlve actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2007)

2008
Varlance
Positive 2007
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Operating revenues
Water oporations
Water Sales $ 23,810,702 $ 978,558 $ 24,780,261 $ 22,882,950
Connection fees 880,700 (253,389} 407,331 1,352 188
City Services 103,408 60,685 164,163 139,130
Tutal water operations 24,574,900 788,855 25,381,755 24,104,248
Sanltary sewer ocperations
Sewar charges 27,348,232 755,426 28,104 658 26,303,679
Connection fees 402,600 (186,013) 214,587 1,116,323
City services 60,268 {18,576) 43,602 55,373
Total sanitary sewer operations 27 812100 550,837 28,362,037 27.477 575
Other operating revenues
Non-utlity charges 985,600 20,833 1,018,233 976,021
Service charges 354,000 17,377 371,377 319,847
Miscellaneous 274,500 (88.770) 204,730 150,385
Total ather operating revenues 1,624,100 {31,7680) 1,582 340 1,446 033
Total operating revenues 54.011.10C 1,305,932 55,317,032 53,107,856
Non-operating revenues
Gain (loss) on asset disposal - 22,802 22,802 (191,209}
Interest earned on investments 1,400,000 408,172 1,808,172 1,781,264
Total non-operating revenues 1,400,000 430,974 1.830.874 1,590,055
Contributlons
Contributions £.300,000 (2,777 ,266) 3,523,814 2,336,819
Total contributiona 8.300,900 (2,777.288) 3523614 2,336,818
Transfers in
Transfer from Clty of Fayetteville 539,900 65) 538,835 -
Transfer from 2003A Water’Wastowater - 49,644 49 644 -
Transfer from Phase VB - 104,001 104,004 -
Total transfers In 536,000 153,580 603,460 -
Budgetary appropriations
Department of Transportation financing - 1,053,833 1,053,633 1,297777
Cumberland county note proceseds 39,600 - 39,600 38,800
Series 2008 bond procesds 17,225,330 2 17,225,332 -
Appropriations of net essets 6,553,295 {B,553,295) - -
Total budgetary appropriations 23,818,225 (5,4908,660) 18,316.5685 1,337,377
Total revenues 3 86,070,125 3 (5,386,450) $ 79683685 $ 58,372,107
Expenditures
Operating expenditures
Water operations
Adminlstration and enginearing $ 1,117,180 3 75,178 $ 1,042,002 8 1,093,848
Water meter shop 282,420 181,472 80,845 110,473
Construction and maintenance 3,598,120 24,248 3,574,674 3,124,330
Contract systern maintenance 112,320 500 111,721 -
P. O. Hotfer water treaiment plan 2,892 076 85,702 2,806,374 3,161,574
Glenville Lake water treatment plant 1,523,588 184 1,523,402 1.412,887
Water Resources environmental system protection 143,925 4,880 138,245 145,157
Laboratory 231,845 5125 226720 220,784
Environmental 93,230 741 92,489 §2,062
VWatersheds 151,850 18,300 133,350 113,552
Total water operations 10,127,382 388,237 9,731,125 0,474,877
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CITY QOF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures + Budget and Actual {(Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year ended Juna 30, 2008
{with comparative actual amounts forfthe year ended June 30, 2007)

2008
Variance
Posltive 2007
Budget | {Negative) Actual Actual
Expenditures (continued) |
Operating expenditures {continued
Sanitary sewer operations

Administration and engineering 3 1,117,180 B 75,178 § 1,042,002 § 1,093,846
Sewer congtruction and maintenance 3,644 506 27,211 3617285 3,327,271
Contraci systern maintenance -+ 74,880 398 74,481 -
Cross Creek WW treatment plant 2,083,926 108 2,093,818 1,873,077
Rockfish Creek WW treatment piart 2,051,756 35,948 2,015,808 2,177,498
Residuals management 233,540 177 233,363 214,206
Water resource environmanta!l system protection 143,925 4 680 739,245 145,155
Laboratory 231,845 5,125 226,720 220,783
Environmental 93,230 741 92,489 82,063

Total sanitary sewer operatlons 9,684,788 ‘ 149, 567 9,535,221 9,143,699

General and admintstrative

Executive 353,515 94,183 258,322 242 110
Intarnal audit 109,720 588 108,132 101,819
Public information 588,150 169 588,981 516,802
Financial administration 171,270 30,489 140,801 127,042
Administrative adminlstration 155,670 64,477 91,193 120,240
Human resources 442 225 17,189 425026 410,671
Accounting 450,290 38,870 411,320 450,088
Accounts receivable 705,185 27,128 678,066 812,147
Payroll 61,680 2,666 59,214 56,627
Customer service administration 1,518,870 172,145 1,346,825 1,365,581
Ulility field service 1,184,585 187,829 993,756 1,043,408
Business development 318,050 35,143 282,907 273,589
Businass planning 269,800 2,909 286,891 234,660
Risk menagement 551,520 36,756 514,764 353,847
Capltal projects 194,510 8,131 186,379 184,355
Rates 145,385 50,825 94,560 008,644
Budpget 103,860 3,585 100,375 96,199
Purchasing 244,015 96 243,919 224,238
VWarehouse 337,965 94,236 243,729 310,416
Business planning, deveiopment & logistics 166,295 5,202 181,093 175,365
Fleet maintenance 1,241,980 (143,361) 1,385,311 1,242,015
Facilites maintenance 192,725 1,082 191,643 165,324
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year ended June 30, 2008
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2007)

2008
Variance
Posltive 2007
Budget (Negative) Actual Actuat
Expenditures (¢continued)
Operating expenditures (continued
General and administrative (continued)
Telacommunications systems $ 447,045 $ 79 $ 448 966 $ 430,641
Information systems 1,042,225 6,746 1,035,479 908,966
Pension expenses 1,000 (13,735) 14,735 6,712
Medical insurance 2,354,500 (66,074) 2,420,574 2,141,465
Other 1,547,300 604,105 943,185 1,074,151
Overhead clearing (2,787,500} 301,046 (3,178,546) (2,878,804}
Total general and administrative 12,130,215 1,652,605 10,477,610 ©,986,819
Total operating expenditures 31,942 365 2,188 408 29,743,956 28.605,385
Non-operating expenditures
Interest expense 5,419,300 (10,768} 5,430,068 5,215,468
Finance costs 368,000 20,947 368,053 385,486
Total nhon-operating expendltures 5,808,300 10,179 5,796,121 5,600,934
Transfers out
Transfer to City of Fayetteville - - - 554,850
Transfer to WAWWW Rate Stabitization Fund ' 500,000 - 500,000 500,000
Transfer to Annexation Phase V Project 1 Fund 5,466,142 1 6,468,141 754,611
Transfer o 2008 WAVW Bond Fund 10,610,511 - 10,610,511 -
Transfar to Rim Road Water Main Fund 205,200 16,672 188,528 -
Total transfers out 17,781,853 16,673 17,765,180 1,808,461
Budgetary appropriations
Inventory increase - (428,725) 428,725 (336,454)
Vehicle and equipment - (887,672) 687,672 604,359
Other debt related payments 2,067,457 (2} 2,087,459 -
Debt principal payments 6,078,300 1,291,620 4,786,680 4,825,630
MNote payments - {1,244,241) 1,244,241 1,281,458
NC DOT project payments 2,609,200 882,316 1,826,684 1,012,877
Capital putlay 19,582,650 9,807,726 9,774,924 14,731.905
Total budgetary appropriations 30.537.607 9,521,022 21,016.585 22,129,773

Total expenditures $ 86,070,125 $ 11,746,283 $ 74323842 $ 58145563




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARGLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year ended Junq 30, 2008
{(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2007)

.

‘ 2008
‘ Varience
Positlve 2007
Budgat {Negative) Actual Actual
Reconcliiation of change in net assets

Total revenue | % (6,386,460) $ 79,BB3665 $ 58,372,107
Total expenditures | 11,746,283 74,323,842 58,145.563

Subtotal ls 5350823 5,359,823 226,544

Reconciling Items:

Budgetery appropriations 2,688,020 20,792,396
Depreciation (14,089,673) {12,898,335)
Amortization (925,398) {932,9786)
QOPEB expense (524,392) -
Devaloper and FIF credits 12,719,060 14,303,929
Assessments {1,801,352) -
Transfer of assets (o) / from Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase VB - 27,774
Transfer of assets (io) / from Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase V-1 6,764,178 -
Transfer of assets (to) / from Rim Road Water Main Capital Project Fund 282,341 -
Transfer of assets (to) / from State Revolving Loan Capitat Project Fund (16,958,188) 13,273,474
Transfer {to) / from 2003A Water and Wastewater Bond Capital Project F"und 611,133 926,305
Transfer (to) / from Series 2008 Revenue Bond Capltal Project Fund 7,547 250 -

Total reconciling items {3,747,001) 35,582 567

Change in net assets % 1,612,822 $ 35,809,111




CiTY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Reserve Fund

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorlzatlon Years Year Total’
Revenues
Interest earned on investments $ 56,127 $ 127,546 27,098 $ 154,644
Total revenues 56,127 127,546 27,088 154,644
Revenues under expendltures 56,127 127,546 27,098 154,644
Other financing sources
Transfer from Water and Wastewater Fund 4,000,000 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Transfer to Annexation Phase IV
Capital Project Fund (3,500,000) (3,500,000) - {3,500,000)
Appropriated net assets (556,127) - - -
Total other financing sources (56,127) 500,000 - 500,000
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures $ - $ 27,546 27,098 5 654,644

Reconciling items:
Change in net assets

27,098




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund - Phase IVB
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorlzation | Years Year Total
Revenues
Interest earned on investments $ 346,127 |13 346,127 % - § 346,127
Total revenues 346,127 | 346,127 - 346,127
Expenditures
Construction - 12,151,342 - 12,151,342
Engineering - 1,847,698 - 1,847,698
Rights of way - 168,017 - 158,017
Less City of Fayetteville participation - {4,207 623) - (4,207,623)
Interes! cost - 234,268 - 234,268
Cther - | 651,505 - 651,505
Total expenditures 10,935,208 \ 10,935,207 - 10,835,207
Revenues under expendltures {10,569,081) (10,589,080} - {10,589,080)
Other financing sources (uses)
Bond proceeds 10,354,812 10,354,812 10,354,812
Transfer to Water and Wastewater Fund (104,000} - (104,001) {104,001)
Trensfer from Annexation Phase IVA Fund 338,269 | 338,269 - 338,269
Total other financing sources 10,589,081 ! 10,693,081 {104 001) 10,589,080
T
Revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures $ - |8 104,001 (104,001) 3 -
= —_—
Change in net assets 3 £104,001;

Capital Project Fund closéld at June 30, 2008.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes In the Status of 2002 State Revolving Loan Capital Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues § - $ - $ - 3 -
Total revenues - - - -
Expenditures

Construction - 15,080,779 - 15,080,779

Engineering - 1,661,059 . - 1,561,059

GCther/Contingency - 328,010 - 328,010
Total expenditures 17,442 000 16,969,848 - 16,860,848
Revenues under expenditures (17,442,000) (18,968,848) - (16,069,848)

Other financing sources (uses)

State revolving loan proceeds 17.442,000 18,969,848 - 16,060,848
Total other financing sources 17,442 000 16,860,848 - 16,969 848
Revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures ] - 3 - - 3 -

Reconciling tems:
Tmansfer of assets {to) from the Water and Wastewater Fund 16,958,168
Chanpe in net assets $ 16,958,168

Capltal Project Fund closed at June 30, 2008,




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 2003A Water and Wastewater Revenue Bond Capltal Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total
Project Prlor Current
Authorization | Years Year Total
Revenues )
Intarest earned on investments % 118,347 i 108,306 - 10,041 5 118,347
Total revenues 118,347 ] 108,306 10,041 118,347
T
Expenditures
Construction - 5,004,648 612,589 5,617,237
Engineering - 247 461 - 247 461
Other - 495 383 8,585 503,968
Total expenditures 6,368,666 i 5,747,492 621,174 6,368,866
Revenues under expenditures (6,250,318} (5,638,186) (611,133) (6,250,318)
Other financing sources (uses)
2003 Revenue Bond proceeds 6,513,307 6,513,307 - 6,513,307
Transfer to Electric and Water/Wasleweter Funds {262,988} {199,052) (83.836) {2682,988)
Total other financing sources 6,250,318 | 6,314,255 (63,936} 6,250,319
Ravenues and other financing sources over
expandltures $ - 3 675,069 : (675,069) 5 -
Reconclling items:
Capital outlay 7 611,133
Transfer of assats to the Water and Wastawater fund (611,133)
Change in nat assets $ 5675,0692

Capital Project Fund ciosed June 30, 2008.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Water and Wastewater Rate Stabilization Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total
: Project Prlor Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues
Interest earned on investments $ 178,300 3 79,994 3 76,226 k] 156,220
Total revenues 178,200 79,994 76,226 156,220
Other financing sources
Transfer from Watar and Wastewater Fund 2,000,000 1,500,000 500,000 2,000,000
Appropriated net assets (2,178,300} - - -
Total other financing sources {178,300) 1,500,000 500,000 2,000,000
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures 3 - 3 1,579,004 576,226 3 2,156,220
Change in nef assets 3 576,226
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, N‘ORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes In the Status of Annexation Capltal Project Fund - Phase V-Project 1
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorlzation | Years Year Total
Revenues
Interest eamed on invesied bond proceeds $ 93,470 $ - $ 4,385 5 4,385
Interest earned on cther investments - | 325 112,042 112,367
Totfal revenues 93,470 | 325 118,427 116,752
Expenditures
Construction - - 5,557,129 5,557,129
Enginesring - 910,683 74,816 985,499
Rights of way - 195,693 83,913 279,606
Othar - | 89,601 271,514 381,115
Tota! expenditures 14,285,616 ; 1,195,977 5,887,372 7,183,349
Revenues under expenditures {14,182 346) | (1,185,652} (5,870,945} {7.086,597)
Other financing sources
Bond proceads 4,547 362 - 4,547 362 4,547 362
Transfer from the City 4,822 492 754 611 1,918,778 2,873,390
Transfer from Water and Wastewates Fund 4,822 482 1 754,611 1,918,779 2,673,390
Total other financing sources 14,192 348 1 1,508,222 8,384,920 9,894 142
|
Revenues and other financing sources over
expendltures $ - s 313,570 2513975 § 2,827,545
1
Reconclling items;
Capital outlay 5,882 987
Transfer of agsets {to)/from the Water and Westewater Fund (8,764,178}

Changs in net essais $ 1,732,784




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Fort Bragg interim Water Service Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total
Project Prior Current
Authornization Years Year Total
Revenues '
Miscellaneous Operating Revenues $ 6,728,945 ] 1,412,327 $ 1,763,025 S 3,175,352
Total Revenues 6,728,845 1,412,327 1,763,025 3,175,352
Expendltures
Design, budget and schedule 2,343,025 585,756 585,757 1,171,543
Initial capital payment 628,524 - - -
Transition costs 274,112 274,112 - 274112
Interim plant operations 3,253,284 542,214 1,100,694 1,642,808
Interim operations majar 230,000 10,245 76,574 86,819
Total expenditures 8,728,845 1,412,327 1,763,025 3,175,352
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures $ - $ - - $ -

Change In net assets $ Z




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, N‘ORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 2008 F:ievenue Bond Capital Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year’ Ended June 30, 2008

Total
Project Prlor Current
Authorization Years Year Total
T .
Revenues |
interest eamed on investments $ 51,450 5 - 3 87,423 $ 67,423
Total revenues 51,450 | - 67,423 67,423
Expenditures
Construction - - 8,953,765 8,963,765
Engineering - - 91,278 91,278
Otner - - 372,593 372,993
- Total expenditures 10,671,961 | - 9,428,036 9,428,038
Revenues under expenditures (10,610,511) - (9,360,613} (9,360,613)
Other financing sources
Bond procesds 10,610,511 ] - 10,810,511 10,610,511
Total other financing sources 10,610,511 | - 10,610,511 10,610,611
T
Revenues and other financing sources over
expendltures 5 - $ - 1,249,898 3 1,249,808
1 -
Reconcliling Hems:
Capital outiay 9,260,613
Transfer of assets {to} / from the Water and Wastewatar Fund {(7.547,250)
Change in net assets $ 3,063,261



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Rim Road Water Main Capital Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues
Interest eamed on investments 3 - $ - 3 - 3 -
Total revenues - - - -
Expenditures
Construction - - 201,002 201,002
- Engineenng - - 45,933 45,933
Rights of way - - 21,140 21,140
Other - - 14,266 14,266
Tota! expenditures 340,400 - 282,341 282,341
Revenues under expenditures (340,400) - {282,341) (282,341
Other financing sources
NCDENR contribution - - 56,659 56,659
NC Rural Economic Development Center Grant - - 45,000 45,000
Transfer from the City 135,200 - 118,528 118,528
Transfer from Water and VWastewater Fund 205,200 - 188,527 188,527
Total other financing sources 340,400 - 408,714 408,714
Rewvenues and other financing sources over
expenditures $ - § - 128,373 $ 126,373
Reconciling Itams:
Capital outlay 282,341
Transfer of assets (to) / from the Water and Was{ewater Fund {282,341)
Change in net assets $ 126,373
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
June 30, 2008

Total Nonmajor

Transit Airport Solid Waste Enterprise
Fund Fund Recycling Fund Funds
Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments $ 610,851 $ 5079337 § 182,802 $ 5,872,990
Accounts receivable 2,075,572 520,942 - 2,596,514
Inventories 176,371 6,030 - 182,401
Restricted cash and investments - 415,644 - 415,644
Total current assets 2,862,794 6,021,953 182,802 9,067,549
Noncurrent assets
QOther assets - 22,000 - 22,000
Capital assets 3,956,491 24,234 972 - 28,191,463
Total noncurrent assets 3,956,491 24,256,972 - 28,213,463
Total assets $ 6,819,285 $ 30,278,925 $ 182,802 $ 37,281,012
Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 2,011,322 $ 261,204 $ 135,341 $ 2,407 867
Interfund payables - 283,097 - 283,097
Accrued vacation 82,879 68,466 - 151,345
Total current liabilities 2,094,201 612,767 135,341 2,842,309
Noncurrent liabilities
Net OPEB Obligation 179,073 79,814 - 258,887
Deferred revenues 1,303 27,814 - 29,117
Total noncurrent liabilities 180,376 107,628 - 288,004
Total liabilities 2,274,577 720,395 135,341 3,130,313
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,956,491 24,234,972 - 28,191,463
Restricted for:
Capital projects - 415,644 - 415,644
Unrestricted 588,217 4,907,914 47 461 5,643,592
Total net assets 4,544,708 29,558,530 47 .461 34,150,689
Total liabilities and net assets $ 6819285 $ 30,278,925 § 182,802 $ 37.281012
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE|/NORTH CAROCLINA

Combining Staternent of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Nonmajor Entergrise Funds '
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total Nonmajor

Transit Airport Solid Waste Enterprise
Fund Fund Recycling Fund Funds
Operating revenues
Charges for services § 744684 $§ 3,079,004 § - § 3823778
Other revenue from operations 29,661 145,076 - 174,737
Total operating revenues 774/345 3,224 170 - 3,998,515
Operating expenses
Personnel 2,800,670 1,176 424 - 3,977,004
Maintenance and operations 2,227,543 1,185,568 1,845,629 5,358,740
Depreciation 555,798 1,309,200 - 1,864,998
Total operating expenses 5,584{011 3,671,192 1,945,629 11,200,832
Operating income (loss) (4,809/666) {447,022) (1,945,629) (7,202,317)
Nonoperating revenue {expense}
Interest earned (expensed} on investments - 238,940 - 238,940
Federal and State grants 2,183|076 146,092 - 2,329,168
Miscellaneous revenue 5,974 84,297 - 90,271
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 1,196 447 - 1,643
Interest expense - (18,022) - (18,022)
Amortization - {22,000) - {22,000)
Miscellaneous expense - (275,143) - (275,143)
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 2,1903,246 154,611 - 2,344,857
Income (loss} before transfers
and contributions (2,619',420) {292.411) (1,945,629) {4,857,460)
Transfers in 2, 127:L220 - 1,993,090 4,120,310
Capital contributions 2,067,936 822,403 - 2,890,339
Change in net assets 1,575L?36 529,992 47 461 2,153,189
Total net assets - beginning 2.968{,972 29,028,538 - 31,997,510

Total net assets - ending $ 4544708 § 29,558530 § 47461 $ 34,150,699




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total Nonmajor

Transit Airport Solid Waste Enterprise
Fund Fund Recycling Fund Funds
Operating activities
Cash received from customears $ (1.345231) $ 3556931 % - % 2,211,700
QOther operating revenue 30,195 143,546 - 173,741
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services (2,643,631) (1,073,647) - (3,717,278)
Cash paid for goods and services (284,829} (1,687,056) {1,810,288) (3,782,173)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities (4,243,496) 939,774 {1,810,288) (5,114,010}
Noncapital financing activities
Transfers in 2,127,220 - 1,993,090 4,120,310
Federal and State grants 2,183,076 146,092 - 2,328,168
Miscellaneous 5,974 84,257 - 90,271
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities 4,316,270 230,389 1,893,090 5,539,749
Capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from sale of assets 1,186 447 - 1,643
Contributed capital received 2,067,836 822,403 - 2,890,338
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (2,303,480} (1,111,307} - {3,414,787)
Principal paid on debt maturities - {31,605) - (31,605)
Interest paid on debt maturities - {18.022) - {18,022}
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities (234,348) (338,084) - (572,432}
Investing activities
Interest and dividends - 238,940 - 238,940
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities - 238,840 - 238,940
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents/investments (161.574) 1,071,019 182,802 1,092,247
Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year 772,425 4,423,962 - 5,196,387
End of year $ 610,851 § 5494981 § 182,802 § 6,288,634
Cash and cash equivalents % 610,851 $ 5,494,981 $ 182,802 & 6,288,634
Total cash and cash equivalents/investments $ 610,851 § 5,494,981 $ 182,802 $ 6,288,634
Unrestricted cash and equivalents/investments $ 610,851 § 5078337 & 182,802 % 5,872,990
Restricted cash and equivalents/investments - 415,644 - 415,644
Total cash and cash equlvalents/investments % 610,851 § 5,494,981 % 182,802 § 6,288,634
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statemen$ of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended JuniLe 30, 2008

Total Nonmajor

Translt Airport Solid Waste Enterprise
Funél Fund Recycling Fund Funds
Reconcifiation of operating income (loss) ‘
to net cash provided by
{used in) operating activities .
Operating income (loss} $ (4,808,666) % (447,022) & (1,945629) § (7,202,317)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used In} operating
activities:
Depreciation 556,798 1,309,200 - 1,864,998
Nonoperating payments for goods and services - {275,143) - {275,143)
Change In assets and liabilities
(increase) decrease in accounts recelvable (1,920,914) 477,837 - (1,443,077)
(Increase} decrease in inventory (169,001) (822) - (169,923)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities 1.94?,714 {209,876) 135,341 1,868,079
Increase {decrease) in accrued compensated
absences {2p.034) 7,516 - (14,518)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues 534 {1,530) - (986)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB Qbligafion 170,073 79,814 - 258,887
Total adjustments 566,170 1,386,796 135,341 2,088,307
Net cash provided by {used in) operating actlvities $ (4,24!3.496) $ 939774 ¢ (1.810,288) § (5,114,010}
|
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP)
Transit Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2008
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2007}

Variance
Positive 2008 2007
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues

Charges for services $ 716,368 $ 28,316 $ 744,684 $ 749,413

Other revenues from operations 39,190 (9,529) 29,661 51,773
Total operating revenues 755,558 18,787 774,345 801,186

Operating expenditures

Personnel 2,643,659 28 2,643,631 2,420,713

Maintenance and operations 2,323,783 247,762 2,076,021 1,713,189
Total operating expenditures 4,967,442 247,790 4,719,652 4,133,902
Operating loss {4,211,884) 266,577 (3,945.307) (3,332,716)

Nonoperating revenues {expenses}

Proceeds from sale of assets - 1,196 1,196 -

Federal grants 1,232,450 (48,848) 1,183,602 969,162

State grants 850,068 - 850,068 846,849
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,082,518 (47,652) 2,034,866 1,816,011
Revenues under expenditures (2,128,366) 218,925 {1,910,441) (1,516,705)

Other financing sources (uses})

Transfers in 2,129,366 (69,029) 2,060,337 1,516,704
Tota! other financing sources {uses) 2,129,366 (69,029) 2,060,337 1,516,704
Revenues and other financing

sources (uses) over (under) expenditures 3 - $ 149,896 $ 149,896 $ (1)
Reconciliation of change in net assets:

Total revenues $ 4,869,548 § 4,133,901

Total expenditures 4,719,652 4,133,902
Subtotal 149,896 (1)

Depreciation (555,798) {555,127)

MNet OPEB expense (179,0673) -

Change in inventory 19,105 (10,838}

Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation 22,034 (1,836)
Subtotal {693,732) (567.801)

Change in net assets $ {543,836) B (567,802)




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, I“ﬂORTH CAROLINA

Scheduie of Changes in the Status of
Transit Capital Pr&fject Fund

From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2008

Project Priér Closed Current
Authorization Yegh's Projects Year Total
Revenues

Federal grants $ 3,778,162 § 800,771 % 28,000 § 1,923,758 §% 2,696,520

State grants 364,330 62,022 - 177,860 235,682

Miscellaneous - 23,592 - 5,974 29,566
Total revenues 4,142,492 886,385 28,000 2,107,392 2,965,777

Expenditures

FTA Capital 0271 1,238,560 791,824 - 446,339 1,238,163

FTA Capltal 0292 - 35,000 35,000 - -

FTA Capital 0313 1,239,430 17,412 - 1,188,902 1,206,314

FTA Capitai 0327 940,000 137,140 - 76,737 213,877

FTA Capital 0357 555,000 14,605 - 292,756 307,361

FTA Capital 0378 20,000 - - - -

FTA Capital 0406 270,209 4,985 - 16,107 21,092

FTA Capital 0425 387,000 | - - 324,462 324,462
Total expenditures 4,650,199 1,000,966 35,000 2,345,303 3,311,269
Revenues cver (under) expendltures (507,707) (114,581} {7.000) {237,911) (345,492)

I
Other financing sources {(uses)

Transfers in 507,707 464,146 7,000 48,708 505,854
Total other financlng sources (uses) 507,707 464,146 7,000 48,708 505,854
Revenues and other financing

sources (uses) over (under)
expenditures $ - 3% 340,565 % - 8 (189,203) & 160,382
Reconcillation of modified accrual basis

to full accrual basis:

Excess of revenues over expenditures $ (189,203)

Capilal outlay 2,345,303

Non-capltalizable items (41,822)

Change in net Fssets $ 2,114,278
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of
Transif || Capital Project Fund

From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2008

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Intergovernmental
Federal grants $ 379,240 % 120,000 § 120,000 % 103,043 % 103,043
State grants 47,405 15,000 15,000 12,881 12,881

Total intergovernmental 426,645 135.000 135,000 115,924 115,924

Total revenues 426,645 135,000 135,000 115,824 115,824

Expenditures

Current
Transportation 474,050 150,000 150,000 128,805 128,805
Total expenditures 474,050 150,000 150,000 128,805 128,805
Revenues over (under)
expenditures (47,405) {15,000} (15,000) {12,881) (12,881)

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 47,405 44,230 15,000 18,175 47,405
Total other financing sources (uses) 47,405 44 230 15,000 18,175 47,405
Revenues and other financing

sources (uses} over (under)
expenditures ) - § 29230 % - § 5284 % 34,524
Reconciliation of modified accrual basis
to full accrual basis:
Excess of revenues over expenditures $ 5,294
Change in net assets $ 5,294




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Expenditures by Project
Transit [l Capital Project Fund

From Inception and for Yaa‘i' Ended June 30, 2008

Projact Prior Closed Current
Authorization , Years Projects Year Total
Expenditures by project:
Transportation
FTA 90.2357 $ - $§ 150,000 § 150,000 §% - 5 -
FTA 90,2406 292,300 - - 118,779 118,779
FTA 80.2425 181,750 - - 10,026 10,026
Total transportation 474,050 | 150,000 150,000 128,805 128,805
Total expenditures by project $§ 474050 13 150000 % 150,000 % 1288056 _§ 128805
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Airport Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2008
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2007)

Variance
Positive 2008 2007
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 2,880,741 $ 198,353 § 3,079,004 § 2,730,202
Other revenues from operations 136,329 8,677 145,076 305,063
Total operating revenues 3,017,140 207,030 3,224,170 3,035,265
Qperating expenditures
Personnel 1,129,025 39,932 1,088,093 1,101,013
Maintenance and operations 1,454,477 280,517 1,173,960 1,196,235
Capltal outiay 212,671 64,001 148,670 145,038
Total operating expenditures 2,796,173 384,450 2,411,723 2,442,286
Operating income (loss) 220,867 581,480 812,447 582,979
Nonoperating revenues
Interest earned on investments 100,000 74,149 174,149 156,978
Miscellaneous 84,297 - 84,297 84,297
Federal and State grants 141,536 4,556 146,092 114,380
Proceeds from sale of assets - 447 447 11,619
Total nonoperating revenues 325,833 79,152 404,985 367,274
Nonoperating expenditures
Interest expense - (18,022) 18,022 19,858
Public safety reimbursements 277,173 2,030 275,143 301,996
Total nonoperating expenditures 277,173 {15,892} 293,165 321,854
Revenues over (under) expenditures 269,627 654,640 824,267 638,309
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers (out) (405,711} 49,627 (356,084) -
Debt service - principal payment - {31,605) {31,605) {29,769)
Appropriated fund balance 136,084 {136,084) - -
Total other financing sources {uses) (269,627) (118,062) (387,689) (29,769)
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over {under) expenditures $ - $ 536,578 $ 536,578 $ 608,630
Reconciliation of change in net assets
Total revenues $ 3,629,155 & 3,402,539
Total expenditures 3,092,577 2,793,909
Subtotal - 536,578 808,630
Depreciation (1,308,200) (1,447,923)
Amortization (22,000) (22,000)
Change in accrued vacation {7.517) (1,416)
Change in inventory 922 (581)
Capital outlay 148,670 145,038
Principal payment 31,605 29,769
Net OPEB expense (79.814) -
Subtotal {(1,237,334) (1,297,123}

Change in net assets $ (700,756) $ (688,493)




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, f:\IORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of
Airport Capital Project Fund

From inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2008

Project brlor Closed Current
Authorization . ears Projecis Year Total
Revenues
Federal grants 5 6,706,328 § | 8,855,683 4,973,383 644,385 4,526,685
Slate grants 1,242 137 698,113 199,938 178,018 676,182
Local income 294,183 281,782 - - 281,782
Miscellansous income 209,490 1,042,023 214,020 - 828,003
Investment Income 88,303 173,479 25,000 64,791 213,270
Total revenues 8,540,441 [11,051,080 5,412,342 BB7,194 6,525,932
Expendltures
NLVR/Terminal rehab - . 2,422,588 2,422,588 - -
Masterplan update & land - ' 1,605,423 1,605,423 - -
Loop Road design - 28.559 29,559 - -
Local maleh / future projects 349,000 - - - -
Public sealing upgrade 105,000 - - 105,000 105,000
Security screening area 103,000 - - 70,282 70,282
AlP-32 Airport Improvement Projects 708,920 - - 369,426 389,426
YWest GA Ramp Rehab 459,171 - - 13,424 13,424
AIP-33 Airfield Lighting Vault 2,116,409 - - - -
Miscellanecus parking fof improvements - 88,775 88,775 - -
Obstructicn clearing - 1,477,695 1,477,695 - -
Stormwaler improvements 361,114 218,658 - 9,092 227,751
AlP-30 Ioop, buiiding, beacon 3,568,108 3.047,408 - 260,841 3,298,249
Security system instaliation 43,000 40,801 - - 40,801
Runway Centerling Paint - 3,544 3,544 - -
Airport Fire Training Facility 1,186,746 1,039,223 - 137,099 1,176,322
14 Unit T-Hanger 588,366 | 561,723 - - 561,723
Total expenditures 9,568,834 \‘ 10,535,398 5,627,584 975,164 5,882,978
Revenues ‘over (under) expenditures (1,048,383) | 515,682 (215,242} {87,970} 642,954
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 1,045,109 918,900 215,242 356,085 1,059,743
Proceeds from sale 3,284 3,284 - - 3,284
Total other financing sources {uses) 1,048,393 = 922,184 215,242 356,085 1,063,027
Revenues and other flnancing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures $ - % | 1437866 § . % 268,115 8 1,705,981
Reconclliation of modified accrual basis
to full accrual basis:
Excess of revenuas over expendilures § 268,115
Capltal outlay 975,164
Non-capitalizable items {12,531
Change in net assets $ 1,230,748




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Solid Waste Recycling Fund

Year E_nded June 30, 2008
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2007)

Variance
Positive 2008 2007
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues 3 - 3 - 5 - 3 -
Operating expenditures

Maintenance and operations 1,993,090 47,461 1,945,629 -
Total operating expenditures 1,993,090 47 461 1,945,629 -
Operating income {loss) (1,993,090) 47,461 (1,945,629) -
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,993,090) 47 461 (1,945,629) -

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 1,993,090 - 1,993,090 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,993,090 - 1,993.090 -
Revenues and other financing sources

(uses) over (under) expenditures $ - 3 47,461 $ 47 461 $ -
Reconclliation of change in net assets

Total revenues $ 1,993,090 § -

Total expenditures 1,945,629 -
Subtotal 47,461 -

Change in net assets $ 47461  § -
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Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of services provided by one

department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City on a cost

reimbursement basis.

The following comprise the City's Internal Service Funds:
- Warranty Fleet Fund
- Heet Maintenance Fund

- Insurance Fund

- PWC Heet Maintenance Fund

Al Internal Service Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting,
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2008

PWC
Warranty Fieet Fleet
Fleet Maintenance Insurance Maintenance
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments 3 830,581 % ~ % 14732836 % - % 15563417
Accounts receivable 3,588 - 36,951 962,359 1,002,889
Prepaid expenses - - 144 664 - 144 664
Total current assets 834,170 - 14,914,451 962,359 16,710,980
Noncurrent assets
Caplta! assets 538.760 - 21,408 1,816,686 2,376,854
Total noncument assets 538,760 - 21,408 1,816,686 2,376,854
Total assets $ 1372930 § - § 14835858 $ 2,779,045 § 19,087,834

Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 13981 % - % 2206769 % 326,032 § 2,636,782
Current portion of long term debt - - - 97,324 97,324
Interfund payables - - - 338,908 338,908
Accrued vacation - - 9,407 - 9,407
Total current liabilities 13,981 - 2,306,176 762,264 3,082,421
Noncurrent liabilities
Net OPER Obligation - - 27,396 74,913 102,309
Deferred revenues - - 12,000 - 12,000
Long-term debt - - - 61,366 61,366
Total noncurrent liabilities - - 39,396 136,279 175,675
Total liabllities 13,981 - 2,345 572 898,543 3,258,096
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 538,760 - 21,408 1,816,686 2,376,854
Unrestricted 820,189 - 12,568,879 63,816 13,452,884
Total net assets 1,358,948 - 12,590,287 1,880,502 15,820,738

Total liabilities and net assets $ 1372930 §$ - §$ 14935850 $ 2,779,045 $ 19.087,834




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Internal Service Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

PWC
Warranty Fleet Fleet
Fleet Maintenance Insurance Maintenance
Fund , Fund Fund Fund Total
Operating revenues '
Other revenue from operations $ - $ - % 487,878 % - 3 487,878
Interfund charges and employse contributions 318,330 | - 14,205,708 6,170,760 20,785,798
Total operating revenues 319,330 | - 14,783,586 6,170,760 21,273,676
f
Operating expenses
Personnel - - 398,788 - 398,788
Maintenance and operations 164,519 - 11,980,286 5,852,996 17,997,801
Depreciatien 159,687 ‘ - 28,544 114,681 302,912
Total operating expanses 324,206 \ - 12,407,618 5,067 677 18,699,501
Operating income (loss) {4,876} - 2,375,968 203,083 2,574,175
Nonoperating revenue {expense)
Interes! eamed (expensed) on investments 31,101 (1,848) 585,310 - 624,563
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 26,362 - - - 26,362
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 57,463 ‘ (1,848) 595,310 - 650,925
Income (loss) before transfers
and contributions 52,587 i {1,848) 2,971,278 203,083 3,225,100
|
Transfers in 200,000 - - - 200,000
Transfers out - | (168,220} - - {168,220)
Change in net assets 252,587 (170,068) 2,971,278 203,083 3,256,880
Total net assets - beginning 1,106,362 | 170,068 9,619,009 1,677,418 12,572,858

Total net assets - ending $ 1358049 § - % 12590287 $ 1,880,502 §$ 15,829,738




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Cash Fiows
Internal Service Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Operating activities
Cash received from customers
Other operating revenue
Cash received as deferred revenues
Cash paid to or on behalf of amployeés for services
Cash paid for goods and services
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Noncapltal financing activities
Transfers in
Transfers out
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from sale of assets
Acquisition and construction of capital assels
Net cash provided {used) by caplital and
related financing actlivities

Investing activities
Interest and dividends

Net cash provided {used) by Investing activities

Net Increase In cash and cash
equivalentsfinvestments

Cash and cash equlvalents/investments
Beglnning of year

End of year

Cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents/investments
Unrestricted cash and equivalents/investments
Total cash and cash equlvalents/investments
Reconcliiation of operating Income {loss)
to net cash provided by
{used In) operating activities
Operaling income (loss)
Adjustmenis to reconcile oparating income {loss)
to net cash provided by {used in) operating
aclivities:
Dapreciafion

Chenge in assets and liabilitles

(increase) decrease in accounts recejvable

{Increase) decreese in inventory

(Increase) decrease in prepaid ilems

{Incressa) decrease in intemal balances

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities

Increase (decrease) in accrued compensaled
absences

Increase (decreasa) in deferred revenues

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB Obligation

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $

PWC
Warranty Fleet Fleet
Fleet Maintenance Insurance Maintenance

Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
3 321,637 .% 158,924 % 14,336,908 $ 5669409 % 20,486,678
- - 487,878 - 487,878
- - 3,104 - 3,104
- - (377,477 (1.674,971) {2,052,448)
{150,538) (8,737) {11,644,865) (3.824,800} (15,629,040)
171,099 150,187 2,805,548 169,538 3,296,372
200,000 - - - 200,000
- {168,220) - - {168,220}
200,000 {168,220) - - 31,780
26,362 - - - 26,362
(216,141} - - (169,538} (385,679}
(189,779) - - (169,538) (359,317}
31,101 {1,848) 595,310 - 624,563
39,101 1,848) 595,310 - 624,563
212,421 {19.881) 3,400,858 - 3,593,398
618,160 19,681 11,331,978 - 11,970,019
$ 830,581 § - § 14732838 § - 8 15,563,417
3. 830.581 % - % 14732836 i - 3 15,563,417
3 , 7 - 3 T2, 3 - § 15583417
3 830,661 . & - % 147328% & ~ % 15,503,417
3 530,581 3 - "% 14732836 % -3 15,563,417
$ (4.876) & - 5 2375968 § 203,083 % 2,574,175
159,687 - 28,544 114,681 302,912
2,307 2,080 41,200 (501,351) {455,764)
- 156,844 - - 156,844
- - 104,311 - 104,311
- - - 159,984 169,984
13,981 (8,737) 231,110 59,370 295,724
- - {6.085) 58,858 52,773
- - 3,104 - 3,104
- - 27,396 74.913 102,309
175,975 150,187 429,580 (33,5458) 722,197
171,009 3 160,187 $ 2805548 % 169,538 & 3,286,372




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, ﬂdORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Warranty Fleei Fund

Year Ended Jund] 30, 2008
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2007}

1
T

Variance
Positive 2008 2007
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues
Interfund charges and employee contributions $ 322,879 $ (3.549) § 319,330 $ 301,810
Total operating revenues 322,879 (3,549) 319,330 301,810
Operating expenditures }
Maintenance and operations 165.?72 653 164,519 148,889
Capital outlay 246,124 © 29,983 216,141 191,029
Total operating expenditures 411,296 30,636 380,660 339,918
Operating income (loss) (88,417) 27,087 (61,330) {38,108)
Nonoperating revenues (expenditures)
Interest earned on investments 5,@00 26,101 31,101 25,308
Miscellanecus (168,?72} 168,572 - -
Proceeds from disposal of capital assels | - 26,362 26,362 12,843
Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures) (163,572) 221,035 57,463 38,151
Revenues over {(under) expenditures {251 ,éag) 248,122 ~ (3,867) 43
]
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 200,000 - 200,000 200,000
Appropriated fund balance 51,989 (51,989) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 251,989 {51,989} 200,000 200,000
Revenues and other financing sources
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ ] 196,133 § 196,133 $ 200,043
Reconciliation to change in net assets:
Total revenues $ 576,793 8§ 539,961
Total expenditures 380,660 339,918
Subtotal 196,133 200,043
Depreciation (159,687) (124,665}
Capital outlay 216,141 191,029
Subtotal 56,454 66,364
Change in net assets $ 252587 $ 266,407
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP)
Fleet Maintenance Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2008
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2007)

Variance
Positive 2008 2007
Budget ‘{Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues
Other revenues from operations 3 - % - 3 - 43
Total operating revenues - - - 43
Operating expenditures - - - -
Operating income (ioss) - - - 43
Nonoperating revenues {expenditures)
Interest eamed (expense)} - {1,848) {1,848) 13,782
Proceeds (loss) from disposal of capital assets - - - {106,602}
Total nonoperating revenue (expenditures) - (1,848) (1,848) {92,820)
Revenues over (under) expenditures - {1,848) {1,848) (92,777)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out (11,144) {157,076) (168,220} (334,482)
Appropriated fund balance 11,144 {11,144) - -
Total other financing sources {(uses) - {168,220} {168,220) (334,482)
Revenues and other financing scurces
{uses) over (under) expenditures 3 - 3 (170,068) $§ (170,068) (427,259)
Reconciliation to change in net assets:
Total revenues 3 (1,848) 13,825
Total expenditures 168,220 441,084
Subtotal (170,068) (427,259)
Change in net assets $  {170,068) (427,259)




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP)
Insurance Fund

Year Ended Junel30, 2008

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2007}

L

Vartance
Positive 2008 2007
Budget {Negatlve) Actual Actual

Operating revenues
Interfund charges and employee contributions  $ 15,739,746 § (1,444,038) $§ 14,205708 § 13,842,650

Other revenues from operations 83,000 404,878 487,878 173,514
Total operating revenues 15,822,746 (1,039,160) 14,783,586 14,016,164
]
Operating expenditures
Personnel 390,538 13,061 377477 380,982
Maintenance and operations 13,870,800 2,122,197 11,848,603 11,341,744
Capital outlay - - - 31,868
Total operating expenditures 14,361,338 2,135,258 12,226,080 11,754,594
Operating income (loss) 1,461,408 1,096,098 2,557,506 2,261,570
Nonoperating revenues (expenditures)
Interest eamed on investments 235,000 360,310 595,310 511,736
Misellanaous {1,701,625 1,701,625 - -
Total nonoperating revenue (expenditures) (1,466,62 2,061,935 595,310 511,736
Revenues over (under) expenditures (5,217) 3,158,033 3,152,816 2,773,306
Other financing sources (uses)
Appropriated fund balance 5,217 (5,217} - -
]
Total other financing sources {uses) 5,217 {5,217) - -
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures $ 1 % 3,152,816 $ 3,152,816 $ 2,773,306
1
Reconciliation to change in net assets:
Total revenues $ 15,378,896 $ 14,527,900
Total expenditures 12,226,080 11,754,594
Subtotal 3,152,816 2,773,306
Depreciation (28,544} (28,544)
Decraase (increase) in accrued vacation 6,085 394
Capital outlay - 31,868
Change in net OPEB expense (27,396) -
Decrease (increase) in insurance liability {131,683) 1,070,567
Subtotal {181,538} 1,074,285

Change in net assets $§ 297,278 $ - 3,847,591




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

i Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
‘ PWC Fieet Maintenance Fund
|

Year ended June 30, 2008
(with comparative actual amounts for the period ended June 30, 2007)

2008
Variance
Positlve 2007
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
| Revenues
; Operating revenues
’ City services $ 3,702,296 3 360,389 $ 4,062,685 $ 3,874,003
PWC services 1,993,545 110,982 2,104,527 1,933,415
Other revenue - 3,548 3,548 1,055
Total operating revenues 5,695,841 474,919 6,170,760 5,808,473
Non-operating revenues
Gain (loss} on asset disposal - - - 1,717
Total non-operating revenues - - - 1,717
Total revenues $ 5,695,841 $ 474,919 3 6,170,760 $ 5,810,190
Expenditures
Operating expenditures
Fleet maintenance $ 5,490,841 $ (287,242} $ 5,778,083 $ 5,679,733
Total operating expenditures 5,490,841 {287,242) 5,778,083 5,679,733
Budgetary appropriations
Capital outlay 205,000 35,815 169,185 83,982
Total budgetary appropriations 205,000 35,815 169,185 83,982
Total expenditures $ 5,695,841 5 (251,427) $ 5,847,268 $ 5,663,715
Reconciliation of changes in net assets
Total revenues % 5,695,841 L 474,919 $ 6,170,760 $ 5,810,190
Total expenditures 5,695,841 {251.427) 5,947,268 5,663,715
Subtotal $ - $ 223,492 223,492 146,475
Reconciling items:
Budgetary appropriations 169,185 83,982
Depreciation {114,681) (109,775)
OPEB expense (74,913) -
Change in net assets % 203,083 3 120,682
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Fiduciary Funds

- Pension Trust Funds

- Private-purpose Trust Funds

The focus of Fiduciary Fund measurement differs among the various types of funds

that may be encompassed by this classification.
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Trust Funds

Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity.

The following comprise the City's Trust Furds:
- Pension Trust Funds
- Special Separation Allowance Trust Fund
- PWC Supplemental Pension Trust Fund
- Private-purpese Trust Funds
- Police Benefit Trust Fund

- Firemen’s Relief Trust Fund
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds
June 30, 2008

Special
Separation PWC
Allowance Supplemental
Pension Pension
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Assets
Cash and investments
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2148562 $ 21,528 % 2,168,090
Mutual funds—-bonds - 2,051,324 2,051,324
Mutual funds—-US equities - 1,646,996 1,646,996
Mutual funds—-international equities - 467,587 467,587
Total cash and investments 2,146,562 4,187,435 6,333,997
Accounts receivable 6,289 - 6,289
Total assets 2,152,851 4,187 435 6,340,286
Liabilities
Accounts payable 19,721 25,302 45,023
Total liabifities 19,721 25,302 45,023
Net assets
Held in Trust for:
Pension benefits 2,133,130 4162133 6,295,263
Total net assets $ 2133130 § 4162133 § 6,295,263
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Pension Trust!Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Special
Separatlon PWC
Allowance Supplemental
Pension Pension
[Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Additions “ilif
Contributions $ 379,323 % - 3 379,323
Investment earnings 98,622 (284,106) {185,484)
Total additions . 477,945 (284,106) 193,839
Deductions
Benefit payments and premiums | 485370 90,456 555,826
Total deductions ! 465,370 90,456 555,826
Change In net assets 12,575 (374,562) (361,987}
Total net assets - beginning 2,120,555 4,536,695 6,657,250
=3
Total net assets - ending $ 2133130 % 4162133 $§ 6,295,263

=
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City of Fayetteville, North Carclina

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Private-purpose Trust Funds
June 30, 2008

Police Fireman's
Benefit Benefit
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 1335598 § 1,335,598
Interfund receivable - 33 33
Accounts receivable 4 14,629 14,833
Total assets 4 1,350,260 1,350,264
Liabilities
Interfund payable 33 - 33
Total liabilities 33 - 33
Net assets
Held in Trust for benefits and other purposes (29) 1,350,260 1,350,231
Total net assets $ (29) $ 1,350,260 $ 1,350,231
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Chang

Private-purpose T*’ust Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2008

es in Fiduciary Net Assets

Additions
Other revenue from operations
Contributions
Investment eamnings
Total additions

Deductions
Benefit payments and premiums
Total deductions

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

——

Police Fireman's
Benefit Benefit
!Trust Fund Trust Fund - Total
$ - % 36,952 36,952
575 117,959 118,534
‘ 43 58,318 58,361
] 618 213,229 213,847
4,486 195,722 200,208
4,486 195,722 200,208
(3.868) 17,507 13,639
| 3,838 1,332,753 1,336,692
—
$ (29) $ 1,350,260 1,350,231




Other Supplemental Financial Data

Other supplemental data is presented to provide a more detailed view of the
current tax levy and taxes receivable. These schedules are not funds and do not

measure results of operations.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Current Tax Levy

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Property
Excluding
Total Rate Registered Registered
Property Per Amount Motor Motor
Valuation $100 of Levy Vehicles Vehicles
Original Levy:
General Fund $ 10,338,942,092 3 0530 $ 54,796,383 $ 47838500 3 6,957,893
Late Listing Penalties:
General Fund 43,988 43,988 -
Subtotal 54,840,381 47 882,488 6,957,893
Discoveries:
General Fund 33,908,030 0.530 179,713 163,535 16,177
Late Listing Penalties:
General Fund 33,301 33,301 -
Subtotal 213,014 196,836 16,177
Releases:
General Fund (155,733,438) 0.530 (825,387} (74,964) (750,423}
Late Lisfing Penalties:
General Fund {(11,477) (11,477) -
Subtotal (836,864) (86,441} {750,423)
Adjusted Tax Levy 54,216,530 47,992 883 6,223,647
Uncollected Current Year Taxes at 6/30/2008 (1,477,723) (291,302) {1,186,421)
City-wide Current Year's Taxes Collected $ 52,738,807 $ 47,701,581 3 5,037,226
City-wide Current Levy Collection Percentage 97.27% 99.39% 80.94%




CITY OF FAYETI'EVILLE,! NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Taxes Receivable

June 30, 2008

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance |Additions Balance
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007 & Releases Collections June 30, 2008
2008 $ - $ 54,216,530 $ 52,738,807 % 1,477,723
2007 1,569,690 (131,983) 1,071,120 366,587
2006 Annexation 524,007 (1,139) 374,916 147,952
2006 369,296 (14,890) 99,850 254,556
All Prior 1,672,247 . (370,757) 78,053 1,423,437
4,135,240 $_: 53,897,761 3 54,362,746 3,670,255
Less: Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes '
General Fund (809,178) (801,167)
$ 3,326,062 3 2,869,088
General Fund Taxes Receivable $ 3,270,102
Less: CBTD Taxes Receivable (1,178)
Less: Vehicle License Fee Receivable (399,836)
General Fund Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable b 2,869,088
Reconciliations of collections and credit
with revenues
Ad Valorem Taxes per the fund financial statements $ 54,765,677
Less Penalties & Interest (320,348)
Less Taxes - CBTD {82,583)
General Fund Ad Valorem Taxes % 54,362,746
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Statistical Section







City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
STATISTICAL SECTION
(Unaudited)

This part of the City of Fayetieville's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding how the information in the financial statements,
note disclosures, and required supplementary information depicts the government's

overali financial health.

CONTENTS

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the government's financial performance has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the City's
most sighificant local revenue source.

Debt Capacity
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to
issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities
take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the City's financial report relates to the services
the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB
Statement No. 34 in 2002; schedules presenting government-wide information include information
beginning in that year.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

(This page left intentionally blank)




8G2°118'260'L § Z9P'SHR'TIOL B06'929'v56 96C'Er0'BZ8 £F1'STZL6L 3 L PSP $ 618408194
909'GES'ZBL Gi8'8L2'GBL £51°220'29) 12€'08L°9€EL 10E'820°ZE 0LL'98L'EZL 20p'222°52L
GPP'E9D'L - - - - - -
- ar1'528'e E£LL'T0L'2 BCS9rP'E L18'69E'Z B858'10S'0L FLTA T4
9L 020'819 0Z5'808 ££9°218 HF'866'8 569's2 LEB'PET'E
L¥9'ZZL'E or0'0ZY 596'£ZS DES'ZLS Z5SP'CSe' 0L - TIB'TLG'Y
£0Z'PEV'099  $ BZC'SPITIO 155'095'C8L £EE'90L'689 £90°pL9'DED $ BFL'OFO'LYS % 957'626'LT9
zho'ezeoEs ¢ £LE'0r9°L95 9PT PRELES p¥0'PES 00S 105'200'9LF $ £ZE'P6P bab 3 £LG'€2L 65k
vER'BBLZZL ESD'99E°LEL P.E'1S9'L5 LLE'SSL'ES €09°9L8' 1L 16P'SR2'69 SShPESTL
- - - - - 688°105'0L -
AT RN 0£0'91L8 0Z5°809 oA WAR:] pPr'866°8 569°GZ LE6'VBZ S
BLE'GL0'T 0r0‘0ZY SO6°LZS 9ES'ZVS ZSF'ESE 0L - Z26'TLS Y
LEPLPB'SOS ¢ 05526285y BEE'0BE'CED voS'er0'aZy ZOR'9EL'¥RE $ gLE' L8l 'pee $ 6GZ°LZE'6LE
Lyi'6kL' LTy $ 6vL'SHE'OER 098'ZrZ €LY 712605928 Zr9'L1Z'6LE 3 680'00Z'0LE $ vz ' ves'10e
PLE'GEE DL 222'TIB'EL 82:'89E'69 91.0°G00°c9 ¥95'0LL'09 652’ LOV'ES 256'269'75
SHPE99° L - - - - - -
- 9bL'GZSE €1LL'20L'2 BZSOrP'T 218°698'2 - L6Z'E8Z
729'LP0°L - - - - - -
994'79v pSE §  B22100'€SE f9L'0LL"LGE 69.'L60°E92 19Z°262°252 $ 0ea'sse'9sZ $ 18620982
800Z 2002 9002 S00Z ro0zZ £00Z zZ00Z
e A (e8]
L anpayog
(pejpneun)

(Supunosoe jo siseq jeniooe)
sIea) [B9S| UaASS )BT
euodwos Aq 513sSY 18N
BU||0IRD YHON ‘OjIAeNeled jo A1D

‘B JBA0 asuewropad [Bloueuy
5417 Sul Slelysn|| 0] JEaA JUSLND L)) )M pajuesed aq ||wm sieak Joud (g) auiu o] dn ‘auniny SU) Ul "ZOOZ JESA [BIS|4 Ul PE UBWSIEIS gSve pauswadul BUIOIED UUON ‘MiAS)SABS J0 AT 8U1 :8jON

8189888 18U Juswweaob Alewd (ejo |
palaasaIun
asueldwo) juslg
sesodind Jagqio
so1Aes jgeq
s1osloud Eyden
110) peOISaY
1G9 P pajejad Jo Jeu ‘sjasse [eyded u) pajseau|
aWweAon ABwid

§19598 Jou SelALoe adA)-ssouisny (B0
pajusalun)
eaue|don jueso
sesodind 1eyig
Bolnes jqeq
s108loud |eldeD
D) paloEay
1q9p palel JO 13U ‘slesse jelided Ul pajsaau)
sa[J|ARo. adA-ssa3uisng

S]9SSE 18U S6IAIDB |EJuaLILWBA0S |BJO |
pslomsaiun
8oue||dwo) JuBIn
sesodind Jeyig
spvfoid gden
10} pejouisay
19ap pajE|aJ JO JaU ‘S}asSE [ENGED U] pa)seAu]
SBIJANDY |EJUBLULLISAOL)




¢d

80P'GG atb'El S8L'86 - - - - suo/quuos pua srelb [Erden

£28'v56's EEP'OLLG 015°eE8'e 108'¥SZ ¥ 228'0Z6'¢ 89G'616°C 1Z2L'LBL'Y suofinquued pue sels Bupesedo

269'288 ErT'RII'L 180°2€S [R:0:5- FEO'¥SEL SZ6'art'L 866'902'1 sao1Ases U0 Babueys
uoepodsurl

- - - - - - - suognquuos pure syreld |iden

068'E0E'T BEE'6GT'Z - - - - 000°19 suopNguILed pue sjuelB Bugeiedp

L09'0LP'E cel'0r 266'08 9SE'EZ 05199 185'26 £P6'8E sa0iAlas Jo) sabiey)
UOJI8)QU |BJUSLLIIATALT

Y516k £98'GE 0r¥G'L9E B8C'PIS 05L's ¥GS'EEl zZ'e8t suoanquuas pue sueiB enden

698'60E 80}'€L9 9p'08k £ZFBEY'T 129'GPE'L ERO'ELL'E 051728 suonquIueo pue sjueib Bugreied

wwi'erz'e Erb'0L'e zee'art'y £94°199'C 801'8E1'2 £02'e88'1 68" 1¥S' ) saoinas Joj sabreys
Aaes opgng

- - - - - - ~ suo[InqIuao pue sjuelb leuded

g9Z'e9 862'ze Zeg's 1082 Siz's §ze's 0zL') suolnguuas pue sjiueld Buiesadg

£88'6G/ $  GiZ'008 $  ¥00Z0L $ lsi¥ezs $ z688'elL $ vriL'0.9 $ 662258 $ saoJas Joy sabieyn
uoheysIuRLpY

BINAIDY |B1LBWILIBAOD
senuarsy wesbosg

06Z'OPY'SEE  § GEP'PER'ZIE  $  Z0S'L¥B'EOE $ JEB'EEF'EBZ  § Z6Z'0SE'GLZ $ ZolI6L'sae $ 1918862 $ wawiwesod Aewnd g0

6858'v¥e'L0Z 966'LIv'ERL BOE'6YE'ZEL 6L1'862'¢81 LB8'G6Z'G3L Z06'BLE 181 £L0'E5Z°0L) seAe adi-sseursng |j0 L
620'GP6'L - - - - - - Bugakoey ajSEAA PIOS
LGE'986'E ZEO'L60'P 662'68L ' I L9'808'E 961'06¥' 082°0L6'€ B06°GER'E podiy
LLO'P8S'S 0925'PO8'Y SEL'FOR'Y ZPLOLE'y 0£0'120'S ¥e2'eL0'S 0S8'€2Z'5 WsuBIL
ehL290°26 cL0'eCo'8y 059'668'GF BI5'GLZ'GY il 've SSP'ELESY £8Y'BPE'EY IBIEMBISEM PUE JBIBAA
69.'1OG IEL SOE'6E8'0E) ¥ze'ose'LEL 80L'GOE"IE} LLVALEZEL 2] 8 Tard a0 ISP PP9'ETL aupe|3
saloe ad4) ssauisng
1EP'G6.L'EEL 655'81Z'E21 YEL'GEFLLL 8)L'GEL'B6 119'vG0'08 09z'z18' (8 0FL'8LLE8 sefiAoR JEuaWWarch 1o ]
60r° 1902 208'128'2 00£'984°2 08E'1¥5'Z P61 ZVG'Z ZI6'E8L'T 1516662 §33| pUB 153J81U|
'89jA1ag 193]
IF'ELL'TY YEF'0Z0'F) 149'105'0L gzZ'soE's ¥OS'PEL'D 880'c25°8 99T LLE'D sanoe) AWURLLWGD PUB UCRBRIDRY
GEQ'RLS'Y GLE'62T'L 8r0'ZEL'S 866°428'S LIF'BIF Y ErE'BSH'S FAINAi T ) wawdojanap [EsisAud pue ojwowoo]
1£5'98€'02 F10'Z0L'9L LiB'sLL' L £EL'BI0'FY Zra'oka'el 59'EZLTL ZEF'LBO'ZL uoljepodsual )
18E'921'Z} 180001 L Liv'ove's 288'vI5L zer'Lig'e 182'L96't L12°06¥'9 uoneajodd [gusllualAl
}60'8G+'E9 125'609'85 9L9'T5L'7S 2e0'582 LY G06'Z88'er 18l LIS DY OE8'068'6E Raes onqnd
27L'080'61 $ Z.9'ZE0'6L $  g8g'sgZ'el t SOOI $  1Z8'0085'01L $  LEQ'FBETL $  168'105'8 $ uollensiuwpy
SSHIFANOY |SIUBWILIBADSY
sesuadxgy
B00Z 1002 8002 9002 00T £00Z T00Z
lgaj 1828ld
Z 9npeyag
{payipneun)

(Bununoaoe jo s|seq |entase)
BJEB, |BIS|] UBADS JSE]
s]o88Y JoN u| seBueyn
BUIjoIR) YUON ‘siaeneled jo Lo




£d

(8c6'900'€9) & (sOL'evzivd ¢ (116'9Z4'vG) § (seg'los'vry)  §  (46E'490'45) 3 (185'8.6'cR) $  (281'925'LF) asuadxe jaU Jusliwaaoh Aleud (g0
T A AT CB0'K50'2S Bre'IIZ'ae 880°0K9'0E arL'IST L) 6E1'S88°0} 28£'860'€Z salAyow adAl-sseuisng
{oov'oBz'B0L) ¢ (pOZ'262'668) ¢ (159'B¥E'08) t (Ee¥ipl'sy) §  {EpL'66Z'w) § (0L L¥8'vL) § (reg'eze'0L) SBIARIE [BIUSULIAAGD)
anuaaa/(asuadxa) |aN
ZEL'LIG'TLZ 3 OBELBE'GOZ $ LBE'OZL6RE $ TLY'TEB'BEZ  §  GEBTOE'BLZ $ 1.8'nZzZ 3 _leg'ork'Ziz weiboud Juawwisaob Aewud (210
L0£'950'8v2 LE0'ZLP LY PLLLIS'BEE 1BL'¥FB'SLE LTF'LPE'ZOZ 0¥ 802 SG0'ZLE'661 wesBaud sanAnas adk-ssaLnsng (B101
= - . = = N - sungUiLoD pue swielt eyde)
B - - - - - - SUO[INgUIUCD pue sjuesb Bujelado
- - - - - - - seolales Jo) sefuByn
BuioAsay a1sepA PlIOS
€o¥cee v82'6o5'e 8Z6'GrL'L SlZ'gLe'z [43: A i¥4 6B8Z'166'} 865'€64'Z suolnguIua pue sjuelf |eydss
Z80'ov cag'rie - - 86L'%} SIE'BLL - suolngUIue pue swel Bupeiado
0L1'v2TE G92°6e0°e 0C6'648'Z 62190+’ PSL'6LLZ 6LT'EGET SLE'2L6') 980(A138 40} salluey)
Hodipy
L' L0Ke Lee'2G1 slLe'ee ET L 78L'69T PORVEZ £45'082 suoqnguues pue sjue.b jeyded
PES'EFLT 181'7268°) 9¢£°260'T 729008k 192'88%'L £GL°E55°L 892 LbG't SUoINGUILG: pue sjuelt Guneladg
SbE'vLL 881108 £29'828 rB80'8E9 059°Zr8 804824} 862'RSC'L seo|Ales Jo safieyd
Hsuel|
196°25¥' V1 fr2'062'01 aLe'szL'yl LPG'008'EL - £Ll'620'8 16£'509'8 6667212 SUONNGLILGD puk §jURIB |sden
- - - - - - - sUnGUIUOD pue siuelf Buneladp
150'080'28 €81L'025°vS TLT'B0G'LS VES'¥HO'LY oz1'2eT'SY GE0'800'EY ZEQ'E0L'EY 520]A198 Jo) sabiiey)
1IJEMBISEM PUR JOLBAA
995°c0v Lv9'LLB 59684} ¥8E' 166 98L'eLlL 20.°288'e S5E'965" L SUORNQUILCS pue sUElB eyden
- - - - - - - suonnguUuoa pue suels bueladg
559'668'991 20e'L¥9'85 1 0Z0'ELL'SS 6Z€'690'9¥L o0ze'Les' Lt LZLLVSGE ) 616'v18'6EL SE0TE 10} sabieyD
oupa3
:ganlanoe adA-saauisng
1£0'G)6'v2 SSEBLEEZ LITBPL'LE _GHEZ 88622 89b'652'51 0£6'026'Z4 9.6'v60'EL sweiBad senAoe [ejuswwsaob [BjoL
DL¥'LBL 609'728°C 805’1817 £96'766 TN ZTHY - - sueINALILoD pue siuelB (epdesy
262'9% clz'sty 69¢°09 166°2L6'E 196'101 68.L°60¢ gLi'oL 3UOANGRILCD pUe sjuelB Bupesado
120°e48'e VA0'ISL'E SLTIGL'Y z8v'ass GEE'OEY Z\0'PEE L6¥'8LE saolales o} seBiey)
SaoB] AJIUMAUIOD PUB UGHBRIIEY
¥99'8EL [ei: o T ZIS'ETVE 6ES'080°C 006'9Z5°1 - - SUOMNGUILCS pue 6juslt [Euden
28ZT'FRE'Z ora'aLL'L 99 ZRL'Y D6R'EPL'T 94p'Z8L Y S85'282'C 84Z'68L'T suonnquiucs pue sjuelf Bueado
- £ - [ AN 1] $ 660'GHL $  1Z8'tL0') $ 18£'6 $§  Z.0'802') 89D{AIaS 10} sabieyn
Juadojaaap jeasAyd pue auuouoag
800Z 1002 2002 SOCT #00Z £00Z 7002
dea) |gagl]
Z dnpay2g
(peyipneun)

{6ununcaoe jo s|SEq [ENJIIB)
SIB3 ) |BISI4 UdASS JSBT]
sje88Yy JoN U] saBueyn
eunoJED YUON ‘allirepiede] jo AiD




d

. ‘awn JeA0 asueuopad
[eLoURUY S.412 BU) 31245N)| 0] J834 JUBLIND Bl ik pajuasasd Bq [im sueak Joud () auiu o] dn ‘auniny au) U] “Z0OZ JEaA [EDSI4 Ul £ WSLWSIRIS Q5D palUawad eujaigs) UUoN 'alaenaied jo Aud syl sjoN

LBZ'Z6Z'Sh $ _b5S'850'8S §  055'esg'szl t  ZZO'LBE'PE $ IEL'0ib'0L $ _120'899'2 $  B8ZR'Z0T'SH $ WawwaAol Aewyd 210
BBY'LBE'# 5908505 +0Z'068'0E £¥5'925'v BLI'ELGLL 05L'0LLY BOE"ZG0'8) sa|jlPe edh-ssauisng
(zovy'sen'e) $  e8p'zo9L $  BHCEEL'PS $  BLT'LI6'6 $  €S5'4S6'Y § {BZLPOL'D) $  (geL'epo’d) $ SBIJIAIDE [EIUSWLLBADD)
sjassy 1o u| eBueyn
GGZ'LeE'80L % £O9'LOR'SOL  §  LS0'0LL'6LL $ _/Bl'86E'8L $ _8zi'slg'es § ZLo'TEs'es $ oig'szL'ze $ Wawwanab Aewyd Byl
157041 {0£0'065"1) (zp1'zLE'S) (626'811'9) {g05'8€2'G) (682 '¥60'9) (910'9v0'S) saipanoe adkj-ssaureng (g0
- (as0'051"H) {zgo'100')) - 00520 - - waey Aleupioesjxg
cro'L - - - - - - S}9SSE eNdes Jo 9|88 uo UIeS)
(rsg'20e'e) [:{iar 4l 9E6°L {00Z'81+'8) (asz'121'g) (181'208'2) (al1'zr1's) sajsuel)
122’08 6£0'89¢ LBT'P8 or9'082 Y00 LET 162°78 LBT'v8 SNO2UT(EOSHA
LB1'2BE'S 8ZO'ELL'S L0E'LEL'E SE0'9L0'Z 98l'e6rL GOS'EZL' Sep'l o' SIUBLIISOAU[ UC PALLIES 19818)U|
s2pAIPe mﬁbdwm_.__w:m
866'F81'801 £60'668'001 £0Z'280°681 ZLi'glo'eR 960'952'64 100'LEL'TL B28'€44'49 sefllANee [euawwasct jelo |
- - 1£8°G55 88 - - - - we)| [ernadg
¥59°L0E'E 850'054'2 289'109'8 00281+’ TN 161'206°L SLLTPL L s13j5URY |
[ F2: £G8'881 Z66'204 - - - .- sjasse [@deD JO 8jES Uo UikD
099°£29 SPE'PLY 999'681 802’806 501's8E 082'048 298248 SNOBUBYIGISIN
PLE'POLE 880'050'Y g81'128'2 815'262') 808°205 oL LB L 0662681 SUSLLIS3AL O PALUES JSasaily
B60'108 062'00/ 16+'94S ZEZ' 4G LBO'EOS 180" LPG ZEO'DLE SUOINGUILICD PUB SjuelB papuisaiun
Llo'eBL'ed 8EL'L0E' VP 0Z0'EHs'se H8'EZ0'FE SGFLZHE FAE: Y- 1NN 14 SGU°ZEV P S9XE] YD
BLE'GEZ S $  £2£'626'28 $  0S1'EZQ'ly $ ZZS'FPE'EE $  SBA'GEF'SE $  BLE'vH0'FE § B80S'EHOEE H S8XE)} WaI0EA Py
sapanoe [EJuawisansy
1988y JaN Ul safiurvys) A0 PUB BENUBASY JRIBLALD
8002 1002 9002 $00Z 002 £002 Z002
Ara) 180814
T 9Inpayog

{peypneun)
{Bupunosoe Jo siseq |[enidoe)
IB0j |BDS]J UBASS 1881
s)ossy joN U] sabueys
BUIJOIED YHON 'Bfilaenedey Jo Ao




£rR'c89Zi $ Zre'8lB8'0l 6046561 972'828'SZ $ LEL'TZFEL $  rE5'959'Gh ¢ 06E'68E'FL
Gii'ebl's 162'¥20'8 L¥5'ZPR'8 6€1'889°ZL SeF'ELE'Y £09'9¥Z' EG1'ZLE'S
£04'P8E'E ¥2Z'695'c rro'Z0b'Z £9G'2¢€T L25'212'2 IE6'SHE'Z L02'PR9'E
SOE'0SL'Y $ 198'seZ's gl8'syv's ¥25°128°01 €  190'+86'9 ¢ rlB'eek'9 $ 0€9'Z798°S
LF2'800'€S $ 98Z'059°6F 08s'gsP'El 8r0'vOB'EY $ 9sZ'kog’Lb 3 8r/'s5z'62 § 9gL'i8L'0E
gen'l8L'ge L¥0'Z06'6Z 608'c22'6Z 9.¥'96E°LE 6ZL'G8¥'8Z 6.F'810'22 €28'LET'61
906'6ZZ L $ 6bZ'889'6} L58'TZZ'L Z15'295°Z) ¢ 1ZL's0E'El $ ZTOELLL'Z $ €TT'ES6'0)

2002 2002 900z 9002 002 £002 z00Z

1ea), |Basl4
€ s|npeyog
(peupneun}

{Bununosde jo siseq |ENIIE paljipo)
SIES ) |EISI4 UBADBG ]S8BT
SpUN4 |E)USLIUIBACS JO S3JUR|RG puny
eujjoseD YHON ‘B|jiAenieAey jo 31D

‘ilil} JeA0 BdueLLIopRd jerauBul s AN
3} 21N sn||l C} Jeak JUSIINa U LM pajussald aq |||m sJeak Jopd (§) auju o) dn 'aimny ay) U] ZOOZ B3 A [BOSId U) $E JUSWRIRIS GSYD Pajuawa|dul euljale) YUON ‘alllaenede jo Ai) ay) 8ioN

gpUNYy [EjueLLLLIBA0E JeLyo ||e [gjo]
spalold [epde)
anuaaay [elnadg
Jofewuou ul papede) ‘peslasaluf)
paslasay
8puny [ejuawuiesct J1ajo |1y

pun4 [BJjauaD [E10L
paassaIuf
pamasay

puny jesauag




"PRIRBYR 10U 51 Aelino edeD b BEVE-eld |

%668 %2004 %P8 0L %9t 0L %18 %086 %EP 04 %eL B %88 PAYE] se.nypuadxe [e)deoucu o
. Jo ebauaed @ 58 82185 Fal-Tq|
(ves'2e87 ¢ 89ZzvE€ ¢ (S0Vp09'9) & L8e'SeSPl §  6G.8BLL 0§ QI LEE¥ $ (ZZV9iZh) $ 0098558 $  Gre 90kl  $ (80096 L) $ $avuejeq
pun) uj aBueyd 18N
¢10'085°9 650209°LL 260'9ET 21 111°068'/2 26899291 60B8ESPZl 95/'026°2 28/°0Z¥'81 LG1'Z96'LE ZBF L P0G (se8n) se2unos Buisusug Jeyio 0L
- - - ZIZLER - - - - - - SPUOY UO WNIWALY
- - - (282'69Z'9} (6EP'89L°E) (z12°891'S) - - - - |uefe mo.1058 pusq punye) o} luswhed
(Le€'vzigl) {€£82'851'6) (6z2'162'8) (6009189} (185°'L06°S) {960°206'9) (Z0'1L08°'t (Le0'ese'9) (586'006'5) (9/8'866'G) Wno suBfsuel |
1S7'000°02 6LE'ERZ'SI oLr'e6L'el B0Z'FEE'S) BER'ZTL6EL GEQ'BLF L 2B0'LE6°LL SLLLST'SL ZrO'ERE LI ZSF'Z00'EL U) SIJSUBl )
OFR'E0E'E 000" L8 SLY'PEQ'E LOFFOL'E 8Zr'0.0'9 Y5zl £82'59,L G99'810'6 - eLO'BED D 8P 18yl pUR SPU0Q 'SISaB| [B)IdeD Wal $p8ad0.d
- - - 664G 192'12 §09'G18°E rE0'89L'6 - - - - spuog Buipunyey
{sesn) saonJos Bujsueuy ;3y10
{895'21¥'2) (z8s'61E'8) (zos‘obe'gl) (0£z'ree'EL) {£60'6.1'8) (erz'zzL'e) (828'081'2)) (Z8L'v98°'6) (Z)9's8'01) (00s'2z0'91) saunjipuadxa (13pun)
1BAD SBNUBASE JO $S30X]
PO LISPEL 2LTLIBIEL 866'SFL 121 9907792211 LI 611L'SE £88'GZ6 b8 LoV ¥S/ 8 200°L¥5°98 V15 668 18 2902kt 8 sasuadxa |80
- - - EBY B9E e0as —GEEE0T Y —81S00BaerTES|~
841802 PA0FZL'E ZZG056'Z €01°292'2 £L¥'805'2 LBF'L16'E $+9'658'2 £50'606'E 129'02F'€ 80L'erE' $93) pue 1saa|
961'1ag9'e LBE'B5LG opPL'9LY'S Oy L66'8 193'orz's ETLVL'Y vLOB06F LPL'006'Y 1E€'689'Y £90'092'% [ediduug
831085 1gaq
95z Bre'rl 696'60v'64 org'sgl' sl 080'9EZ'02 966'10Z'Z) 800'gLL'L 0EZ'0EL's - - - L ABNNO [EdBD
WwFeLE'0L ZLR'LBEEL SBA'996'6 S2eLLE £6£'805'C 0L2'188's 091'bIE'S 1¥6'0686'9 2180'v92'9 8Z0'ELO'E SBIIIIDE) ANUNWILICS PUB UOPRIIBY
82T RIS ¥ 86L'6L0°} ££.°9/0'G 1Z0'z6L'8 9.6'L96'E S49'L6Y' S Zer'eie’s GL0'242'9 SEQ'LOV LI 69Z°080'LL JuswdojaAap |B2184AUd PUR SHWUOLSDT
9EL' 2682 6.4'865'2 BOL'ZES Y ' IEG'E S¥5'€05'y 868" LBI'E BLZIBLE G2€'229'9 070'/86'L ZBL59T'01 vonepodsue )
6vL60F 01 £25'540'01 BLE'0L6'R Z90'G0%'a 009's09'e FAR 1= 590'699'S 1Z¥'9z8'g BbE'OE0'S FLSBIY'S uopaeitud |gjuawuoaug
1Z9'BLF LS ere'alLz'as ££9'LVE0S SFS'OvL'yr 98508 LY SSR'TIH6E BZE'LST'LE QLY IEL'LE IV L0FEE 99T LITEE Aej8s 21and
0:6°862'L1 gze'19z'el LIS'SETEY £¥0'C09'L L PREGRI'0L rL9'SZO'8 916'69%'9 92E'9LL'6 £Er'285'9 LLL'089'2 UDIBASIUIWPY
sa.njjpuadxy
€10V60 221 SBY/SA6ZL 96F'S06°20k 9ER'LL6'8E ¥Z1°0v9'99 059'£09°9. £26°/66'Z/ ovR'949'9/. ZELEZO0'LL Z05'p1g'/9 SONUGARU [B10]
CL9TOE0'E 9ZZ 68 € S19'Z66°1 £69'8G6'} oL Zp62L001 EL0°865| ZBEBSL'E €PlLPE 1.68°602'2 SUBUNSSAUI UD PALLIEI SaJSIU|
¥9T'028'2 SI9EHRS'Y LSLLS rL2'E06'E 95E'08¢€'Z BET'ESHT SLTL0L'T 8.Z'65L") 889'€Z9°L rLVEEZ'L SNOBUR|RASIY
6LFE69'F L81'GLE'S 8r9'510'9 POR'E00'S L0B'GZ6'E 009'FEF'E LPE'FELE §L0'962'¢ p9Z'0/8'2 9e2'262'2 [BUORIUNY JBYIO
L88'600°EL LG bZE'EL pLFRLE'ZL L9R'1GL'pL EpP'LEQ'E 549'946'9 BBS'ErLL 96Z'280'9 STV 1682 £55'598'8 lejuawisAotueu|
wSL'viL Ry 0Z2'vrs'EF Z9zZ'048'SE 09Z'8E0' e rBL'IEF'ZE Ze8'059'LZ PZE'0S8' v 0i8'z¥8'{Z a1 vLE'ST vELV'PZE L SEXE] BYID
L19'69°%8 $ 029'pS'8S 3 SB6'06GLP  § O0L'ZZY8E § ZOB'LEK'SE $  ELE0ZLEE § SIAPELEE §  LESZLZE § €90'/8L°08 §  2GY9SLO0E SIXG] WAO[BA PY
SBNUBABY
2002 1002 8002 500Z +00Z €002 Z00Z 100Z 000Z 6861

¥ einpeyog
(psypneun}
{Bugunoonae jo SIS [eNJade pajjpow)
188, [EIS)4 UB] }SE]
SpUN4 [RIUBLLLIBAOS ‘SBaUR|Eg pund u| saBueyyp
BUJJOIBY YION ‘8f|ae)ede Jo A0




‘818[ 1BU] JOYE 88¥E] BB|USUR) UOIB|ASIQED |ED0| O] 158[aNs Bu|BLIA
sanjales AB|)BUB AluD “96XE) §81BS B1E1S 0] 16[dNe BWBIG] 3851488 19BIPEMIG BuliuBIBold 0apIs ‘200Z ‘| AIBNUBT SADBY3T *
S[EJ0) U] PAPR[UI BJ3 X8 85 |YSURI) SUCHREIIUNWWCOaja} €00Z PUR LODZ '000Z ‘5651 128k [Basy uy |

Zi8'823'09 - 169699 - 0£5'+08 00Z'99Z 69Z'6rE 10€'58L 900'%S 056608 BrL'SE0'E LLZ'GPL'SE BEL'666'6Z 8661
0L£'GET VS PLL'GEL 0£5°068 - 000'65% £va'68Z 00€'98¢ Z6Z'89. ¥85'0F 6E5'685 550'806'¢ 0LO'S¥6'SL £90'£84'08 000Z
868'7L6'L5 BOF LML £6L'006 ¥ZE'692 L4 AR A z89'1€9 085'96¢ [-ENET] ¥89'0r STE'86S BIELLL'Y 8L£°094'BL LE6'ZLH'EE 1002
PZB'Z00'9S 6Z5'grL wT'e66 | B6S'66Z VZL'EOL VEZ'169 12810V Z6E'LPP - Z54'085 LOV'ER0'E H8'ELZ'GL GLEPEL'EE TO0Z
SELErS 68 00F'9LL Z55'6.8 G95'Z0€ 88¢'8rZ'} 188169 8L0'a0r - - - £9C'BET'S Ly1'9l8'8y ELE'0ZL'EE £00Z
SP0'GrL'99 SpL'ast ST Zes 00%'50€ SPO'910°T 90889 125 vhY - - - 88L'1ZL'S £66'668'0Z 798'LER'SE ¥00Z
LL0°L0S'HL £6Z'b6L 155'208 EL8'PPE 69,4751 6LLIEL g9¥'sor - - - L02'SPE'S VIGErG'ZE 00L'ZZ9'6E S00Z
6SZ'TPL'SL o'Lee GGa'9ZL rLL'ELE 85L'916°L 9G1'sLe 094°€€S - - - rG'Z09'S B¥r'ISP'ET SE806S LY 900Z
+55'698'66 999'69Z £E68'vBL ¥ZL'LEE ELO'EFZ'L 961'026 6L0'€29 - - - £8Z'FS5'9 L¥E'BaF 08 0/8'76'85 1002
6Z0'/PB'S6 3 ZOVOSS ¢ ZTEUBE $  @.1'9lF  §  ZOEL6K ¢ JZi'vBE $ E6B'GED S - 3 - 3 - $ 880'2/0'8  $ ZOT'BSELE  §  L/9'69L'vS 8 5002
[T LLE xal djesey ey XEL 88u83(7 XUl sjuswasinquiey  uojjdwexy  juswssinquizy  8axw ] AWIAN X8| S0|eS walolen py 198 63814
pajepjlosuayn 16 2U||BILAA nnEQ EUEH.} a9|ysurid JaLio cmo__b_.-n_ |auaa] L4 peejsawoH K-_._- o_n_mcnuc_
ELTTENIIY pUE UO|91ABIqE BIIYIA
g 8inpayag
(peyipneun)

{Bupunoawv Jo s{88Qq [BNIDDR parjipow)}
sies), |B0SI4 Uaj }SE]
SpUn 4 [BJUAWUIAAGSE) ‘a0unog AQ S3NUBAdY X1
BU|jOJBD YUON ‘eljlAaneded jo A5



8-d

01800 $ 0LL0°0 ¢ 00’8 $  1e5°10Z'866') L¥S'6ZE'00 0PS LEL'EL ZZl'vZL'8EP 9Z¥'€02'GL9 Z06'2G.'v08 6661
04900 ¢ 01400 $ 00'g ¢  Z05'009°L20°C 9Z5'c10'69 LPS'POE ¥ ¥8.L'90F 8Ly 0Z2'€0¥'60. SZ6'LI¥'GL8 0002
02900 $ 014070 ¢ 008 $  w'21E290'C 685°6¥1'04 000 P59 ¥l v06'044'22F 8Se'8YE'SLL £6+'¥68°'9€8 L00Z
02900 $ 014070 ¢ 0o'g $ GZ6'989°Z10°C 828'v1.2'89 6.0'190°G1 G09'ZE8'0LY LEELALLLL Z01°206'008 002
0.90°0 ¢ 0L40°0 ¢ 00'8 $  9Z¥'iPZ'860°T £09'¥86'65 266'102'6Z 1G8'¥9L'0BE zol'sll'ges 8LE'08.L'¥E8 £00Z
0,900 ¢ 0LL0°0 3 00’8 ¢ 689'681'980°Z 291'0L¥'cS 69E'PS19Z Z80'OFL'6LE Z69'964 b L 60v'289°288 ¥00Z
04900 $ 01400 ¢ o008 $ 98Z'SZP'L00'C L9L'GLE'¥S 8LLL0L L2 156'69.'94¢€ ¥10'9/9'ck. 9b¥'95¥'598 5002
600 $ 61400 $ 00'6 ¢ SZTEIPL'POL'E 910'890'¢€S 19£'668' 22 5Z1'G5E'95¢E Z50'622'65. 122'Z89'L 18 200z
#6400 $ 61200 $ 006 $ 199'£82'880°2 289'G/9'vS ¥0Z'8E5'8Z 166'Z22'80¢ 12069252 ZSh'669'v68 2002
SLB0'0 $ 05200 ¢ 00'6 ¢  886'¥£0'121'Z 0Zb'CL0'6S LOB'6GE'FE L68'ZIZ'LEE G02'Z.9'694 119'9L2'0Z8 2002
005 <UMM B2 UM 006 Isil} ey lejol FEITTS) Bunybiq lel3snpLy lejdiawod lepuapisay lea )

ajey mmwm: aseg |B2sid

214323]3
ajey joadiqg |ejol

9 aINpay2s

(paupneun)
siea ) |eas|d ue) }se
PlOS SINOH Hemojly JH129|3
s99|Aag Jo} sabieysn
SSB|Y) JoWoIsSNs) Ag aSeR aNUdAdY
eujjoJed YUON ‘@lllaeyaded jo A0




2010 Xel AJunos puepaqung &2Inog

‘anjea Apadold sJeak |easy Bulmolof ayl Ul pajasyal pue 1$| AIBNUEBI BAIJ08Y2 SeMm UOIEN[BAS] B U3IyM U Jeek ay) sajousq v
:@nusAsy jo wawpedaq euljoteD yuopN ey) woll sefejusedlad onsl Juslissasse
se|es pajepdn Joajal o] pajsnipe uaaq aABY 8NjBA [ENIJE PIJELINSS |BJ0} 0} SNBA PISSASSE [BJ0) JO Olj) U} pue S8njea [emoe pejewnsd .
‘Apedoud tgal Ul pejoayal ale suoydwexa Auadoud 1eal £00z ybnoly) saaL Jesk [eosi4 Ajuo aese |eal Jdwex] z
‘Apadoid |euosied pue |Bal UsEMISQ UOKIUNSIP OU YW SNuaAdy Jo Juswpedsq euloled YHON aui Ag
SpELI BIE SJUSLLSSIESE 9S8 | 0)8 ‘SaulsnNg pue peoJjiel 'saipn jo Aladold [suosiad pue |eal sapnjoul Auedold ssiuedwod eolalas oIjqnd .

‘an|ea |Enyae o} [enha 218 sanjeA pessasse al) ‘a10,2i8y) 'an(eA [ENOE 18 pessasse §|
fpsdold ‘£00e JBeA Jepus|eo U palinaoso uoieneasl jse "sieek yybie A1aAs jSe8| B SeinyEls [Bl1euss) eulioleD YHON AQ pannbau si Aladoud (el JO UoEnBAdl y 910N

0210 Xe | AJUnos puelaqung :82INcs

%E6 L6 696'691'288'S 0150 EEL'OPPLLLS - 68¥'950'0L ) 8vs L6Z'Z10'L 960'080'68S'F 8661
%£8'96 o'Sre'veT'e 0Ls0 £20°L12'680'9 - 861 'vre'celL 012'826'G21L'L 1Z1'9€8'e8.L'y . 0002
%Z8'G6 TeT'199'Eey'D 0€5°0 Zee'l51L'561'g - LZVLOEPEL £Ge'899'gkL'L ZSP'89L'vi8'Y 100z
%1226 810'0¥S'¥98'0 0£5°0 160'/69'28¢'9 - 60£'894'6E1 9£6'085°C02 L 908'/EE'EFO’S z0o0z
%E0 ¥6 141'919'928'9 0€5°0 16L°290'6LY'D - eLL'045'02L GHP'PL2'96LL £€9'78L°1L0L'S €002
%00°001 £69°052°88Z "2 0£5°0 £66'05.'88C° 2 8.€'%02'1L9 120'089'221 £89°0010GL'L LZZ'+49'220'9 002
%ELE 86 L85°168'225", 0ES'D 762'65Z'16E' 079'150'c9 or8'LsL'eel 200'116'202"1 650'FE9'6LL'9 5002
%QF'Z6 S00'698' VL' 0850 789'19€'09.2'2 211'E8¥'69 599'66.'3¢€1 868'GSE LEV'L 9e¥'GlLL'6L2'9 a00z
%59'69 LOQ'0E8 YO’ LL $ 0£5°0 FEL'LOD'6BY'S SPZ'GLE'Y. IrR'ELS'TLL G19'180FES L ZZ6'022'99L'g 2002
%ZL L8 991'069'205'CL ¢ 0£S0$  +8OOLL'ZLZOL $  S19'850'L. $  ¥98'958'9GL ¢ LSY'60£'669'L ¥G6'800°ZE'8 800¢
t opey anjep ajey xel anjeA ¢ fadold jeay + Apedoud Aadoag Apadoad 0¢ eunp
JUIUISSAESY ajqexe] |elauan pasassy ydwex3 xe} - RIFSET |euosiad jeay papugy
sajeg [enjay A0 lejoL 18897 o|qnd 1ea)
pajewysy |easiy
Z 8jnpayag
{(payipneun)

siea ) |eosiq us] jseq
Apadouad a|qexe] JO anjeA |enjoy pue anjBA possassy .
BUlOJBY YUON ‘B||inenakey jo 1D




0i-d

‘s|iaslaAR S JO Q1D AUl UIyIM SIBUMO
Auedaid o) Aidde e sjuaswulaach Ajunos pue [Bo0| Jo asouy) ae sajel Bnddesag

30140 X8| AlUney) puepaguung 18aineg

0re'o 00L0 0lso 6661
g0 “oaro 0150 0002
0080 0oL0 0€S0 L00g
5260 0oL a 0£5'0 00z
§26'0 o0oL'o 0eS0 €002
0880 000 0esS0 00T
0880 ooL'0 QeSO 5002
0880 00L'0 0ES0 9002
0880 0040 0es0 £002
082°0% 00L'0% 0£5°0% 800¢
apia Aunod 9eY Jo18Ig ajed xe| 0g aunp
Xe| ssauisng [esauan Ajlo pepug
Kjunon puepagquing jerjuan Ieaj
, e1ey Buiddepaag e384
8 a[npayog
(peyipneun)

(dn(eA passessy Jo 00L$ Jed)
slea ) |eosid ue] }se]
sajey xe] Auedolg Buiddepaap pue joeaq
euljoJe) YuoN ‘a|liaepaied jo A1D




8010 Xe] AlUNOT pPUBLIBqINY (B2Inag

‘6661 ‘0€ SUN[ PapUR JBAK [BOSY BU} Ul 8NP Blem S3IA3| XE} PSIBIO0SSE 2} PUR 661 ‘| AIBNUEP J0 SE 818 SUO|JEN[EA PBSSBSSY ,
'800Z ‘0€ UNP PApUS JBaK [BOSY BUL Ul BNP 248M SBIAS| XB} PSJBIDOSSE SU} PUB £00Z 'L AIBNUEP J0 SE 1B SUOHJEN|BA PESSBSSY |

%2S'y ¥Z6'LL0°LYT $ %IEE LL1'128'98¢ $
%S0 (1] 00S'LL1'GL 277 siuswpedy aoeld ucjuebiop
%810 6 00E'ZHE'SL alepy|D Je abejip
%410 g8 86E'626'01) o717 wawdolana uojuebiow
%8L0 z T AN 177 L 98BUd 9817 $S01D
%120 G 002'85y'1LZ abe|a y22.i0 uappiH
%6E°0 ¥ S¥1'8/9'6€ "ouj 00 SBD) [BINJEN Juowpald
%60 £ 000'6.0'0§ S20IAIaS UOIIBIAY UOLNWSD
%40 3 005'059'¢2 77 IIBW H@817) SS01D
%0T 0 0] 8 9£9'€99'01 S19p|INg uaaeH Yoo
%0Z°0 6 cLy'0re'ol eDBWY JO uolielodion |ejidsoH
%20 8 £16'026'0L %0Z'0 9 ¥£Z'668°02 Auedwog Buiysyand sjinanadey
%220 L 966°98°LL AUl |9)0IN Inansied JO e
%ET'0 9 L90'8E0'ZL pajw sisuled abpry uosey)
%420 g 650'655 71 ‘07 Bp|g asoy piempg
%2ZE'0 14 198'1£8°8L uoielodion ses) [einjeN ON
%250 € ZGL'G1LLT eull0Ie) UNON jo 1¥Aan
%E0'L z £68'710'5S %590 Z SLP'69Z'99 ydeifisa ¢ aucydsial eunoien
%ZE’} 1 86.°G15'0L $ S2JRID0SSY PUBLAqWND
anjea yuey anjeaA anjea yuey anjea 1aAedxe]
passassy poassassy a|qexe) pessessy pessassy a|qexey
a|qexe] [€)}0) algexe] |gjo]L
Jo abquasiag jo abejuasiey
7 6661 , 8002
6 9inpaydg
(perpneun)

uosuedwon Jea) uaj
siakedxe| Ayadoid [edioulid
eulj0JED YUON ‘BljjAspeied jo AuD




Zl-d

8010 X8| AJUnos) puBpaguinsy :23INog

‘900z Aey Ul Ajquiessy |eleuss) euloles) YUoN ay) Aq peacidde uone|sibe)

Jo )Insas e se gaQz ubnosy 00z sieek [EDSY Ul SJUSL||EISUI 9a1Y) Ul NP ag [|m 88Xe) Bsey) Jo Juawled eouls
SBAIE UOHEXBUUE A 8SEYJ 8y} 0} paje|s) sexe) Auedold [eucs.iad pue [eal GOOZ Ul €19'00%'9$ 8pNioUl jou sacqg 2
"Aluo Aaa| xE] |BUBUBH BY) 510818 BINPaYds t

%96 86 PP Ly6'82 859'/8/ %L 96 68/°€5.'8C LOE'v¥E 62 6661
%01 66 ZSS'P0OR'0E ZL8'vGL %2996 O¥6'6¥0'08 264'680°LE 0002
%6 66 ZST'LEp'ZE 126'0Z6 %.¥'96 G.Z015'LE £Ze've9'ze L00¢
%L L 66 _BZL'LLG'EE LBG AL %G9G6 . BPE'SOP'ZE ' JEQ'8.B'EE _Z00Z.
%9066 001'LyL'eE 6L2'€82'1 %0E'S6 Lp 2GY'ZE ¥18'650°PE £002Z
%5166 PPS'020'8E 162'69Z°} % ¥R GH £5.'G08'9¢ 620'v0¥'9E #002Z
%61 66 GO0'GER'SE SLL'SSOL %0596 0S6'6/8'/E 202'25T'6E s002
%E0'66 LO9'0L6'0F 060'GG0°L %8 96 L /G'GGR'6E BRO'LLE LY [~ 200z
%5066 ZL9'5E0'2S 0zZL' L0 % L0746 6V ¥96'0% Z8L'vEG'ZS 2002
%.LC LB [08'8€2'25 $ - $ %L2°46 208'882'28 $ 0£5'91Z'%S $ 8002
Ara7 jo unouly T ~ Kae jo unowy Jleaj |easiq 0f aunp
aBejuaniagd juanbasqng ui aBejuaniag al) 10§ papu3
sU0I231[09 palAaT] saxXe] 1Bd)
|easlg
a)e(] 0] sU09|0N (M0 AAaaT auy} Jo Jea ) |BOSI

L UM Pajoe)|0)

0L 9|npeyos

(payipneun)
SIed ) |ed9SI4 ua] j}sen
I 8UOI}29]|0N PUB sa1AdT Xe] Auadold
BUI|OJED YMON ‘3||1Adaked jo A1D




£l-d

‘ejep uelje(nded pue awosu| (euosiad eydes Jad 10 g| einpeyss seg .

"SJUsLLSYels [eloUBUL @) 0} $8J0U 8l u) punoy aq ued jqep Buipue)sino 5410 ey BuipreBa) sjelaq (90N

L'z %600°0 L4£'62Z'95T - 000'sze'99l 000'068°92 00068y 12£°058'8 000'629'€5 6661
860'z %600°0 £0L'EBS 292 0L1'00G'Y 000'0FL L8L 0000102 000'GZy ] £66'260'2 000'GZY 06 0002
561'2 %600°0 6.5'862'99Z £E09'E€LS'L 000°000°24) 000'6§1°32 000's9¢ 9/6'660'2 000'SYL'eS 1002
9e0'Z %0100 L06'626'25C LiE'GLE L 000'GL6'0L) 000'GeE'8L 000'G0E 0ES'¥EY'D 000'GEL'6YF zoog
980 %00 BSH'G6Z'BST PL9'6E8'g 000'016'8L1 000'095°G1 000'6¥Z SYE'6LY'O 000'692'08 €002
¥10'C %LL00 16P'6L0'L42 £12'298'11 000°'0E9' V6L 000'G8S' ¥ 000'sgl wriLPE'CL 000'04%'9% #0002
ozL'z %2100 BL9'¥EP LLT rrl'eoe'al 000°0ZE P81 000'0¥9°¢ 000'sZ ) GiP'LSS'CL 000's8Y'2S S00Z
¥68'Z %600°0 688'SEL'BLE B65'/6¢'9EL 000'698°ZL} 000'602°Z 000’59 oeg'e0z'vl 000'0¥2'25 9002
0.9'L WN 620'28¥'06T 9c}'96E'vY 000'09€'Z9} £0.'929°0L 000's EVE'066'¥L 962'80L'8E L00T
0SE'L 3 ViIN Zig'o66'v¥e 3 968'98¥'0Z  $  000'GEL/SL $ BEG'LYOE ¢ - $ O9IBEFE'PL & lop'egeE'ee 3 8002
 eiden sad | awodu| jeuostad JUDWILIDAOCE) a|qefed sajoN SpUOE SNUIAIY spucg a|qefed s8joN SASED 192Q papuog Jea)
jo efiejuasiey Aewrld g0 vopebnqo pazieyden leasiy
|edeued
senianoy adAl-ssauisng SANANOY |eJUBWILIBADS)
LI éInpeyog

{penpneun)
sIed ) |eosid ua] jsen
adA1 Aqigqeq Buipueising jo soey
euljose) YuoN 'sjfiaepehed jo 419




‘91 8NPAYIS Ul PUNDj 3q Ued ejep uonendod

‘BlBp an|gAa Auadoud 1o} 7 gnpayas 99s .

‘S]USLUB)E]S [BIDUEBUL BY} 0] S8JOU BU) Ul puUNo) 8q ued jgsp Bulpueysino sA190 ay) BuipueBal sjepeq B10N

GE0'Z %2e't 000'068'8YE D00'GZE 99l 000'5e5'08 BEBL
¥OQ'Z %0Z¥ 000'S/5'952Z 000'0rL'L8L 000'SEP' . 000z
2/02 %80t 000'00E'1 62 DOD'DOD" 22} 000'00E'vL LoozZ
£z6'L %hl'E 000°'S86'8E2 000'SLE'0LL 000'020'89 FAVArA
9.6t %l9E 000°SEL'¥IPE D0D'0LG'8LL 000'GZ8'69 £00ze
088’1 %HEE 000'GRQ'GrE 00D'0ES'¥61 000°'GS0' LG #00Z
9.8'1 %ZE't 000°S¥#'G+Z 000°0ZE' vl 000'GZL 19 g00Z
(R %C6'C 000015222 D00'S9S'ZL) 000'SPE'vS a00g
PLZ'L %Et'C 000°660°LLZ D00'09E'29) ooo'sel'sh 2002
861} $ %00°¢ po0'0gL'DLZ € 000'SEZZ9L ¢ Qo0'sZrZv § 8002
z eyden Jeg + Apedoug JUBLILIBAOE)  SPUOQ aNUIASY spuog Jeap

JO anjep passassy  Aisullld |BjoL uonebiqo |eas)y

|e101 [enoy |eJauan

jo ebejuasiayg

BuipuesINg
1g9eQ pepuog [2J3uacy

Z} ejnpayog
(payipneun)
Slea ) (B82S Uaj }1se
Buipuelsing 1920 papuoyg |elausc) JO soey
BUIjOIRD YUON ‘3|tAdnaked jo Ao




Si-d

"9n|eA paSSOSSE a|qeXE] [B10} S,AJUNCD PUBAQWND
Ag y Buipialp pue ssuepunog s A0 ayj uypM St 1BUl anjeA passasse 9|qeXE} §,AJLUNCD puepaquwing jo uoipod ay) Buujunelsp Aq palew)sa
ajom sabejuaoied a|qealiddy ‘sanjea Auadoid passasse ajqexe} Buisn pajewnse st algeoidde jqep Bulddeeao jo abejuasiad ayy |

-Jjuawuianob 6uiddelaao yoseo jo '1qep ay) BuiAedal Joj ajqisuadsal alojalay) pue
"yuapisal e s| Jakedxe) A1aaa jey) A|dw) Jou S0P SIY} 'I9ABMO}H “JUNOJOE OJUl UaYe} aq PINOYs sassal|sng puUe sjuapisal au) Aq auloq uaping
198p amus ay) 1qap wual-Buoy Aedas pue anssi o) Apqe sjuawuleact ayy Bugapisuoo uaym eyl seziubooel ssasold s1y] "9|liasfjake
40 Al ay jo sassaulsng pue Sjuapisal ayl AgQ aulog si Jey) sjuswweaofi Buiddejanc asouy jo 1gap Buipuelsino ay) Jo uood ay) sejewss
ainpayds sty] “AuD 8y} jo sauepunog aydelboal ayy ypm ‘ped up )sesl jB ‘apiaulod Jey) asoy) ale sjuswuwesob Buiddepaap :sjoN

‘Ajunon puelaquns Aq papiaald Buipue)sino
1990 Clolessiunupy xe] Aunod pueaquing ayy Aq papjaoid sabejussiad aiqesidde sjewss o] pasn Elep anjeA passassy (S92IN0S

£T2°266'002 $ 19ap Buiddejiano pue J2a1ip B0
116'92L'LY 1q8p 1au1p sllinanaked jo Ao
9vZ'0eT'eGl 198p Buiddepano 'jejoigng
ovZ'0£2'es L $ %LE'TY L0V'629'ShT $ Aunog pugplaquing

:saxe) Apado.d unm predaliqaqg

192 Buiddepaap a[qeo)ddy , Bujpuesing 1q8a Juf [BJLISWLLIBAOS)
0 aleys pajewsy abejusslad pejewpsy
€1 eInpayog

(peyipneun)
800z ‘0¢ aunp Buipus Jeak |easy ay) 104
1]qaQq so1)IANIY |BJUslUIaADS Buiddessap pue joaa1q
eujjose) YpoN ‘slfiaenaked Jo A9




LTG0k H ujfiew 1gep wBs
Zh8'e5eg 1L 1w jqep 03 eqedde 19ep JO NOWE [B}0 |
- 1G9P PaNSSIun PUE pazLoLINY
- ses0dind JaMas PUR Jajesm o) Buiple)sno pUB panss) Spuog
suononpap Aoels 1s$e7
Z19'65T 4L eQ ssou [Fl0]
- 19ep PaNsEuN pue pazsoyiny
AL ) Eeansg
9LE'EE'PL sasea) pazjeyden
p68'98Y'0Z g|geded sajoN
000'SZP'Z ¥ep papuog
Juwy 0] agedidde 1geq
GEE'6QE'L1B (en|ea passesss [F10] jo %g) Wwi Igag
809112120} $ BN|EA PISSIEEY
800 Jea4, (86)d Joj uofrenden ujbuey 1gaq jefa
%SF'6 %6401 %riwl %ELSH %0T €L %St %8091 %EL'8l ROL L %B9'6l | gep jo ebmuanad e se yui

aU) a1 eqeadde 1gep jau (B0

CZGELLIOP. § ZHOBSPO0. $ EbL'S/0°066 §  pZL'9.006F §  [BSDS0'Z0S $ BEGBEVYEr $  €09265'8ZF 4 9SUPLL'COP  §  6LLCOPO0Y § OFE'PLO'LGE $ wisew jgep [efe

Zip'eaz'LL ¢ 8.0Zob's® $ 999Gs2l6 ¢ 6lLOWOI'CE ¢ uGYevPOL ¢ BGP'GBE'eL § LOB'YLO'ZE $ 6.5'96Z'68 $ E0VESY'O8 $ LIEOD6'6E ¢ Hwif o)

siqealidde jqap Jau B0 |

SEL'BOE'LLE $ 160'026'18L $ LEO'LEP'ZZO $ cRL'OBLIGS $  PPO'OOL'ELS $  SLE'SZSEIS  § ¢BSZIOOIS §  GE9TIPEGY  §  Ze9'9Se'98y §  LIZ'sie'osk ¢ Wwrigeqg

8002 L1002 9002 5002 41074 £00Z c00Z L00Z 000Z 8681

¥1 8Inpeyas

(payipneun)
{spuesnoyy u| passaidxe sjunowe)
$1e0 ), |[EdSI4 Ua | Jseq
uonjeuioju] ujBsey 1geq eben
eujjose] YHON ‘ajiaeneded Jo LD




‘slUalalEls [gIolUBUY BU] 0} $8)0U 3y LI punoy aq ues Jgap Buipuejsino s,A119 ay) Buipiebal speleq @joN

'SPUOQ ('S SAPN[IXS PUE $2JOU PUE SPLOQ BNUAABI SBPNIDL| ¢

“JuNo3s|p Jo J8u Addng Jemod 8seydind predald jo uoniubooas ey s ,

JapiQ puog 2y} U pauyap se sUojjeno|eo abeiaaco juesaidal jou op anoge sonel efiezianoy
1salalul pazielides Bulpnioxa jsalajul Paseq [EnIdJe sjussaldal saoqe 1saselu| ,
UCIJEZIHOWE puB uoneioseldap Jo sAISnoxs sesusdxs Bunelado gjo | .

‘$9J0N
=34 018'889°0L OLB'ESL', 000'SES'E LPQ'LEQ'ES 9SL'E0S'vLL LB2°0FL 291 6661
0 LEB'LEBCL Le6'ley'e 000045V 064'L29'6E 646°GLG'IEL B9E'/BLLLL 0002
652 LP0'PLY'EL Wo'virt's 000°0£0°S BE0'68.L'¥E £20'v2L VPl L9O'ELG'BLL 1002
gee £00'0LY'SE /v8'SrE'8 95.'vo¥'9 188'gL0'eS 060°20S'LEL 152'8LG'E8L 2002
12504 695 Z¥E'QL c£ig'ere's 952'¥00°8 BEL'EEEBE £20'262'0S) 29.'sz9's8l €002
[ 95V 656 VL 202'¥P91'L 95.'v8.L L ¥TS'tav'oy 225'008°0¥1 90" #9Z 281 ¥002
162 YOG 2S52'LL 8F2'100"L 962'689°01 82.'/85')LS SEZ'OLS I EOB'ELL'EBL S002
167L SZ¥'2oL'8Y BID'COZ'E 95€'66Y 6E ZB0'vBE'GH £98'96C'vE £80'965'6¥ | Z8Z'L82'10T 9002
oL FXARA FAN:] L28'009'6 95+'9¥9'es 129'599'EVL 808'2/¢'0L S62'Z95'6EL 851°652'21Le 2002
€L'L 6¥8'08E'Z9 $ 8091289 $ LPZ'6SS'SS $ B2£'9/8'20L $ SYE'BEE'OE $ eri'820'051 ¢ /g9'9iz'zez ¢ 8002
. 9Belanco ejoL . }saiaqu| jedisund anuaaay rsjuaunsn(py , Sosuadxy sabieys 0¢ eunp
ssjuswalinbay asialag 1qaQ ajqejieay BY1o Bupelsado ELlTSET papuz
19N 88 Amn leap
[eds|d

Sl 8|nNpayog
(paupneun)
siea) |edsid u2 | JseT
Ann - eBeiaaon anuaaay pabpaid

BUl|0JBD YHON ‘Bl|tAa)jaked Jo LD




"G00Z AINM 2AIDAYS S[BS SIgEXE) A|UO J0aljal 0} pabueys Buipodal xe) (o)
*1L00Z Jeqwadaq] aAannaye Xe} asn ppe o) pabueys Bujuedal xe1(q)
"SONSAE}S XB| AS() PUE S3|ES 8BS "UOISIAIC] SINSHEIS pue SiSA[EUY AD1|0d ‘anuassdy Jo Juawnedaq euljoieD YUON 'G
"8|qejleAg JoU 800Z 104 E1EQ]
Aunon puelaqung 104 saASNE}s JuawAodwaun Jesk lepusien ‘JogqeT jo Juawpedag SN ‘SONSHEIS JOgET JO NeaIng &
"ayoLd PUsIq ‘s|ooyss Alunos) pualagwng ‘¢
‘8|ge|leAR JOU §00Z pUe 002 104 Ele]
‘Aunon puepaqung 1oy swodul eydes jad evlawwion jo wawpedaq s ‘uswdojasa oitiouod3 jo neaing 'z

"800z ybno.y) 6661 10}
sajewnsy uonendod [edioiungy |eloigO ‘uawabeuepy pue 1abpng e1B)S 10 89140 |

$821N0G
0L6e 8S¥'C %EE GLE'LS Z89'ze 916'981°26.'C 9cE’LZ1 6661
6L0¢ 1€5°C %Gt 6€'LS 689'cZ Z90'CET LPO'E 956°/Z1 0002
£Z0'E 66¥'2 %9 £rZ'LS 6L9'vZ vLy'ZEY 086' 90e'LZ1 002
@ y6'C @0Z¥'Z %9'9 GZI'LS Sv6'SZ S1¥'886'€2Z'E YA AAN o0z
g10¢ LZv'e %E'9 £Z2'Ts TAAVKA ZEV'YE0'TIE'E Pre) €00z
FAS 0892 %E'S Z60'eS £68'9Z 956'C80'9.L°E Z69'0EL ¥00Z
ve9'e 1962 %G 66E'CS 09€'ZE 000'€Z6'9ET'Y 0S8'0EL G00Z
) 6082 ©Z90°Z %G £Ov'es S¥L'PE 0IZTIB'CLY'Y 9r9'0% | 9002
P12 £52°¢ %E'G ZI6'eS WiN YIN 268°'/L 1002
26278 LOEZS$ WIN ZL6'ZS /N WIN £57'L81E 8002
Ayunon Ao , BIEY ¢ Jusuoiug 7 dwodu| awoauj , uonejndog 1ea
s suolig juswAopdwaun [ooyog jeuoslad |euosiad
s3|eg |IEjoY gide) Jag

9l @npayag
{paypneun)
sleaj Jepuajen uaj jse’
s0sReIS diwouoay pue siydesBowaq

EUl[OJeD YUON ‘B]|IAenehed Jo K10




6i-d

20J3WUI0T JC JAqUIBYD AUN0D pUBLHBqUIND-S|lIAsHakE 5 8y} pue

JUSWBIEIS (eI SPUOG BNUBASY 6661 DMd EIEP 66| PUE WRWAIIE]S (B SPUOg SNUL3ASY B0O0Z DAA BIBP §00Z :8aInog

%SE 8 GLY'EE %ZE BT Lag'se (s1adojdwig veliaID 1saBle ual) Juawioidws (g0t
%9Z' L ] 08p'L - oty 10j80und
%9 | L 009'L - Auedwos Bulnpenuey 18%3(] ¥ 3oe|g
%0 | ol 0ez'L - R)ISIBAILN BIEIS B||IAB)BAB 4
- %101 o} 00E°} AsJ9AIUN 15IPOYIBIN
%LT L g 00%'L %801 6 FATE @01AJag 81504 ‘SN
- %9z L g 0€s'} EUIIOIED YHON JO 318l
%S5’} 9 geg'l %S9'L L 966} aj|laanake Jo A1
%L6'T ¥ 00s'e %8L'T 9 069'z Auedwos Jaqany g ali] JeaApoosn
%80 g 0S¥’z %0E°Z § 88.°C JUBWUIAAOS) AJUNCY) puBpaqwng
- %¥8C ¥ grt'e (581015 puB J2JUB UoHNQLISIC]) HEW-[BAA
%EP'E € oro'y %ZLY € 000°s WalsAg YileaH Aajlep Jeaq aden
%6P°9 z 059'L %TSG z 00L'9 sjooyog AUnos puepaquins
%069 L 0gL'e %0E "L 3 158'8 (spenuo) pue pajendosddeucy 'aoiaag IAID) 9sUa o Jdag 's'N
juawiojdwg juey saafoldwg juawioldwg yuey sasko|dg 18holdwg
Aunog (ejo Aunog g0
Jo aBejuesiad 10 abeuasiag
6661 8002

1} 3Inpaysg

{paypneun)
obiy sipaj auIN pue JE3 A Juaung
. siaho|dwz (edppupg

eujjosed YUON ‘sfllaenaded jo 41D




024

UOISSILULIOD SYIOAA D1|Qnd PUB UBL] UOIEDO0|Y 1SO7) 1BNULY 3010y aoueulq A1D) :30.n0g

168’1 906'L zog'L gen's SplL 289°)L £P9°L oro’L 0gL'l 6€L'} 1101
gL Lz 14} Sh et £l el ¥l 6l 174 Hodury
L] 0% A €q '14 65 £9 £9 99 19 usued)
06 A4 (%A GEL ¥EL eel 4" Zel 148 avl Jatemalsepn
£61 Bt arl €51 1213 sl GGl 8G1 0£1 LLL I3IBAA
144 ot 24 14 4> 0t 82 (33 8¢ 1% 3VIAI9G [ewrsly)
2867 ez 52 e e 174 1z 9e2 652 poz oupai3
Gzl 9zl Sl 21 ozl 73 86 4t)" g0l 2kl B} AUNWLIOY pUE UOBAISY
G 81l ¥l 0k L ol Ll Ll ¥l £l 1uswdojaaap fearsiud pue jwouco3
A LL 19 09 £5 ¥G 14 89 ez 08 uonepodsues )
44" £Zh [44] 201 0L 1oL S8 06 68 18 uoNI3I0Ud [ElUSLUUONIAUS
Fxa res 908 008 572 ¥L9 299 059 P9 ¥ES Aajes aigng
16 Z6 94 58 L] ge Z6 68 FlLL ozl uoljensiIupy
BOOZ 1002 900z $002 002 E0OZ zO0T Lo0Z 000z 6881
g1 aInpayag

(peypneun)
siBa\ 1BIS14 Ua] )sen
uopoung Aq saakojdwg Juawuiaros Aj0 aw-|Ingd
Bu(|0Je) YHON ‘Bi|IAeyaked Jo Ao




lZ-d

82z’ 1221 oz SL0'E ELLE S¥6 <66 Z10°1 8rO'L LZL B|BF PISA
yza'vl 150'9¢ S69'9L qLL'zl €59t} B9L°LL LLV'EL BOL'LL 8Lv'LL LZL'EY SNOBUR|BISIN
. 1840
662 108 182 L0E 00€ S0E bA1> 15€ vZE £0€ suofieAauey
09 88 €6 (8] £3 0% 6t 89 59 1L MaN
B RICHTIN o]
€0E'L zZze'y S60'L 052 SEL zi9 £z9 SiL 569 229 suonEAQUSY
651 5L LEv ELL vLS L+13 189 PPe 045 96+ SHUN JO 1aqunN
{swniujwopuoaside) Arue-jnw map
29t 998G 169 pge SEE 14T 98l 681 gal LEZ Awey s)6uls maN
Jlenuepissy
:panss| gjuued jo Jaquiny
suofoedsu|
) 96°zZ8L B¥S'Y0Z PLE'BEL LEE'L6L 00Z'selL £SE'vLL gar'eBL Soe'agl 9zZ'6Ll g6r' L6} a04A108 10} 8|8
© pap's €6P'ZL PLLLL qzs'LL 9zZ0'6 689'6 99t'EL ST 68SS'ElL WiN suoneys Bupess
) y0z'IE BEE'SZ SZZ'6L LLL'zZ2 697 £59'8Z ort'ie BE9'9Z L62'8L WiN SUOHEYD JYRI |
' gos'e zzs'y 1082 rog'L 899, ZIE'L zoz'e Skp'L 4491 WIN s|8aU2 [B28AYd
ISUONRICIA MB] |O Jagquinny
(1) a9)0g
2 geg‘y Pea'y Y85’y 69E'E 8SE'S 099y 98z'c EES'Y G8.°S ZEP'E suofoadsul any
©epe’L S6F'L S90°L 586 198 58 EEL'L SZZ'L L96 zLO') peysinBugxe sai 4
2 508'01L §12'0Z zg'sl 16€'SL vzl LEB'EL SrErL £66'vL 989'v1L 0e8'EL sesuodsas Aouebrawg
) alyq
fayeg oyqng
2002 1002 8002 5002 00z £00Z 2002 LOOZ 0002 8661
61 @Inpeyag
{panpneun)

2JB8 ) |BIS14 Ua] 1Se
wetBoidruonaund Ag sioleaipu) Buneiado
EBUI|0JED YHON “8j|[Asneied Jo AlD




065°peR°L €EE'SSE"L 661'195'2 ZA0'gEL'L 01¥'6£0'L PEYE0E' L BOE'EPEL 9:8'190°L pac'rL0'R PeSEzs's ) (si12Bp) pios [|o0)

¥'8E ole ¥z Fee g0¢ £'¢E geg 6'8E gt Al s (QDW) sxe2d

68T S18'1Z 0se'LZ $E9'0Z #Z5'0Z £EB'0Z 8p0'zz 148722 £1Z'ez pOb've e (s12B) uondwnsuoa Ajep abesaay

avL 82l 8Ll t4] azi 18 151 Iz =2t ogl $3BAUG WEW IBIEA
HUVE ELCNETRYY

samnn Aiqnd

EY Se (55 29 or 4] VIN YIN YIN VIN (leruewiwo) syuued Lemsaug
A L8 cer SPE 1z &5z YIN VIN VIN VIN (lepuepsel} syuLed ABmeAuq
Bupssubug
8Ll -T2 Sil 89t 041 29} zgl z91 Z9L ogl (o} pauEjuEL
$ieubiS-oeN-Jo-1aqLIRN-
61'1ZL By'P0L $9°'889 ZTTES £5'825 AN A 1008y 12'96p cH8Ly [WN-T1 (88)|w) peUBUIBL §19R)S
g 8ZEL zo8 51ZL 699 856 pElL 50°61 £ZZL ZTsl {sanw) Buorpnsa 1eans
SIUBUU[EW 19805
uopeuodsued}
IWWO'DE 165'9Z VIN VIN VIN VN YIN ¥IN ViIN YIN S{EJUE JakaYs HuDld
ELLGE B6P'PL YIN VIN VIN VN YIN WIN YIN VIN sauedud [Ru0isiH
WZO'EZE grL'20L VIN YIN YIN YIN YN VIN VIN VIN Med |BAGSEY
EPB'PLS LWPO'BLY VIN YIN YIN VIN WiN YIN YIN viN SIUBD vofEasIeYy
0g a¢ ) gt YIN YIN YIN YN WIN YIN VIN 5|EJUS) JoyoBs|q/ebEs 8llqoN
19 s¢ o pp VIN VIN ViN VIN VIN vIN WiN S|usAB palliLLSd
5v2'T 969 # GLF'G VIN YIN VIN WIN YIN YIN ¥IN jueAs |ERedg
6SE'6Z 19182 " 60Z'SZ VIN YIN YIN YIN WiN YIN YIN swbad yieg
891LpE £66°0E ) 97697 VIN VIN YIN YN Y/N VIN YIN suedispied ofnsdesayy
¥95°59 8LL'99 B ZIV'PS ) 9 Les 6816 ViN VIN YN YIN YIN sjuedioed Jouas
aro't 20'L LTV AR ® 19Z'7 161°} SBL L 0ZL'k 4Z8 0Z1 0zz fjuedipgied spodg ynpy
ras'ziL ETELL wgLL'TL ) £G6" LL S06'L 698y 8:0'¢ soL'e vOL'y 285’y sjuedioped spodg yino)
[RUOfj2edI9) PUR [BIn} N
8002 1002 8002 S00Z 002 £00Z zo0Z 100Z 0007 8681
BL 2INpPayas
{peypneun)

sJed, [BIS|4 U] 1587
weafoidyuopaund Aq stojeatpu) Bupesadp
BUjjOIED YKON ‘afj|asiaked Jo Ao




£€2Z-d

UOISS|LILLIOY $3UO0MA 2([ANd PUe sluswledsp AlID Snopea Ag papiaud uonewugyu] (aunog

900z '1£ nBny yBnouy) pajosyel B gOOZ 10} podily sy 1oy saasiels (L)
SINOY MO = ymy {01)
shemebow = pw (8)
suoijet 0p0°) = e (g)
Aep Jed suoyefi 000°000° ) = QoW (2)
B|||aepLAB - Jo AYD By AQ peumo pua paugguiew sjeudis oyey) J0 Jegquinu sy Sy (9)
ebelgae Auyuoll sayBiy sioepey (g)
eueWeda(] UORSaIsay pue sued ajjAeyaked Jo A4D
pus funoD puspaquing Jo Jafiaw ayl s19aysl sonspels (F)
800z ‘0% Jequaides ybinquy) paoayss e QOOZ 10} Juaugiedaq e10d 8} o) SaNSNEIS (£)
8002 ‘0€ Jaquieides yBnouy) paloayal 1€ g0z 40y Juauedaq a4 ey Joj sopsnels (z)
SJEGA JEPUSIED U0 pBSEq AIB Suofauny Jodie pue eajed 'auy sy) 10 s3snE1S {1)

“n 168'szL I9B'vLL L1B'FSL 514061 928'agl 0zL'0ZL 0L0'%EL BLO'EEL 1A 291'951 sseBuessed pauerdap jo sequiny
anggLiizl ZEF'SLL raL'eGL ¥ZG'ESE Z8L'85L 16802 S0L'8ZL 98Z°LEL LazAd" 1zZ1'15) susfiuessed pausidue Jo Jequiny
Hodiy
GS0'L1B'G 0Z1'695°G LLLPRL'S 841'799'G gFLLLL'S £29'8bL'S LLZPLS'S 5a1'069's 0£0°G65'S GZG'PIF'S (ymy) uondwinsuoa &yep aBeiony
¥LE'OET'ELO'Z ¥BS'OLB'ERE' L £6F 189'090'7  LEF'OFL'ZZO'T  £PG'I8S'LPO'E  9GE'SZO'LPOT  LPE'PLLICEL  00L'GZS'988°L  BLE'Z0S'9.6'L  IPE'9ZS'GRE'L (04} PIOS adf €)01
'Ly G2k SyiF £6EY Lok (4% 44 ¥y oLy (5 L'0EY {61 { () 3%BRY
926'9L0°E £8¥'6L0°7 BE0°0SY'E 006'6¥F'E LOV'BLT L ZLO'BLEOL 9LB'GZE'Y 65Z'266'T $OS°LOF'G VIN {seinuw) sebeyno awoaaly
IWBISAS DU108yT
1Z29°%710'9 BEQ'LER'S ¥ELPGL'G £PYERS'S GBZ'EST'S 95P'95¥'S £18'1¥S'S 6Z'EOF'S 980'pZ9'S 950'659'G @) (s1eByy) pjos |01
L'z g1z o9z 1'gZ 0°'Ze 01z V€T L'vZ g'9z 6'GZ 2 (o) eyesd
605'91 9zZa'ol 01L8's1L LEE'S) Le'rh G56'FL Lzz'st GL0'sL Giv'sl Zi'e (@ {1eB) uondwnsuod Aiep ebisieay
251 051 802 8r zZzlL Gil 68 19 VIN VIN BYBEIQ LB
WESAS 1emes
8002 100Z 200Z [{ D4 ¥00Z £00Z Zonz 100Z 000Z 666
61 2Inpayas
(payipneun)

5123 ) [@9S|4 ua) ISE
weJboudruonoung Aq siojed|pu| Bupesadp
BU(|0IED YHON ‘3[|IAayeked jo A1)




ve-d

9l 9} YIN VN ViIN ViN VIN ViIN VIN WIN WAB L Jajusd ApunLiwo)
£ € ¥ VIN ViN VIN Y/N YviIN VIN VIN (sau0m 067 - 00L) sxed |guoiBay
8 g 8 VIN VIN ViIN YN ViIN YIN YIN sejis Wweibouy
L 9 Zl VIN YIN VIN YN VIN WYIN VIN s¥ied esn ejoadg
£ £ T VIN N W YN N YN ViN —Syted-resun
3 L L ViIN VIN VN YIN VIN /N YN syJed-joouos Apunuwiuo)
¥E vE A% VIN ViIN YN VIN YN VIN VIN sy1ed-jooyss pootpogubieN
8 g L VIN ViIN YN VIN viIN VIN VIN saoeds Uaals)
Z Z 4 VIN ViIN VIN YIN VIN ViN VIN (saso® 0g - Op) sexa|dwos sueds
9 9 L VIN VN VIN VIN VIN /N VIN {seuoe Qg - O€) Bped Aunwioy
vl rl €l VIN ViIN VIN VN ViIN YN YN (sane g1 - /) xped pooylogyBien
ZlL 4 €l VIN VIN viIN YN VIN VN VIN (sauoe ¢ - ¢) syped
|eucpeelaey pue [RINYND
F4 4 4 Z 4 Z 4 Z 2 2 SUORES JO JBqUInN
8oljlod
13 Gl gl el gl bl 1] oL ] 8 6 SUOQRLS JO Jequiny
a4 f
Kajes ongnd
8002 002 8002 S00Z 002 £002 zooz LooZ 0002 6661
0Z elnpaysg

(paupneun)
Slea ) |eDSI4d Ua] )se
uonosung Ag sapisneig sjessy |eyded
BUYOiRD YUON ‘Bjjinapeded jo 1D




ge-d

UOISSILILLGT) SHIOAA DljGNd puesiuswpedap Ao snauea £q papiaasd Uchewloll] ;80mog

anenaied Jo A1 el Aq peumo sjeubis olyel) jo JequUnU ey) s1oeyey (Z)
Aep sad suclied 000'000'L = @D (1)

8L elL 62 Fira iz Lz iz iz Lz 9z (z} s18UBis ouyBA Jo JequunN
6L712Z4 8F 0L 59899 XA £G°825 AR A L0 98Y L2 961 £8°8LY LLgiy (seijw) peulelulew sjeans
BoUBUSILIEW 19908
uoljepodsue |
01°Z86' 0F296°C 89818l 05°064°2 00°249'C 56'609'2 00°'LO¥'T 00°12€'C 00°LE¥'E 00°98€'Z §3]1W JN2H auy| uoRnglysig
bSL) vl SyZ'Z T LGzt Ls0'L 996 Lsr €64 186 SUORIBUUOD

€21A18S MBU JO JequinN
'We)sAg oLel

0Ly oLy 0l oL oLy 0¥ 0Ly 0'9€ 0'9¢ 09e (n{aHw) ueid weunean
10 AjjoedeD AjlEp WiNWe
SZEL') ogoL’L 0'Z80'L 0 LS50 8'6£0'L £1Z0'1 ¥'G00'L 6'196 ¥N WIN 1omes uLojs/Aiejues Jo sa|y
09z‘z 800'E Zrl'e 6622 201'Z £52'2 £8€'2Z v12'2 Al 86.°L SUOIIOULOD

201A195 MBLI JO JBqUINN
WR)SAG 18MBS

L'9€ L€ 1'9¢g L'oc L9t L'9g L'9g L'ag 1'9€ L'9E W {gow) Aloedes sbeiayg
A S'LS e ast Sl S5 0°0s 008 005 005 0'0s (1} (aow) Jueid Jueuneas
Jo Ajioeded Ajlep WINWIXBRW
5922 PSl'e 296'2 09e'z 00£°2 ¥8Z't lzo'e 059°L 8ip'l G5G'L SUONRBULOD
20IA188 MBU JO JegquInN
58T osrzZ'L 06ZZ'L Ze6L L £6LLL L'ZaL'L 69rL'L yezL'L YWIN YN ulgLl Jejem 1o s8Iy
LUB)SAS JajeAA
sellnn 219and
Bgooz L00Z 200z 5002 ¥oo0Z €00z Z00Z LooZ oooz 6661
0Z afhpaydg
(peypneun)

slea ) [e9SI4 ua | }se
uoyoung Aq soisiels sjassy |epded
BUI|OIBD YHON ‘8f||Aeehed Jo i)
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OMB Circular A-133 and State Single Audit

Implementation Act Compliance Section

- Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Complionce
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Goverrment Auditing Standards

- Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Federal
Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB
Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

- Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major State
Program and Internal Control Over Complionce in Accordance with

Applicable Sections of OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit

Implementation Act
- Schedule of Findings and Questioned Casts

- Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

- Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards







CHERRY
BEKAERT&,

HOLLAND

CERTIFIED PURLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (the “City™) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2008. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's financial reporting as a basis for designing our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial
reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely
affects the City’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of
the City's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City's
internal control.

A material weakness is significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than
a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by
the City's intemal control.

Our consideration of the intermal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Comptiance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance -about whether the City's financial statements are free of material

misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the detemnination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Q-1




The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
Page 2

We noted certain matters that we reported to managemeni of the City, in a separate letter dated October 28,
2008.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within the

organization, members of the City Council, and federal and|State awarding agencies and pass-through entities,
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND L.L.P.

O’WUW.AIMN+HMM

Fayetteville, North Carclina
October 28, 2008




CHERRY
BEKAERT&,

HOLLAND

CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR

A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (the "City") with the types of

compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Govemmental Auditors in North Caroling, issued by the
Local Government Commission, that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2008. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the
City’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circutar A-133, Audits of
States, Local Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act,
Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State Slngle Audit Implementation Act require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements refemed to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008,

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of 1aws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's intemal control over compliance.




The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
Page 2

A control deficiency in an entity’s intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies that
adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote
likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than
inconseguential will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented or detected by the City’s intefnal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use o'f the audit committee, management, others within

the organization, members of the City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through
entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used b& anyone other than these specified parties.

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND L.L.P.

Chirvy, bokawrss Hollgmd. 14F

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 28, 2008




CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR STATE
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE
SECTIONS OF OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (the “City") with the types of
compliance requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmenta! Auditors in North Carolina, issued
by the Local Government Commission, that are applicable to each of its major State programs for the year
ended June 30, 2008. The City's major State programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements
of faws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major State programs is the responsibility
of the City's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; applicable sections of OMB Circular A-
133 as described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single
Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State
Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major State program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Qur audit does not provide a legal detemnination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to State programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of interal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.




The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carclina
Page 2

A control deficiency in an entity's intemnal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in tre normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program on a
timely basis. A significart deficiency is a control deficiéncy, or combination of control deficiencies that
adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a State]program such that there is more than a remote
likelihood that noncompliance with a type of a compliance requirement of a State program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State
program will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identiiy all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or materal weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, aq’ defined above.

the organization, members of the City Council, and federgl and State awarding agencies and pass-through

This report is intended solely for the information and use c;{/the audit committee, management, others within
entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND L.L.P.

UW%MMWWMW

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 28, 2008




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2008
SECTION I. Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
- Material weakness(es) identified Yes X No
- Significant Deficiency(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted - Yes X No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:
- Material weakness(es) identified Yes X No
-  Significant Deficiency(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to federal
awards Yes X No

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are

required to be reported in accordance

with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133 Yes X No

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Names of Federal Program or Cluster
14.218 Community Development Block Grant
14.239 HOME Investment Partnership Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish

bhetween Type A and Type B Programs $ 300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X  Yes No

Q-7




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE,INORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questicned Costs (continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2008

State Awards
Internal control over major State programs:
- Material weakness(es) identified Yes X No

- Significant Deficiency(s) identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance matenial to State awards Yes X No
Type of auditor's report issued cn oomplianée for major State programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are

required to be reported in accordance

with the State Single Audit

implementation Act Yes X__ No
Identification of major State programs:

Program Name
Powell Bill

Section Il. Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section lIl. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

Section IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

Q-8




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Finding: 07-01

Status: Completed.




Clty of Fayetteville, North Carclina
Schedule of Expenditures of Fedaral and State Awards

Year Ended JunF 30, 2008

State!
Federal Pase-through Fedgral (Direct)
GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA Grantor's & Pass-through) Total
Grantor/Prograrn Title Number Number Expenditures _Expenditures Expandltures
us TMENT OF HOUS|NG & URBAN D PMENT
Community Development Block Grant
FY2006-2007 14,248 B-05-MC-37-0005 $  B88512 - $ 868,512
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 868,512 - 888,512
HOME investmeant Partnership Program
FY1986-1507 14.239 M-88-MC-37-0202 16,483 - 18,493
FY2001-2002 14.239 M-01-MC-37-0203 24,279 - 24279
FY2004-2005 14236 M-04-MC-37-0203 81,41¢ - 81,410
FY2005-2008 14.230 M-05-MC-37-0203 74,001 - 71,001
FY2006-2007 14,239 M-06-MC.37-0203 384,013 - 381,013
FY2007-2008 14239 M-07-MC-37-0203 552,152 - 552 152
HOME investment Partnership Program 14.239 1,088,349 - 1,086,348
us CEP, MENT OF JUSTIC
Office of Justice Progams
Justice Assistance Grant 16.579 2005-DJBXD487 32,055 - . 32,085
Justice Assistance Grant 18.579 2008DJBX0352 13,009 - 13,099
Justice Assistance Grani 46.738 2007DJBXD379 131,304 - 131,304
178,458 - 176,456
Bulleiproof Vast Partnership 18,807 8,382 - §,3E2
FBI Overtme Raimbursements 16.000 7,743 - 7,743
Alcohol, Tebacco, and Firearms Qvertime Relmbursements 16.000 1E.050 - 16,050
Organized Cime and Drug Enforcement Tesk Force 16.000 10,188 - 10,188
US Marshall Service 16.000 7.848 - 7.946
Federal Forfellure Fund 18,000 159,887 - 159,967
u.s. DEPARTMENT QOF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Speclal Programs for the Aging
Pass Thru NC Department of Heatth & Human Services
Sanwr Citizene Servics Cenber 53.044 ; Nia 27,230 - 27,239
US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Federal Ayl Adminletration
Alrport improvement Frogram
Terminal Renavalton Phase 11 20108 FAA-3-37-0021-30 144,188 - 144,188
Alrport Fira Training Facllity 20.104 FAA-3-37-0021-21 130,244 - 130,244
Airport Improvement Projects 20.108 FAA-3-37-0021.-32 389,953 - 369,953
644,385 - 644,385
Passed through NC Dept of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction
Enhancemant Agraemen - Dopot 20.205 E-4118 - 480 480
Fed Tra lon Adminis
Preventaiive Maintenance & American with Disablltes Act 20.507 NC 90.X425 1,183,602 - 1,183,802
Capital asalistance grans:
Capital 20.507 ! NC 80.0271 357,07 - 357.0M
Caplial 20.507 NC £0.0313 984,334 - 084,334
Capltal 20.507 NC 80.0327 81,390 - 61,380
Capital 20.507 NC £0.0357 243,005 - 243,005
Capltal 20.507 NC 90.0406 12,651 - 412,801
Capital 20.507 NC 80.0425 265,069 - 265,069
Planning 20.507 NC 80.2408 98,022 - 95,022
Planning 20.507 NC 00.2425 8,021 - 8,021
2,026,801 - 2,026,801
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMEL AND SECURITY
Hezmal E quipment Grant 97.067 2006-GE-T6-0010 123,004 - 123,004
Law Enforcemani Officar Reimbursement Agresment Program ©7.000 HSTS0208HELR141 139,508 - 139,508
282,802 - 262,802




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
Schedule of Expendtures of Federal and State Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2008
Stata/
Federal Pass-through Federal (Direct)
GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA Grantor's & Pass-through) State Total
Grantor/Program Thie Numb Number Expendltures Expendltures Expandltures
STATE GRANTS:
NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Aviation Division
Stormwater (mprovements NIA 36244.27.5.1 £ - |3 8,182 3 8,182
Public Seating Upgrade N/A 362442771 - 84,500 94,500
Security Sareening Areas N/A 36244.27.7.2 - 63,254 83,254
Runway Canteriine Painting NiA 36244.27.7.4 - 6,584 6,584
West GA Ramp Rehabllitation N/A 36244.27.6.1 - 12.082 12.082
- 184,602 184,602
Public Transportation Division
Maintenance Assislanca N/A 9.9051698 - 850,066 850,088
Caphal N/A 38223721 - 43,587 43,587
Caphal N/A 36223.7.4.3 - 86.714 88,714
Capilal N/A 36223.753 - 737 731
CapHal N/A 36231.3.1.2 - 23,310 23310
Caplial N/A 36231.3.2.2 - 14 14
Ceplial N/A 368231.3.3.2 - 14,664 14,664
Planning N/A 36231.3.26 - 11,879 14,879
Planning N/A 36231.3.3.6 - 1,003 1,003
i - 1,040,609 1,040,809
Powaell Bl N/A - 4,812,763 4,612,763
Rali Division
Railroad Cross Improvements N/A Z-4506H - 445 445
Amtrak N/A 03-5T-009 - 1,080 1,080
- 1,625 1,525
RC DEPARTMENT OF ENYI MENTAL AND NATURAL RCE:
Divislon of Waste Menegement
Commercial Leaking Petraleum Underground Slorage N/A - 39,873 36,873
Bernard Allen Emargancy Drinking Water Fund NIA - 18,788 18,766
- 58,859 56,859
Clean Water Management Truget Fund
Glenville Lake Stormwater Management N/A 2008A-701 20,946 20,848
- 20,848 20,848
Divislon of Parks and Recrestion
Bonnie Doona Park N/A 2005-398 - 3s2 362
- 382 382
NC DEPARTMENT OF CRIME CORTROL & PUBLIC SAFETY
Hazmat (RRT Grant) N/A RRT 3 Fayeltevila - 84,474 84,474
Pasa through from Governor's Crime Commiasion
Gangs Across the Cardlinas FYO07 N/A 026-1-07-001-8H-716 - 62,844 82,844
PSN Anti-Gang: Operation Ceasefire N/A 026~1-06-001-B1-031 - 28,318 26,318
PSN Anti-Gang: Qperation Ceasefira N/A 028-1-07-001-BI-226 - 67,178 87,178
- 220,814 220.814
RC DEPARTMENT OF JU ILE JUSTICE AND DELIN NCY PREVERTION
Pasa through from Cumberland County
Juvanile Restiution FYE 2008 N/A - 87,810 §7.810
87.610 87,610
NC OFFICE OF THE STATE CONTROLLER
NC Uneuthorized Substance Tax N/A - 111.348 111,348
NC RURAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CENTER
Aftemale Water Supply for Coreminaied Properties N/A, - 45,000 45.000
NC VETERANS AFFAIRS DIVISION
NC Vetsrans Parks Funds - N/A 1301-538980-17717711 - 130.668 130.668

§ 6,508,204 $ 6,713.302 § 13,221,505




City of Fayetteville, North Carclina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
Year Ended Junb 30, 2008

State/
Federel Pass-through Fedearal (Direct)
GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA Grantor's & Pass-thraugh) State Total
GrantorfProgram Title Number Number Expendiures Expenditures Expenditures

NOTES TO THE $CHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS:

1. The actompanying schexluks of expandiures of Federal and State awards inciudes the Federal and State grant activity of the City of Fayettaville and Is prasentad on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Tha Information in this schadule (8 presented in accordanca with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, “Audit | Govemmenis, and Non-Profit
Organizations” and the Stale $ingle Audit Implementetion Act. Tharefore, soma amounis prasented H this schedule may differ from amounts presantad in, or used in the preparation of the
basic financial staternerds.

2. The total Iocal maich requiremnants for the Federal and S1aie Tranail operaling asskstance grants st $1,145,860. The ectual local match which tha Clly of Fayetteville axpended for the
operations of the iransit system was §1,145,660. |

3. The total local cordributions for tha Stale Powell Bil assistanca amounied ta $71,433.52 { this rapr&senzs assessmenlts received through 06/30/06).
4. The amount of HOME Investment Partnarships provided to CHDO's is $222,394.30 85 of June 30, 2008
5. Powell Bl expendlivres es raported above represent aligible expandiures reportad to tha North Ca!rulina Departmant of Transperation for tha flscal year endinp June 30, 2008.

Tha City ts required 10 report annually 1o tha North Carollne Department of Transportation on the accuhulaled unexpended Powell Bl funds. Unexpended Powell Blll funds era accouned
for and maintained within tha Trensportation Caphal Projeci Fund. The total unaxpendad balence on-hand at Juna 30, 2008 is $884,606.
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CHERRY
BEKAERT&,

HOLLAND

CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE PASSENGER FACILITY
CHARGE PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM AUDIT GUIDE

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (“the City") with the compliance

requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the
Federal Aviation Administration (Guide), for its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June
30, 2008. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its
passenger facility charge program is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States; and the Guide. Those standards and the
Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on the passenger facility charge program cccumred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those
requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2008,

Internal Control Qver Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, cantracts and grants applicable to the passenger facility
charge program. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge
program in crder to detemnine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with the Guide, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Guide. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over compliance.
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The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
Page 2

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of pompliance requirement of the passenger facility
charge program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency {s a control deficiency, or combination of control
deficiencies that adversely affects the entity's ability to ad}:inister the passenger facility charge program
such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of the passenger facility program that is more than inoonseduential will not be prevented or detected by the

City’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combinati?n of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance wjth a type of compliance requirement of the
passenger facility charge program will not be prevented or detected by the City's intemal control.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance wag for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessanly identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did noiidentify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of 1he audit committee, management, others within
the organization, members of the City Council, the Federal Aviation Administration, and federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND L.L.P.
Chuy bubose Hitlond S5

Fayetteville, North Caralina
October 28, 2008




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2008
SECTION I. Summary of Auditor’'s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
- Material weakness(es) identified Yes X No
- Significant Deficiency(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted Yes X No

Passenger Facility Charge Program

Internal control over passenger facility charge program:
- Material weakness(es) identified Yes X No
- Significant Deficiency(s) identified

that are not considered to be
material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to passenger
facility charge program Yes X No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for passenger facility charge program:
Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed Yes X No

Section II. Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section lll. Passenger Facility Charge Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Summary Schedule of Prjor Audit Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Finding: 07-01

Status: Completed.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges
Year Ended June 30, 2008

impose Use Cumulative Approved Amount PFC Revenue PFC Revenue Total PFC
Effective  Effective  Expendltures  Expenditures of Use Used In Used in Ravenues
Project Date Date Agtual for PFC's Approval Prior Years Current Year Used
APPLICATION 1 ( # 00-01-C-00-FAY)
Local share reimbursement AlP-12, Construction of
a Fire Training Facllity and Rehabiitation af a 1500-
Gallen ARFF Vehicle 110172000 11/01/2000 § 3,830,753 § 3,830,753 § 191,538 § 191,538 § - $ 191,538
Local share reimbursement AIP-12, Install Sacurity
Access Control System 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 757,585 757,598 37,880 37,880 - 37,880
Lacal share reimbursemenl AIP-13, Update Airport
Master Plan 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 135,020 B7.510 6,751 6,751 - 8,751
Local share reimbursement AIP-13, Deslgn
Highway 301 Connectar 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 194,655 194,855 9,733 9,733 - 8,733
Local share reimbursement AIP-14, Inslallgfion of
Taxiway Guidance Signs and Runway End
Identification Lights 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 198,191 198,102 9,910 2,810 - 9810
Local share relmbursemant AlP-14, Land
Acquisition 11/01/2000  11/01/2000 134,612 134,462 6,731 6,731 - 6,731
Local share reimbursament AIP-14, improve
Termnal Building 11/01/2000 14/01/2000 31,224 31,224 1,474 1,474 - 1,474
Local share reimbursement AlP-15, Design New
Genaral Aviation Area 11/04/2000 11/01/2000 206,288 206,288 10,315 10,314 - 10,314
Local share reimoursemant AIP-15, Foreign Objecl
Damage Sweeper 11401/2000  11/01/2000 15,632 15,632 782 782 - 782
Local share reimbursement AIP+15, Design Taxiway
K 11/01/2000  11/01/2000 18,841 16,841 B42 842 N - 842
Local shere reimbursemenl AlP-15, Rehabililate
General Aviallon Apron 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 29.875 26,875 1,494 1,494 - 1,494
Local shere reimbursement AIP-15, Land for
Davelopment 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 49,001 48 476 2,424 2,424 - 2,424
Local share reimbursement AIP-18, Tammunal
Loading Bridges 11/01/2000 14/01/2000 176.808 179,808 8,690 8,990 - 8,590
Local share reimbursement AlP-17, New General
Aviation Construclion 11/01/2000  11/01/2000 2,362,380 2,342,378 114,860 114,860 - 114,860
Locel ehara reimbursament AlP-18, Acquire
Handicep LIkt Davice 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 35,680 35,680 1,784 1784 - 1.784
Local share reimbursement AlP-18, Rehabililate
Terminel Bullding 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 1,620,477 1,820,478 B3,367 83,367 - 83,367
Lecal share reimbursement AiP-19, Aircrafl Rescue
& Firafighting Vehicle 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 316,769 319,768 15,988 16,088 - 15,986
Local share relmbursemant AIP-20, Design Non-
licensed Vehicle Road 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 31,619 30,545 1,527 1,527 - 1,527
Local share reimbursement AIP-20, Design of
Taxmway K" (Revised) 11/01/2000  11101/2000 13.287 12,867 644 644 - 644
Local share reimburserent AIP-20, Inslallation «f
Waler Mein 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 78,585 78,200 34815 3,915 - 3,815
Local snare reimbursamenl AlP-21, Airpart
Enlrence Road 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 360,018 350,000 17,500 17,500 - 17,500
Local share relmbursement AIP-21, Jelwey Bridge
Maodificalions 14/01/2000  14/01/2000 38,887 46,195 1,945 1,944 - 1,844
Local shere reimbursement AlP-21, Securily System
Upgrede 11/04/2000 11/01/2000 91,512 70,815 4,575 3,541 - 3,541
Local share reimbursement AIP-21, Preptan
Runway Salety Areas 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 108,600 108,600 5,430 5430 - 5,430
North GA Ramg Consiructicn 11/01/2000 06/18/2002 1,554,453 1,404,170 77,723 70,209 - 70,200
Securily System Upgrade Phasa II 11/01/2000 06/16/2002 141,216 130,340 6,967 6,987 - B.967
Design & Construct RSA, Runway 4 11/01/2000 0G/18/2002 858,872 049,000 44,500 42,943 - 42,043

Renovate Terminal, Phase Il 11/01/2000 06/18/2002 2,224,052 2,475,430 252,581 111,203 - 114,203




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NQRTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Expendttures of Passenger Facllity Charges

Year Ended June 3‘ , 2008

Impose Use Cumulative Approved Amount PFC Revenue PFC Revemua Total PFC
Effective  Effective  Expendltures xpendltures of Use Used In Used In Revenues
Project Date Date Actual | for PFG's Approval Pricr Years Current Year Used
RSA Construction, Runway 4, Phase Il 11/04/2000 06/18/2002 § 858,872 §° 849,000 $ 44,500 § 40,000 % -5 40,000
Renovate Tarminal, Phase Il 11/01/2000 06/18/2002 2.496.526 2,475,430 118,250 112,364 3,886 116,250
R5A Construction, Runway 22 11/01/2000 06/18/2002 1,855,290 1,263,900 92,765 96,359 - 96.389
NLYR Constructlion 14/01/2000 06/18/2002 540,322 180,000 27,018 25,567 - 25,567
Jel Bridge Modifcation Construction 11/01/2000 06/18/2002 - 125,500 6,275 - - -
Taxiway K Conslruction 11/01/2000 06/18/2002 463,002 ‘ 225,000 24,450 22,500 - 22,500
TOTAL IMPOSE AND USE APPLICATION 1 § 22054889 $| 21114714 & 1,233,108 § 1,057,525 % 1866 § 1,061,391
APPLICATION 2 { # 05-03-C-00-FAY)
Terminal Loop Reatway(Deslgn/Consir.} 10/01/2005 10/0112005 3 560,077 § 614,800 § 20,740 % 28,004 § - $ 28,004
Obstruction Ramoval 10/01/2005  10/01/2005 1,477,695 1.531,500 76,575 73,885 - 73,885
Update Alrpor aster Plan 10/01/2005  10/01/2005 305,587 205,000 14,750 14,750 - 14,750
Snow Plow(s) Purchase 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 50,972 51,120 2,556 2,549 - 2,548
Handicap Lift Devica 10/D01/2005 10/04/2005 24,495 1,225 1,225 1.225 - 1,225
Fire Training Facility Evaluation/Study 10/01/2005  10/01/2005 4,965 4,095 4,965 4,095 - 4,495
Stormwaler Managemani Evaluation/Study 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 9,844 40,400 1,040 934 - 944
PFC Application ( Criginal Program) 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 12,787 12,866 12,866 12,787 - 12,787
PFC Application (Program 2) 10/01/2005 40/01/2005 7,789 8,000 8,000 7,789 - 7,789
Terminal Roof Replacement 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 123,770 123,770 61,885 61,885 - 61,885
Runway Crack Repair and Pain| 10/04/2005  10/01/2005 56.073 90,540 9,054 5,607 - 5,607
Pavement Condltion Index Siudy 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 96,110 100,000 5,000 4,806 - 4,808
Airport Beacon Reptacement 10/01/2005 10012005 173,085 250,000 12,500 8,655 - 8,655
Jetbridge Madificalions {Gales B-2 and B-4) 1040172005 10/01/2005 - 190,000 9,500 - - -
Runway 4/22 Rehabilltation - Design 10/1/200%  10/01/2005 222,607 60,000 80,000 - 11,130 11,130
Ganeralor/Vaull Upgrade 10/01/2005 10/09/2005 104,834 570,000 28,500 - 5,242 5.242
ARFF Expansion 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 18,975 620,000 31,000 - 949 949
Runway 4/22 Rehabllitation - Construction 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 - 515,000 25,750 - - -
Raplacement Jetbridge for B4 10/01/200% 10/01/2005 - 475,000 23,750 - - -
Rehabilitate Airfleld Lighting 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 43,010 200,000 50,000 - 2,151 2,151
Pavemeni Rehabilitalion {per PCI study) 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 - 750,000 37,500 - - -
Pave ARFF & Surveillance Road 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 - 750,000 37.500 - - -
Fire Training Facility Upgrade 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 1,176,323 500,000 25,000 25,000 - 25,000
Securty Cameras Syslem 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 40,801 20,000 20,000 20,000 - 20,000
Replace ARFF Vehicle 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 - 700,000 35,000 - - -
PFC Program Consulling 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 - 10,000 10,000 - - -
TOTAL IMPOSE AND USE APPLICATION 2 $ 4,509,838 tl BA'MEE $ 614,686 § 272,920 § 19471 § 292,331
Widen Taxlway A 10/01/2005 3,200,000 160,000
South GA Ramp Overlay/Exp. 10/01/2005 431,000 43,100
Runway 4/22 Hold Pads 10/01/2005 350,000 17,800
TOTAL IMPOSE ONLY APPLICATION 2 - | 3,981,000 220,800 - - -
TOTAL APPLICATION 2 $ 4509838 ¢ 1=2‘,455,21G $ 835,288 § 272,920 $ 18471 § 282,34
GRAND TOTAL $ 26,584,1.23_5 33,569,830 § 2,088,382 & 1,330,445 § 23,337 & 1,353!782

NOTES TO THE SCHEDLILE OF EXPENDITURES OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES:

1. The accampanying schedule af expenditures of passenger facllity charges is presented on the full accruel basis of accounting.
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